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RESOLUTION NO. RS2025-

A resolution authorizing grants not exceeding $5,458,000.00 from the Barnes Fund
for Affordable Housing to certain nonprdfits for the express purpose of constructing
and rehabilitating affordable or workforce housing.

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2025, the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission issued a request for
applications to qualified nonprofit organizations to participate in the nonprofit housing
development grant program; and,

WHEREAS, Section 7-3-314 of the Tennessee Code Annotated states that metropolitan forms of
government may provide financial assistance to a nonprofit organization in accordance with the
guidelines of the Metropolitan Government; and,

WHEREAS, Section 5.04.070 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws provides that the Metropolitan
Council may by Resolution appropriate funds for the financial aid of nonprofit organizations; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the regulations and procedures of the Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund
Commission, the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission voted to distribute funds to various non-
profit organizations; and,

WHEREAS, it is to the benetit of the citizens of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and
Davidson County that these grant contracts be approved.

NOW. TI IEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated $$,458,000.00 from the Barnes Fund for Affordable
Housing to fund a grant to the following nonprofit organizations as follows:

Nonprofit Amount Project Type # of Council Exhibit
‘_ Barnes District
Fund
Homes
Habitat for $4,500,00.00 | Homeownership 27 28 A
Humanity of
Greater
Nashville
Living $375,000.00 | Homeownership 3 17 B
Development
Concepts, Inc.
Tucker’'s House | $100,000.00 Owner- 4 Various C
Occupied TBD
Rehab
Westminster $483,000.00 Owner- 100 Various D
Home Occupied TBD
Connection Rehab
Section 2. The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County is hereby

authorized to enter into grant contracts with each of the nonprofit organizations listed in Section
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1 for the grant amounts designated therein, subjeét to the terms and conditions under which the
grant funds are to be spent, attached hereto as Exhibits A through D and incorporated herein.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption, the welfare of the
Government of Nashville and Davidson County requiring it.

RECOMMENDED BY: INTRODUCED BY:

Signed by:

(e

Angela Hubbard, Housing Director

Member(s) of Council
APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY
§oRHNDS:

S m:i/w?}w
Jénneen Haed, Director

Department of Finance

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

DocuSigned by:
@ftm (lwos
SSIStENT igtropolitan Attorney
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-15-H4H
BETWEEN

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,

TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as "Metro”, and Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville, hereinafter referred to as
the “Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined
in the "SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Habitat for Humanity will be developing 27 affordable housing
units located at 0 Rural Hill Rd. The Recipient's grant budget is incorporated herein by
reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic organization.

A.

Al

A2

A.3.

A4,

A5

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordability
requirements to encumber the Property and run with the land over a 40-year term
(“Affardability Perind”), Terms defined ih the Declaration shall have the same meanings
when used in this Agreement. :

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consjstent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $4,500,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for

¢
P

such purposes. )

Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site inspections
of the grantee for compliance Barnes program requirements.

{N0281585.1} 1
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A.6.

AT,

Requirements for Homeownership Projects:

a. Recipient shall ensure that initial homeowners are income eligible. Income eligibility
is determined and documented at the time a prospective homebuyer enters into a
program agreement with the Recipient. Income- eligible is defined as households
with incomes at or below 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) based on actual
household size. The AMI is established annually by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, and Recipient shall follow the AM| in effect at the time of
purchase.

b. Sales prices should be affordable to households with incomes at 80% AMI
adjusted for household size. Should the project include the creation of a
Homeowners Association ("HOA”), Recipient shall ensure that the sales prices of
the homes and HOA fees combined aré affordable to households with incomes at
80% AMI, f

¢. Inthe event the home is sold during the Affordability Period, the Recipient must
assist the seller in finding a qualified buyer who meets the income requirements
provided herein.

d. At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application.

e. Recipient must provide pre- and post-purchase counseling as specified in the
Recipient’s grant applications, which is' incorporated herein.,

f.  Atleast annually during the Affordability Period, Recipient shall remind homeowners
of the resale limitations placed upon the property.

Property Standards

a. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, ete.

b. Recipient must incorporate all Universql Design elements specified in Recipient’s
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

c. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient’s grant application, which are
incorporated herein. 1

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grarit shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the

< NO281585, 1) 2
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B.2,

B.3.

cC.2

C.3.

organization.

Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

Contract Gompletion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has paid
the final invoice. z

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed FOUR MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS
($4,500,000) “Grant Award". The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as
part of Attachment B, details the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute
the maximum amount to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the
Recipient’s obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget line items include, but are not
limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs
incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Crant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Cantract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1,
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule
o Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.
+ Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the Project
by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in the Draw
Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of the Project.
2) Construction Grant Draw Process

« Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metra.

« Allinvoices shall be sent to: ,pfpayments@nashville.gov

« Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

{NO2B1585.1) 3
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» Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement. Any
invoice not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all
remaining grant funds will expire.

C4. Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It
should detail the outcomes of the activities*funded under this Grant Contract.

C.5.  Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs includec'_l therein.

C.6. Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

C.7.  Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

C.8.  Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

C.9. Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,
and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to
payment, ‘

C.10. Public Meetings, At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

C.11. Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

{N023/ 5851} 4
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D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

D.5.

This project is funded in part by the Barnes Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the
Metropolitan Govermnment of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O’Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by
the appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signhature page of this
Grant,

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default” (1) if such failure is
curable within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days
following written notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature
which cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does
not within such 30- day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or
thereafter does not within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence
and continuity the curing of such failure; Should the Recipient Default under this
Grant Contract or if the Recipient violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro
shall have the right to iImmediately terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient
shall return to Metro any and all grant monies for services or projects under the
grant not performed as of the termination date. The Recipient shall also return to
Metro any and all funds expended for purposes contrary to the terms of the Grant.
Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of any liability to Metro for
damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without
obtaining the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved
subcontractors, the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be
responsible for all work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount
shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages,
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee,
subcontractor, or consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work
contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below
may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund
Competitive Grant assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract
or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for
themselves or those whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or
for one year thereafter.

(NU281585 1) 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

D.9.

Covered Persons include immediate famil§ members of any employee or board
member of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits
through the Metro Housing Trust Fund Ceinpetitive Grant program. Immediate
family ties include (whether by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent
(including stepparent), child (including a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother,
grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no
person shall be excluded from participation'in, be denied benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or
in the employment practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age,
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, orany other classification which is in
violation of applicable laws. The Recipient.shall, upon request, show proof of
such nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all
employees and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or
any designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any
subcontractor of Recipient shall be made ‘available to the Metropolitan Government
for inspection and copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government.
Furthermore, said documents shall be' made available, upon request by the
Metropolitan Government, to any state, fetleral or other regulatory authority and any
such authority may review, inspect and copy such records. Said records include, but
are not limited to, all drawings, plans, specifications, submittals, correspondence,
minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos or other writings or things which
document the grant project, its design an«:il its construction. Said records expressly
include those documents reflecting the cost of construction, including all subcontracts
and payroll records of Recipient. '

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant
contract. The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate
to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of
three (3) full years from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and
documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant
contract, shall be subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable
notice by Metro or its duly appointed representatives. Records shall be maintained
in accordance with the standards outlined in the Metro Grants Manual, The
financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant
to this Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or
Metro's duly appointed representatives during the term of the contract and
throughout the affordability period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting,
or financial records, notes, and other documents pertinent to this grant available for
review by the Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or
Metro's representatives, upon request, during normal working hours.

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later
than July 16 of each year. The progress reflort should summarize activity that
oceurred during the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a
form provided by Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Clase-out Expenditure
and Narrative Report as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the
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D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14.

D.15.

activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the
strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this
agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term,
covenant, condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall
be held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the
appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other
appropriate forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on
the Recipient's employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant
Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this
Grant Contract.

Independent Contractor, Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or
intended to create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro
or to create the relationship of principal and agent between or among the
Recipient and Metro. The Recipient shall not hold itself out in & manner contrary
to the terms of this paragraph. Metro skall not become liable for any
representation, act, or omission of any other party contrary to the terms of this
paragraph. ;

Indemnification and Hold Harmless. )

a. Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents
and employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees
for injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or
intentional acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or
agents, including its sub or independent contractors, in connection with the
performance of the contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and
attorney fees arising from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees
and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, to observe
applicable laws, including, but not limited to, labor laws and minimum wage
laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient
from any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other
document that the Recipient may provide.

c. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure
to fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d. Recipient’s duties under this section shall survive the termination or
expiration of the grant.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are
subject to prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be
avoided by the exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God,
riots, wars, strikes, epidemics or any other similar cause.

{NG261585 1} 7
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D.186.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

D.25.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this
Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant
Contract and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee. The venue for legal action conceming this Grant Contract shall be
in the courts of Davidson County, Tennessee.

Attorney Fees, Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it hecessary
to take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event
Metro prevails; Recipient shall-pay all expenses-of such action including Metro's
attorney fees and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire
understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein,
including all the terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract
supersedes any and all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and
agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be
construed as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be
licensed pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances,
rules, and regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses.
Recipient will obtain all permits, ficenses, and permissions necessary for the -
grant project. §

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any
party thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy
available to it in the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor
and its representatives. :

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of
the parties hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this
contract, neither this contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient
hereunder shall be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without the prior
written consent of Metro. Any such assignment or transfer shall not release
Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice of assignment of any rights to
money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent to the attention of the
Metro Department of Finance,

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a

(N0281585 1} 8
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D.26.

D.27.

{
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement
standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity
in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
controversy in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
controversy or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a
contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach
of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or otter of employmert to be made by or
on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier
subcontractor or a person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a
subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a
breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or
criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from participation in Metropolitan
Government contracts. ‘

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient reduired or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro: :

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commiission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300 :

Nashville, TN 37219 :

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

Habitat for Humanity

Danny Herron, President and CEO

414 Harding P, Suite 100, Nashville, TN 37211
615-254-4663 :
dherron@habitatnashville.org

Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to thg best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds-have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
the Recipient, to any person forinfluencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding
of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any
federal loan, and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally’ appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(N0281585.1} 9
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c. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants,
subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)
and that all subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan
Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

1NO281585 1 10

Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9C09CE17F35

(THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)

(N02815BS.1)

Exhibit Al



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPRO\MRAM SCOPE:

zéter Westerholm, Chair
etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF
44NDS:

enneen Reed, Director
Department of Finance

GRAVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mm? fmos
Assistant Metropolitan Attormey

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND
INSLRANCE:

Balogun Colt

FEEREFor [Risk Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

RECIPIENT:

Habjtat for Hifanity
L
Tiuezg/) eded ot

Sworn to and subscr}t;,gd o befgre me 3
Notary Public, thisA 9 ' ‘day oféﬂaf wf

2025,
‘ Wy,
[Notary Public seal] \\\\:‘;‘)\\;{3_‘.\5!!J.-?{{;éf’fz,,/ _
3 VA%,

S

s ¥ SIATEOF
= ! TENNESSEE §
Z i NOTARY |
2 PUBLIC ¢
1 d

3
gy

/,

7%, €0,
i
{? //,0’ X 5
"‘fff ﬂ””ll%!l}\“ -15’)'

'9!{')‘1 VE :,-‘1_'.“{‘.'5

S

=
\\\' o
P

L TP l""“i."
ISON COUR o

Notary Public 5 | L
<7‘%’/f’£’ (/ VA )U"Z)[f//(y/f / AN

Metropolitan Clerk

My Commission expires _(/ ’?// df // zf))(:’ 2 6;
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ATTACHMENT A
i D
e
}&;@;’*&
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work
Funding Round Number: 15 ,
Organization Name: Habitat for Humanity :
Project Location: 0 Rural Hill Rd. Antioch
Project Type: Homeownership
Grant Award: $4,500,000
Metro Property Award: N/A
Total Number of Units: 27
Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:
<30% AMI 31-60% AMI 61-80% AMI Total
0 3 24 27

Project Summary: Bella Terra 27 represents the second and final phase of a new §3-home
affordable housing development in Antioch. This phase will deliver 27 ENERGY STAR®
Certified single-family homes, to be constructed in 2027 by Habitat for Humanity. These
homes will be sold to income-qualified homebuyers earning at or below 80% of the Area
Median Income (AMI). The entire Bella Terra community is being developed in two phases,
with 26 homes in Phase 1 scheduled for coristruction in 2026. All homes in Phase 2 will be
subject to long-term resale restrictions to ensure lasting affordability and to preserve the
community's affordable housing stock for future generations. Bella Terra 27 builds upon
Habitat's mission to create sustainable, homeownership-centered neighborhoods that

promote stability and opportunity for low- to moderate-income families.
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ATTACHMENT C

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages.are.based.on the Barnes Fund grant.award.

Draw# % of Grant ' Milestone

i

1 25% Site Work - $1,125,000.00 to be drawn upon invoice documentation of costs
incurred

2* 49% Construction Costs - $2,205,000.00 to be drawn upon building permits and
invoice documentation of costs incurred.

Homebuyer Subsidy - $270,000.00 to be drawn upon sale of properties,

£ 6% documented by home buyer closing disclosure and Certificate of Eligibility.
Developer Fee - $900,000.00 to be drawn upon receipt of a Final Use &
4 20% Occupancy letter (100% complete) from Metro Codes for each unit.

*Note: Draws 1, 2, and 4 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with Metro
prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a
reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

X »-L*’)“‘"
» T\ EY A
Bt

Required Documents

The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1.

A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended:;

A statement of the nature and extent of lhe organization's program that
serves the residentls of the metropolitan government;

The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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A 1 E { /
AMENDED AND RESTATED CHARTER TATE e EIVED

OF

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon 48-60-106 of the Tennessee Ncmpﬁ?i‘ T" }; 0 IT
f }j’ !
ATy

Corporation Act, the undersigned corporatlon hereby submits this Amended and Restated
Charter and states as follows:
ARTICLE I
The name of the corporation is Nashville Area Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
ARTI.CLE II
The text of its Amended and Restated Charter is as follows:
1. The name of the corporation is Nashville Area [Iabitat for ITumanity, Inc.
2. This corporation is a public benefit corporation.

3. The street address of the registered office of the corporation is 1006 Eighth
Avenue South, Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37203, and the
registcred agent for the corporation at that office is Danny J. Herron.

4. The street address of the principz;fl office of the corporation is 1006 Eight
Avenue, South, Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37203.

5. The corporation is not for profit.
6. The corporation will not have members.

7. The purposes for which the corporation is organized are to operate exclusively
for charitable, educational and religious purposes within the meaning of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding
section of any future federal tax code, by assisting families in the life-
changing opportunity for purchasing and owning quality, affordable homes
using a team of enthusiastic volunteers and staff guided by Christian values;
and generally to engage in any other lawful endeavor or activity in furtherance
of any of the foregoing purposes.,

8. No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or
be distributable to, its directors, officers, or other private individuals or
persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay
reasonable compensation for goods and services rendered and to make

{T0040077.DOC/ 1 TNS74  TN574-02)
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payments in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the paragraph just above.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Charter, the corporation shall not
carry on any endeavors ot activities not permitted to be carried on by a
corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding section of any future federal
tax code, or by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under
Section 170 (c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding
section of any future federal tax code.

9. Upon dissolution, after all creditors of the corporation have been paid, its
assets shall be distributed to one or more organizations that qualify as exempt
organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed
to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for exclusively
public purposes.

ARTICLE III
The Amended and Restated Charter itseif was duly adopted by the Board of

Directors of the corporation on January 22, 2011.

ARTICLE 1V
This Amended and Restated Charter supersedes the corporation’s original
Charter, any Amended and Restated Charters of the corporation, and all prior

amendments thereto.,
DATED this 22" day of January, 2011

NASHVILLE AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC,

=4 =S

//--’_' I'"_'I 2 -m“;

S =il

o _SAPSL D B3
B e G g - = -.! i 'C,:'j—— - -
Namé: Jack F. King;dr. - = O
Title: Chairman ~2x N AR
Lo, e
Ir ;E =rn
g

ey > )

" o "

[y oo M
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ey
AMENDED AND RESTATED CHARTER TENNE s o -
or DI DEG | 5 5
NASHYILLE AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC. 2 s

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-60-106 of the Iumcssu: {Pml;.ﬂh‘l}t {” ! ; ;
j i o

Corporation Act, the undersigned corporation hereby submits this Amended and Restated 3
\ 1)

Charter and states as follows: n
L

ARTICLL 1 {-}’,
{51

The name of the corporation is Nashville Arca Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
ARTICLE I
The text of its Amended and Restated Charter is as follows:

1. The name of the corporation is Nashville Area Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

o

This corporation i3 a public benefit corporation,

3. The street address of the registergd office of the corporation is 2950 Kraft
Drive, Suite 100, Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37204, and the
registered agent for the corporation at that office is Danny J, Herron.

4. The street address of the principal office of the corporation is 2950 Kraft
Drive, Suite 100, Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37204.

5. The corporation is not for profit.
6. The corporation will not have members.

7. The purposes for which the corporation is organized arc to operate exclusively
for charitable, educational and religious purposes within the meaning of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding
section of any future federal tax code, by assisting families in the life-
changing opportunity for purchasing and owning quality, affordable homes
using a team of enthusiastic volunteers and staff guided by Christian values;
and generally to engage in any other lawful endeavor or activity in furtherance
ol any of the foregoing purposes.

8. No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or
be distributable to, its directors, officers, or other private individuals or
persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay
reasonable compensation for goods and services rendered and to make

(10040077.00C / | INSTAINST4-02) Exhibit A
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Ay H (\f[
payments in furtherance of the pmposcs set forth in the paragraph just abmm OF TE 1[,}?

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Charter, the corporationzgy. }Ibpoi
carry on any endeavors or activitics not permitted to be carried on by a 13 Pl
corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(e)(3) t)lil]lt 5 & 12
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or chrresponding section of any ﬁﬂ(lfkﬂcl 1’4 l G I

tax code, or by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under "' 7" OF g T4

Section 170 (c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding LY
section of any future federal tax code. f%}

i

o

9. Upon dissolution, after all creditors of the corporation have been paid, its ?3
assets shall be distributed to one or more organizations that qualify as exempt 4

organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed
to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for exclusively
public purposes.
ARTICLE I1I
The Amended and Restated Charter itself was duly adopted by the Board of

Directors of the corporation on November 29, 2011,

ARTICLE 1V
This Amended and Restated Charter supersedes the corporation’s original
Charter, any Amended and Restated Charters of the corporation, and all prior

amendments thereto.
DATED this 29th day of November, 2011

NASHVILLE AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC.

gg_,, a/? /\7 )

Namit: Jack E, ng:. 1/
Ptle: Chaum’m
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g nf @fﬂ ) i For Ofﬁce Use
m& o ‘E"k"‘s‘n» “‘lg_ﬁ \ r!. j Jre RIW{‘ I’E{)
i'\‘g‘:%‘“ e ” J E f”" ' oy
',:g« ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT 2
Bepuctment of State TO THE CHARTER HOEC 13 py o, 12
Corporate Filings (Nonprofit) RE
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue Grppel HARME T
6" Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower SECRETA It Y " STATE
Nashville, TN 37243 T
Corporate Control Number (1f Known) 153863 :'f
Pursuant to the provisions of section 48-60-105 of The Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, the undersigned :’,:
corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to its charter: .

; i)
1. Please Insert the name of the corporation as it appears of record: 0

Nashville Area Habitat for Humanity, Inc. - . i
If changing the name, insert the new name on the line below:

2. Please check the block that applies:

Amendment is to be effective when filed by the secretary of state.
[T Amendment is to be eftective, _ (month, day, year)

(Not to he later than the 90th day after the date this document is filed.) If neither block is checked, the amendment will be
effective at the time of filing.

3. Dlease insert any changes that apply:

a. Princlpal address: 2950 Kraft Drive Suite 100 Nashville TN 37204
(Streel) {Cliy) (StalefCounty) {Zip Code)
b. Registered agent:
¢. Registered address: 2980 Kraft Drive Suite 100 Nashville TN 37204
{Slreel) (City) (State/County) (Zip Code)

d. Olher changes:

4, The corporation is a nonprofit corporation,

5. The manner (if not sct forth in the amendment) for Jmplcnmntﬁtlon of any exchange, reclassificalion, or
cancellation of memberships is as follows:

6. The amendment was duly adopted on 11/28/11 (month, day, year)
by (please check the block that applies):

[ The incorporators without niember approval, as such was not required.
The board of directors without member approval, as such was not required.
[J The members

7. Indicate which of the [ollowing slatements applies by checking the applicable block:
[] Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by §48-60-301 of the tennessee nonprofit corporation
act) was not required.
(4] Additional approval for the amendment was required by the char lu and was obtained.

JA[))//J A
Signalure

/r? // ) /QC) [ ) Danny J. HEQ]

Date Name of Signer (typed or printed)

President & Chief Executive Officer
Signer’s Capacity

§5-4416 Filing Fee: $20 RDA 1678
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te of Tenyy
P g, ey .
Ly ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
Bepartment of Sate TO THE CHARTER
Corporate Filings (Nonprofit)

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue
6" Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower
Nashville, TN 37243

Far Office Use Only

St RECEEp

Ak ”.“‘ ot

Ry O f’f‘“’_ [ / :
PRCRETA Ry i Ul

Corporate Control Number (If Known) 153863

corporation adopts the following articies of amendment to its charter:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 48-60-105 of The Tennessee Nonpraofit Corporation Act, the undersigned

1. Please insert the name of the corporation as it appears of record:
Nashville Area Habitat for Humanity, inc. :

If changing the name, insert the new name on the line below:

2. Please check the block that applies: |

Amendment is to be effective when filed by the secretany of state.
[J Amendment is to be effective,

effective at the time of filing. '

(month, day, year)

(Not to be later than the 90th day after the date this document is filed.) If neither block is checked, the amendment will be

3. Please insert any changes that apply: l

a. Principal address:

d. Other changes: See  Article T Seehan 7

(Street) {Clty) (State/County]) (Zip Code)
b. Registered agent: Daunny J. Herron
¢. Registered address: !
(Street) (City) (Slale/County) {Zip Code)

4. The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

cancellation of memberships is as follows:

5. The manner (if not set forth in the amendment) for implementation of any exchange, reclassification, or

6. The amendment was duly adopted on January 22, 2011

by (please check the block that applies):;

[ The incorporators without member approval, as such was not required.
The board of directors without member approval, as such was not required,
[ The members i

(month, day, year)

act) was not required. i

CEO/President

7. Indicate which of the following statements applies by checking the applicable biock:
Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by §48-60-301 of the tennessee nonprofit corporation

OJ Additional approval for the amendment was required by the charter and was obtained.

Signer’s Capacity

Danny J. Herron

(S'ig:auﬁe"(/LgUXﬂS/ G.fu AN

Date Name of Signer (typed or prinfed)

;i‘chmgle 2011

55-4416 Filing Fee: $20

RDA 1678
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3 THDS

. STATE OF TENNESSEE
Tre Hargett, Secretary of State
Division of Business Services

William R. Snodgrass Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th FL
Nashville, TN 37243-1102

NASHVILLE AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC. December 13, 2011
SUITE 100 )

2950 KRAFT DRIVE

NASHVILLE, TN 37204

Filing Acknowledgment

Please review the filing information below and notify our office immediately of any discrepancies.
Control #: 153863 Status:  Active
Filing Type: Corporation Non-Profit - Domestic

Document Receipt

Receipt#: 576209 ’ Filing Fee: $20.00
Payment-Check/MQ - Nashville Area Habitat for Humanity, NASHVILLE, TN $20.00
Amendment Type: Articles of Amendment Image # ;| 6965-1689

Filed Date: 12/13/2011 2:12 PM

This will acknowledge the filing of the attached articles of amendment with an effective date as indicated
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AMENDED AND:RESTATED
Bylaws
of
Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville

ARTICLE I
NAME

Section 1. Name of Corporation. The affairs of the Corporation shall be
conducted using the name Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville ("Habitat” or
"HFHGN”) or such other name or names as the Board of Directors may from time to
time authorize.
ARTICLE I1
PURPOSE

Section 1. Business Purpose. The purpose of Habitat for Humanity of
Greater Nashville is to assist families and individuals in need with the life-changing
opportunity of buying decent, affordable housmg using a team of enthusiastic volunteers
and staff, guided by Christian values. :
ARTICLE III
OFFICES

Section 1. Principal Office. The principal office of the Corporation shall be
located at 414 Harding Place, Nashville, TN 37211. The Corporation may also maintain
offices at such other places as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate
or as the affairs of the Corporation may from time to time require.
ARTICLE IV
MEMBERS

Section 1. Members. The Corporation is to have no members.
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ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Management. All corporate powers shall be exercised by or
under the authority of, and the affairs of the Corporation managed under the direction
of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number. The number of Directors of the Corporation initially shall
be twenty-one (21) and thereafter shall be as fixed from time to time by the Board of
Directors. The number of Directors shall in no event be less than twelve (12).

Section 3. Selection and Term of Office. There shall be a Directors
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of the Outgoing/Past
Chairman, the Incoming/Current Chairman, and the Incoming/Current Vice Chairman.
Successors to members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by the Board currently
in office, as approved and recommended by the Directors Nominating Committee. The
term of each director shall be three (3) years. The Directors shall be divided into three
classes as equal in number as possible. Initially, one class of Directors shall serve for a
perind of one year, one class of Directors shall serve for a period of two years and one
class of Directars shall serve for a period of three years. At each annual meeting of
Directors, each Director elected to succeed a Director whose term expires shall be
elected for a period of three years. Each Director shall hold office for the term for which
the person was elected and until his or her successor has been elected. Members shall
be eligible for re-election for one additional term of three (3) years. At the end of a
second term as a member of the Board of Directors, a person shall not be eligible for re-
election for a period of at least one (1) year. Any member elected to fill an unscheduled
vacancy shall be elected for the remaining portion of the scheduled term of that
vacancy. Should that period of time be less than 1.5 years, such partial term will not
constitute a term of office for purposes of reelection to the Board.

Section 4. Election. Persons nominated for the Board of Directors shall be
elected by a majority vote of the then current members of the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Ex-Officio Members. The President and C.E.O. of HFHGN shall
be an Ex-Officio member of the Board. The President and C.E.O. shall attend Board
meetings at the discretion of the Board and the President and C.E.O. shall have a vote in
the event the members of the Board present at any meeting of the Board shall reach a
tie vote. The President and C.E.O. shall not constitute a member of the Board for
determining the presence of a quorum and.the President and C.E.O. shall not be present
during the Board’s discussion of matters related to the employment of the President and
C.E.O.

Section 6. Removal of Directors. Any Director may be removed without
cause by a vote of two-thirds of the Directaors then in office.
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Section 7. Resignation of a Director. A Director may resign by tendering
notice in writing to the Board of Directors, Chairman or the President and C.E.0. A
resignation shall be effective when notice thereof is so delivered, unless the notice
specifies a later effective date. .

Section 8. Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships. Any vacancy
on the Board of Directors, whether occurring by reason of an increase in the number of
Directors, a vacancy resulting from a removal with or without cause, or by any other
reason, may be filled by a vote of the Directors then in office. If the Directors remaining
in office constitute fewer than a quorum, they may fill the vacancy by the affirmative
vote of all the Directors remaining in office. A Director shall be elected to hold office for
the unexpired term of his or her predecessor, or if there is no predecessor, until the next
regular or special meeting of the Board of Dlrectors designated for the purpose of
electing Directors. .

Section 9. Reliance Upon _Information, Opinions, Reports,

Statements. To the full extent allowed by law, a member of the Board of D|rectors or
a member of any committee of the Board of Directors, shall, in the performance of his or
her duties, be protected in relying in good faith upon information, opinions, reports, or
statements, including financial statements and other financial data, if prepared or
presented by :

(a) one or more Officers or employees of the Corporation whom the Director
reasonably believes to be reliable.and competent in the matters presented;

(b) legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the
Director reasonably believes are W|th|n the person’s professional or expert
competence; or

(c) a committee of the Board of Dlrectors of which he is not a member if the
Director reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.

Section 10. Compensation. Directors, and members of any committee of
the Board of Directors, shall not be entitled to any compensation for their services as
Directors or members of any such committee. Directors and committee members may
be reimbursed under special circumstances for expenses incurred in connection with
their services as Directors or members of a committee. Such reimbursement shall be
approved by a vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 11. Fidelity Bond. The Board of Directors may require any Officer,
employee, or agent of the Corporation to give security for or to execute to the
Corporation a bond in such sum, and with surety or sureties as the Board of Directors
may direct conditioned upon the faithful performance of his or her duties to the
Corporation, including responsibility for negligence and for the accounting for all
property, funds, or securities of the Corporation which may come into his or her hands.

Exhibit A
4890-3313-0850, v. 11



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

ARTICLE VI
MEETINGS

Section 1. Reqular and Special Meetings. The Board of Directors may
provide by resolution for the holding of regular meetings of the Board of Directors, and
may fix the time, place and format thereof. Special meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be held whenever called by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any three (3)
Directors, at such place, date, time and format as may be specified in the notice thereof.
All meetings, whether regular or otherwise, of the Board of Directors shall be
documented by minutes reflecting all business transactions of the Board. The last
regular meeting scheduled in each calendar year shall be designated the annual meeting
of the Board of Directors. Notice of the time and place for such meetings shall be given
in accordance with Section 2, below. The format of the meetings may be in person or
by telephone conference or by video confetence pursuant to Section 9 herein.

Section 2.  Notice. Except as provided below, regular meetings of the Board
of Directors may be held without notice, and special meetings of the Board may be held
upon at least two (2) days notice provided to each Director specifying the date, time,
place and format of the meeting. It the Board of Directors changes the place, date or
time of a regular meeting, notice of such activn shall be given to each Director who was
not present at the meeting at which such action was taken. Any Board action to:
remove a Director; amend the Bylaws; amend the Charter (other than a charter
amendment to: (a) delete the name and address of the initial registered agent or
registered office, if a statement of change is on file with the Secretary of State (b)
change the address of the principal office of the Corporation; or (c) change the
corporate name by substituting the word “corporation,” “incorporated,” “company,”
“limited,” or the abbreviation “corp.,” “inc.,” or “ltd.,” or a similar word or abbreviation in
the name or by adding a geographical attribution to the name); approve a transaction in
which a Director or Officer of the Corporation has a conflict of interest; authorize the
indemnification of a Director, employee or agent of the Corporation; approve a plan of
merger; approve a sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the Corporation’s assets other than in the regular course of activities; or approve a
dissolution of the Corporation requires that each Director be given at least seven (7)
days written notice that the matter will be voted upon at a Directors’ meeting. The
notice of any meeting at which: a Bylaw amendment; charter amendment; plan of
merger; plan for the sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all
of the Corporation’s assets; or plan of dissolution is to be voted upon, must state that
the purpose, or one of the purposes, of the meeting is to consider such proposed
amendment or plan and contain or be accompanled by a copy or summary of each
amendment or plan.

Where reasonable under the circumstances, notice may be either written or oral,
and may be communicated in person, by telephone, by facsimile transmission, by
electronic mail or other form of wire or wireless communication, or by mail or private
carrier. Written notice in a comprehensible form is effective at the earliest of the
following: K
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(a) when received;

(b) three (3) days after its deposit in the United States mail, if mailed correctly
addressed and with first-class postage affixed thereon;

(c) one the date shown on the return receipt, if sent by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, and.if the receipt is signed by or on behalf of
the addressee; or

(d) if transmitted by facsimile transmission or electronic mail, such notice shall
be deemed to have been given (whether or not actually received) on the day
it is transmitted; provided, however, that any notice via facsimile
transmission or electronic mail received after 5:00 p.m. Nashville time shall
be deemed for the purpose of this Section to have been given on the next
business day.

Notice of an adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place to which
such meeting is adjourned are fixed at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken
and if the period of adjournment does not,exceed one (1) month in any one (1)
adjournment. At the adjourned meeting, the Board of Directors may transact any
business which might have been transacted at the original meeting.

Section 3. Waiver of Notice. A Director may waive in writing any notice
required by this Article VI, provided that the waiver must be signed by the Director
entitled to the notice, and must be filed with the minutes or corporate records. A
Director’s attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to him
or her of the meeting unless the Director at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly
upon his or her arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the
meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

Section 4. Quorum and Vote. Except as otherwise provided in this Article
VI, a majority of the number of Directors then:in office shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business of the Corporation, provided that at no time shall a quorum
consist of fewer than fifty per cent (50%) of the Directors duly elected and then serving
in office. If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority
of Directors present is the act of the Board of Directors, except where the vote of a
greater number is required by these Bylaws or by the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation
Act in connection with transactions involving. director and Officer conflicts of interest;
Bylaw amendments; charter amendments; mergers; and the sale, lease, exchange or
other disposition of all or substantially all of the Corporation’s assets other than in the
regular course of activities. When a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, it is
not broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any of those present.

A Director who is present at a meeting, of the Board of Directors when corporate
action is taken is deemed to have assented to the action taken unless:

(a) He or she objects at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon his or
her arrival) to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting;

(b) His or her dissent or abstention from the action taken is entered in the
minutes of the meeting; or
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(c) He or she delivers written notice of his or her dissent or abstention to the
presiding Officer of the meeting before its adjournment or to the
Corporation immediately after adjournment of the meeting. The right of
dissent or abstention is not available to a Director who votes in favor of the
action taken. :

Section 5. Executive Committee. There shall be an Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors, consisting of the elective Officers of the Corporation and the
Past Chairman. The term of the Past Chairman, Chairman and/or Vice Chairman can be
automatically extended beyond the end of the second, three (3) year term to allow
completion of service through the role of Past Chairman. The membership of the
Executive Committee must be approved by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting.
In addition, four other existing members of the Board of Directors will be selected by the
Past Chairman and the elective Officers of the Corporation as At-Large members of the
Executive Committee for a one year term. These At-Large members, in addition to any
member filling a vacancy on the Executive Committee, shall be approved at the next
scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors. Subject to any specific directions or
restrictions given by the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee may exercise all
the authority of the Board of Directors between meetings of the Board of Directors and
majority vote of the members shall control. A majority of the memhers of the Executive
Committee shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting husiness. Meetings
of the Executive Committee may be held by conference telephone call as long as a
quorum is participating simultaneously. Any action required or permitted to be taken at
a meeting of the Executive Committee may be taken without a meeting by consent in
writing, setting forth the action so taken. Written consents and_signatures may be
effected by electronic transmission. If all.committee members consent to taking such
action without a meeting, an affirmative vote of a majority of the Executive Committee,
evidenced by their signatures on such written consent, shall have the same force and
effect as a majority vote at a meeting of the Committee. Any action taken by the
Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next meeting.
The Executive Committee shall not approve dissolution, merger or the sale, pledge, or
transfer of all or substantially all of the Corporation’s assets; elect, appoint, or remove
Directors or fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or on any of its committees; or
amend or repeal the charter of these bylaws or adopt new bylaws.

Section 6. CEQO Compensation and Leadership Succession Committee.
There shall be a CEO Compensation and Leadership Succession Committee consisting of

the elective Officers of the Corporation and chaired by the Secretary. The CEO
Compensation and Leadership Succession Committee shall recommend the
compensation of the CEQ on at least an annual basis, and shall guide Leadership
Succession planning as needed to ensure continuity of the affairs of the organization.

Section 7. Other Committees. The Board of Directors may create such
other committees as may be determined to be helpful in discharging the Board's
responsibilities. Each such committee shall be chaired by a Director, as may be approved
by the Board of Directors, and consist of such persons, whether Directors or others, and
each committee shall perform such functions as may be lawfully assigned to it by the
Board of Directors.
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Section 8. Committee Actions. So far as applicable, the provisions of this
Article VI relating to meetings, notice and waiver of notice of meetings, and quorum
voting requirements of the Board of Directoris shaII apply to the Executive Committee
and other committees as well.

Section 9.  Telephone and Video Conference Board and Committee
Meetings. Members of the Board of Directors, or any committee of the Board of
Directors, may participate in a meeting of 'such Board or committee by means of
conference telephone, video conference or similar communications equipment by means
of which all persons participating in the meeting may simultaneously hear each other
during the meeting, and participation in such a meeting shall constitute presence in
Person at such a meeting.

Section 10. Consent of Directors in Lieu of Meeting. Any action required
or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof

may be taken without a meeting via one of two methods.

In the first method, if all Directors or committee members consent to taking such action
without a meeting, the affirmative vote of the number of Directors or committee
members that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting is the
act of the Board of Directors or committee thereof, as the case may be. Such action
must be evidenced by one (1) or more written consents describing the action taken,
signed by each Director or committee member, and indicating each signing person's
vote or abstention on the action, and such written consent or consents shall be included
in the minutes or filed with the corporate records reflecting the action taken. Written
consents and signatures may be effected by’ electronic transmission. Any action taken
under this Section 10 shall be effective when the last Director or committee member
signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A consent
signed under this Section 10 shall have the effect of a meeting vote and may be
described as such in any document.

As a second method, action may be taken without a meeting if the corporation delivers
a ballot to every member entitled to vote on the matter. The ballot must (1) be in the
form of a document, which may be an electronic transmission including email; (2) set
forth each proposed action; (3) provide an opportunity to vote for, or withhold a vote
for, each candidate for election as a director; and, (4) provide an opportunity to vote for
or against or abstain from each proposed action. Approval by ballot pursuant to this
section is valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the
quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of
approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the
matter at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the
number of votes cast by ballot. All solicitations for votes by ballot must (1) indicate the
number of responses needed to meet theé quorum requirements; (2) state the
percentage of approvals necessary to approve each matter other than election of
directors; and, (3) specify the time by WhICh a ballot must be received in order to be
counted. A ballot may not be revoked. A ballot cast under this Section 10 shall have the
effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document.
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This Section 10 shall not be used to approve dissolution, merger or the sale, pledge, or
transfer of all or substantially all of the Corporation's assets; or amend or repeal the
charter of these Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws.

Section 11. Records. The Board of Directors shall keep permanent records
of all their proceedings. The Corporation shall also maintain appropriate accounting
records. These records and the principal books of the Corporation shall be kept at the
principal office of the Corporation, with the necessary books and records being kept at
such place or places as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. All of
these books and records shall be subject to the inspection of any Director at any
reasonable time of day.

The Corporation shall keep a copy of the following records at its principal office:
(a) the charter or restated charter and all amendments currently in effect; (b) these
Bylaws; (c) a list of the names and businesses or home addresses of its current
Directors and Officers; and (d) its most recent annual report delivered to the Secretary
of State. :

ARTICLE VII
OFFICERS

Section 1. Elective Officers. The Elective Officers of the Corporation shall
be a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer. The Chairman of the
Administration Committee will serve as the Secretary and the Chairman of the Finance
Committee will serve as the Treasurer. The elective Officers shall be elected at the
annual meeting of the Board. Elective Officers shall be members of the Board of
Directors. The elective Officers of the Corporation shall exercise such powers and
perform such duties as are specified in these Bylaws or are from time to time conferred
by the Board of Directors. i

Section 2. Term of Office. Each Officer shall serve at the pleasure of the
Board. The term of office shall be for a period of one year, or until a successor shall
have been elected, or until his or her death, resignation or removal.

Section 3. Removal. Any Officer may be removed from office by the Board
of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation will be
served thereby. Such removal shall not affect the contract rights, if any, of the person
so removed. Appointment of an Officer shall not of itself create contract rights.

Section 4. Vacancies and Absences. Any vacancy in an office from any
cause may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the Board of Directors. In
the case of an absence of any Officer of the Corporation, or for any other reason that
the Board may deem sufficient, the Board may delegate, for the time being, any of the
powers and duties of such Officer to any,other Officer or to any Director, provided a
majority of the then current members of the Board concurs therein.
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Section 5. Chairman. The Chairman_shall serve as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the Executive Committee and shall preside at meetings of those bodies.
The Chairman shall be an Ex-Officio member of all standing committees of the Board.
The Chairman shall have general supervision over the active management of the affairs
of the Corporation, and shall see that all ordets and resolutions of the Board are carried
into effect. The Chairman shall work closely with the President and C.E.O. in matters of
policy, program and administration and shall perform such other duties as the Board of
Directors may from time to time prescribe. The Chairman will become Past Chairman
when the term as Chairman ends. !

Section 6. Vice Chairman. The Vice Chairman, or Vice Chairmen in the
order designated, in the event there be more than one Vice Chairman, shall assist the
Chairman in the duties so assigned, perform the duties and possess and exercise the
powers of the Chairman in the event of the Chairman’s absence or disability, and
perform such other duties as the Board of Directors or the Chairman may from time to
time prescribe. Upon completion of the termas Vice Chairman, the Vice Chairman will
become Chairman for a one year term. ‘

Section 7. Secretary and Assistant Secretaries. The Secretary shall
attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee and record all
votes, attendance at the meetings and the minutes of all proceedings in a book, which
shall be the property of the Corporation, to be kept for that purpose. The Secretary
shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall
keep a record of all members of the Board of. Directors and the address to be used for
each member for purposes of giving notice of meetings. The Secretary shall perform
such other duties as may are generally performed by a secretary of a Corporation and
such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors or the
Chairman. Any Assistant Secretary may, in the absence of the Secretary or in the event
of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform the duties of the Secretary, and when so
acting shall have the powers and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Secretary.

Section 8. Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers. The Treasurer shall have
custody of the Corporation’s funds and securities, shall keep or cause to be kept full and
accurate account of financial transactions in books belonging to the Corporation, and
shall deposit or cause to be deposited all moneys and other valuable effects in the name
and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the
Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of
the Corporation as required in the ordinary course of business or as may be ordered by
the Board, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
Chairman and Directors at the regular meetings of the Board, or whenever they may
require it, an account of all financial transactions and the financial condition of the
Corporation. The Corporation shall procure a bond or bonds covering the Treasurer and
others appropriate in amounts satisfactory to the Board of Directors.

The Treasurer shall also perform such other duties as are generally performed by
a treasurer of a corporation and such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or the Chairman. Any Assistant Treasurer may, in the event of his or her
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inability or refusal to act, perform the duties of the Treasurer, and when so acting shall
have the powers and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Treasurer.

Section 9. Appointive Officers. The Board of Directors shall appoint a
President and C.E.O., who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. The President and
C.E.O. shall be responsible to the Board and shall supervise the affairs of the
organization on a day-to-day basis. The President and C.E.Q. shall serve as advisor to
the Chairman and Committees of the Board, and shall assemble information and data
and cause to be prepared regular and special reports as directed. The President and
C.E.O. shall be an Ex-Officio member of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee
and of all committees.

The President and C.E.O. shall be responsible for hiring, directing, discharging
and supervision of all employees. The Président and C.E.O. may assign titles such as
Vice President to one or more employees. The President and C.E.O. shall be responsible
for the preparation of regular reports covering all activities of the organization, subject
to approval of the Board of Directors. The:President and C.E.O. shall also be responsible
for all expenditures with approved budget allocation. The President and C.E.O. and
other HFHGN employees shall not be eligible to serve as an Officer of the Board.

ARTICLE VIIX
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. General. The Corporation shall have the power to indemnify any
person authorized by the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, as the same may be
amended from time to time, in the manner prescribed therein, to the full extent allowed
thereby.

Section 2. Indemnification.” A Director of the Corporation shall not be
liable to the Corporation for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a
director; provided, however, that this provision does not eliminate or limit the liability of
a Director for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct
or a knowing violation of law. =

Section 3. Indemnification Not Exclusive. The Corporation shall indemnify
each present and future Director and Officer of the Corporation, and his or her heirs,
executors and administrators, to the full .extent allowed by the laws of the State of
Tennessee, both as now in effect and as hereafter adopted.

To the extent permitted by the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, as
amended, the rights of indemnification provided in this Article VIII shall be in addition to
any rights to which any such Director, Officer, employee, or other person may otherwise
be entitled by contract or as a matter of law.

Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation shall have the power by action of the
Board of Directors to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a Director, Officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation, or who, while a Director,
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Officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation, is or was serving at the request of the
Corporation as a corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan, or
other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or incurred by him in any such
capacity or arising out of his status as a Director, Officer, employee, or agent, whether
or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such
liability.

ARTICLE IX
CORPORATE ACTIONS

Section 1.  Contracts. Unless otherwise required by these Bylaws or the
Board of Directors, the President and C.E.O. shall execute contracts or other
instruments, on behalf of and in the name of the Corporation including, but not limited
to, the execution of deeds, purchase or sale contracts, and other documents in
connection with the purchase or conveyance of real property or other assets of the
Corporation. In the event that the President and C.E.O. is unavailable to execute
contracts or other instruments, any of the Elective Officers of the Board in conjunction
with the Chief Administrative Officer of the Corporation, may execute contracts and
instruments in the ordinary course of business. The Board of Directors may from time
to time authorize any other Officer or Offi cers or agent or agents to enter into any
contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation as it
may deem appropriate, and such authority may be general or confined to specific
instances. 3

Section 2. Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation
and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the
Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 3. Voting Securities Held by the Corporation. Unless otherwise
required by the Board of Directors, the President and C.E.O. shall have full power and
authority on behalf of the Corporation to attend any meeting of security holders, or to
take action on written consent as a security holder, of other corporations in which the
Corporation may hold securities. In connection therewith the President and C.E.O. shall
possess and may exercise any and all rights and powers incident to the ownership of
such securities which the Corporation possesses. The Board of Directors may, from time
to time, confer like power upon any other person or persons and may revoke any such
powers as granted at its pleasure.

ARTICLE X

FISCAL YEAR
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Section 1. Fiscal Year and Leadership Year. The fiscal year of the
Corporation shall be fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time, subject to
applicable law. The leadership year of the Corporation shall be determined by the Board
of Directors and in the absence of such determination shall be the calendar year.

ARTICLE XI

CORPORATE SEAL i

‘
i

Section 1. Corporate Seal. TH_,e corporate seal, if any, shall be in such form
as shall be approved from time to time by the Board of Directors.

4890-3313-0850, v. 11 Exhibit A
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ARTICLE XII
DEPOSITORIES

Section 1. Depositories. The Board of Directors shall have the power to
select depositories for the funds of the Corporation and power to direct the method and
manner of signing checks, notes, and other instruments binding on the Corporation.

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Amendments to Bylaws. Except as otherwise required by law,

these Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the Board of
Directors, if notice of the proposed alteration |s‘ contained in the notice of the meeting.

ARTICLE XIV
INVALIDITY

Section 1. Invalidity. In the event any provision of these Bylaws is found
invalid under the laws of the State of Tennessee or other competent jurisdiction, the
invalid provision or provisions shall be deemed to be altered in such manner as is
necessary to conform to the prevailing law. Notwithstanding such alterations, as may
be necessary, all other provisions of these Bylaws shall remain in effect as written.

ARTICLE XV
AUTHORITY

Section 1.  Authority. Roberts Rules of Order (latest revision) shall govern
the meetings of the Board of Directors and committees of the Corporation in all cases in
which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws.

Adopted September 26, 2024

Hi

By Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville Board of Directors
Laura Smlt:}f Chair

':éi_.
Signature: v %w“‘#”z
Date: 7. 27-202 Y

\\h

By: Lavvea. Smith “‘” 'f\[éra;y Sngnaturi/ /{()(/W r\ (A) (0

. o - Clay \‘\\ ey b
Title: ard v S . Date : - 27 e/u/
3 TENNEFSSEE ::'_'-
- NOTARY -
‘,, PUBRLIC :
‘., hqés‘émgfqggé?emoms TN574-02}13

4890-3313-0850, v.10

WA
4890-3313-0850, v. 14 " Prigat
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y’ IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Rovenue Service

041416

P.0. Box 2508, Room 4010 In reply refer to: 4077350282
Cincinnati OH 45201 Nov. 06, 2017 LTR 4168C 0
58-1636286 000000 00
00020535
BODC: TE

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER
NASHVTLLE

% DANNY HERRON EXE

414 HARDING PL STE 100
NASHVILLE TN 37211-4581

Emplover ID Number: 58-1636286
Form 990 required: Yes v
iy N =
Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour request dated Oct. 09, 2017, regarding
vour tax-exempt status.

We issued vou a determination letter in April 1995, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Secliun 501(c)

(03).

Our records also indicate vou're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509(a) because vou're described in IRC Sections
509Ca)(1) and 170(b) (1) CA)(vi). .
Donors can deduct contributions they make to vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522. g

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether you must file an

annual information return. If a return is required, you must file Form
990, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 15th day of the fifth month after
the end of your annual accounting period. IRC Section 6033(j) provides
that, if vou don't file a required annual information return or notice
for three consecutive vears, yvour exempt status will be automatically
revoked on the filing due date of the third required return or notice.

For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or
call 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If vou have questions, call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,

local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Time).
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4077350282
Nov. 06, 2017 LTR 4168C 0
58-1636286 000000 0O
00020536

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER
NASHVILLE

% DANNY HERRON EXE

%14 HARDING PL STE 100
NASHVILLE TN 37211-4581

Sincerely vours,

ppothat a . mohla

Stephen A. Martin
Director, EO Rulings & Agreements
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Statement of the nature and extent of Habifat for Humanity of Greater Nashville’s program
that serves the residents of the metropolitan government

June 16, 2025

Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville (“Nashville Habitat”) is dedicated to its mission of
bringing people together to build homes, communities, and hope. Habitat is a developer, home
builder, educator, mortgage banker, and local employer. Established in 1985, Nashville Habitat has
continually focused on building high-quality, energy-efficient, affordable homes, sold to
individuals who meet the qualifications and complete the rigorous homeownership program,
financed with a 0% mortgage loan originated by Habitat. The Habitat program creates a
transformation that shares, lifts, and inspires, evolving from engaging partnerships with
corporate, faith, entertainment, foundation, and government entities. Additionally, Habitat
operates a social enterprise, the ReStore, providing employment, volunteering, shopping and
donating opportunities, with net proceeds reinvested in the Habitat mission in the local
community. Although Habitat Nashville serves a 5-county area in Middle Tennessee, our primary
Impact Is In Davidson Courity, given vur 40 years of service here, as outlined below.

Developer/Homebuilder

Nashville Habitat develops homeownership communities, building and selling affordable homes
to people with incomes at or below 80% AMI. Nashville Habitat purchases vacant land throughout
Davidson County to develop into building lots for affordable single-family homes, providing
approximately 26 families a year to purchase and own their own affordable home in Davidson
County. Once developed, the property’s value increases along with the metropolitan
government’s base for property taxes paid by homeowners. Homes are built to Universal Design
standards and are sustainable from the ground up, with Habitat having earned 14 consecutive
ENERGY STAR® awards for building excellence.,

Homeownership and Homeowners

Thanks to the generosity of local, state, and federal partners, including the Barnes Fund, along
with contributions from businesses, faith communities, and individual supporters, Nashville
Habitat has helped over 910 families including a total of nearly 3,100 family members achieve
homeownership in Davidson County, TN since inception in 1985. Habitat homes are not free.
Habitat homes are sold to individuals and families with a 0% APR mortgage originated by Habitat,
made possible through the support of our funding partners and volunteer corps. Davidson
County Habitat homeowners in aggregate pay property taxes of approximately $1.5 million
annually.

Habitat’s impact resonates throughout metropolitan Davidson County, as its homeownership
opportunities touch the lives of individuals who hold jobs in a wide variety of fields critical to our
dynamic city, including teachers, school bus drivers, other government employees, healthcare
aides, hospitality workers, musicians, and countless others who are vital to the community but
struggle to keep up with rising housing costs.

Exhibit A
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Educator

Future Habitat homeowners must apply for Habitat's homeownership program, meet income
qualifications, attend education classes, and work with their sponsor(s) and volunteers to build
their homes. Future homeowners also volunteer at the Habitat ReStore, explained below.

The Habitat homeownership program includes 200 hours of classroom education and volunteer
work to prepare homebuyers for successful homeownership. The classroom topics span from
financial lessons using FDIC’s MoneySmart program to topics including budgeting, home
maintenance, and the legal aspects of homeownership. This up-front education helps to position
Habitat homeowners for long-term homeownership success, as evidenced by Habitat
Nashville’s delinquency rate which routinely runs below 3%.

Retailer

Habitat ReStores sell new and gently used building supplies and home furnishings to the public
across 3 locations, The reuse benefit of the ReStore saves more than 1,500 tons of materials
from city landfills annually. Nashville’s ReStore is celebrating its 20t" anniversary this year and its
8" year in its own building at the intersection of Nolensville Pike and Harding Place. In 2017,
Nashville Habitat purchased a former Kmart location which had been vacant for 4 years and
renovated it, contributing to the redevelopment of the Nolensville Road corridor. The Nashville
ReStore has over 30,000 square feet of shopping space and generates $ 3 million in annual sales.

Employer

Habitat Nashville employes over 60 people in Davidson County year-round. Employees work in a
variety of jobs in the ReStore, at the build sites and in the central office. Habitat Nashville has
recently joined Nashville Living Wage and follows the associated pay practices, offering a
minimum wage of $19.20 per hour.

Exhibit A
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™ Cherry Bekaert"

Your Gulde Forwar

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Board of Directors
Habitat for Hurnanily of Grealer Nashville
Nashville, Tennessee

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville ("Habitat")
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Habitat as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits In accordance with audlting standards generally accepted in lhe Uniled Slales of
Amnerica. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Habitat and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Habitat's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

chincom | Exhibit A
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Habitat's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Habitat's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that
we identified during the audit.

C%«A? Bekaart L LK

Tysons, Virginia
December 9, 2024
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents, including escrow account‘s
of $254,500 and $287,821, respectively 10,422,872 13,119,974
Grants receivable 2,911,683 1,293,038
Sponsor and other receivables, net of allowance
of $85,030 and $70,978, respectively 715,406 128,655
Inventory - ReStores and other 1,169,702 854,761
Construction-in-progress - new homes 6,070,887 3,950,259
Land held for development 10,176,842 7,610,406
Mortgage notes receivable, net of discounts
of $29,081,359 and $26,813,359, respectively 37,579,754 34,625,415
New Markets Tax Credit intangible assets, net 55,533 90,094
New Markets Tax Credit joint venture investment 2,307,652 2,307,652
New Markets Tax Credit joint venture cash 36,787 50,556
Right-of-use assets 487,815 363,251
Olher assets 441,965 343,918
Property and equipment, net 14,111,728 11,465,768
Total Assets 86,488,626 76,203,747
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,654,621 2,728,872
Deferred revenue 2,207,572 2,896,165
‘Escrow accounts 2,445 33,831
Notes payable, secured by mortgages, net of unamortized discount 20,424,401 18,486,618
Note payable, secured by real property 8,976,618 5,626,754
Notes payable, unsecured 398,507 329,986
New Markets Tax Credit joint venture note payable,
net of issuance costs 3,134,336 3,127,529
Lease llabillties 501,281 370,122
Unearned revenue on mortgage loans 4,283,166 4,296,348
Total Liabilities 43,582,947 37,796,225
Net Assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions 25,718,926 23,196,012
Net assets with donor restrictions 17,186,753 15,211,510
Total Net Assets 42,905,679 38,407,622
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 86,488,626 76,203,747

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

3
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and Revenue:
Transfers to homeowners $ 8,777,640 $ - % 8,777,640
Grant income ’ 4,607,973 175,000 4,782,973
Contributions 3,545,268 688,947 4,234,215
ReStore sales 3,613,536 - 3,613,536
Mortgage loan discount amortization 1,543,269 - 1,543,269
Contribution from discount on notes payable issued - 2,365,079 2,365,079
Other income 979,314 - 979,314
Contributions of nonfinancial assets 4,207,736 - 4,207,736
Interest income 416,334 - 416,334
New Markets Tax Credit investment income 23,192 - 23,192
. 27,714,262 3,229,026 30,943,288
Net assets released from restrictions 1,253,783 (1,253,783) -
Tota! Support and Revenue ' 28,968,045 1,975,243 30,943,288

Expenses:

Program services 23,791,758 - 23,791,758
Supporting services 2,653,373 - 2,653,373
Total Expenses 26,445,131 - 26,445,131
Change in net assets 2,522,914 1,975,243 4,498,157
Net assets, beginning of year 23,196,012 15,211,510 38,407,522
Net assets, end of year $ 25718926 §$ 17,186,753 $ 42,905,679

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

4
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and Revenue:
Transfers to homeowners $ 5561,950 § - % 5,561,950
Grant income 3,276,137 31,500 3,307,637
Contributions 3,957,742 172,657 4,130,399
ReStore sales 3,556,346 - 3,556,346
Mortgage loan discount amortization 1,447,206 - 1,447,206
Contribution from discount on notes payable issued - 1,802,866 1,802,866
Other income 431,646 - 431,646
Contributions of nonfinancial assets 3,688,802 - 3,688,802
Interest income 327,930 . 327,930
New Markets Tax Credit investment income 23,192 - 23,192
22,270,951 2,007,023 24,277,974
Net assets released from restrictions 1,013,360 (1,013,360) -
Total Support and Revenue 23,284,311 993,663 24,277,974

Expenses:

Program services 18,546,469 - 18,546,469
Supporting services 2,637,718 - 2,637,718
Total Expenses 21,184,187 - 21,184,187
Change in net assets 2,100,124 993,663 3,093,787
Net assets, beginning of year 21,095,888 14,217,847 35,313,735
Net assets, end of year $ 23196012 $ 15211510 $ 38,407,522

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
5
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

i 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities: .
Change in net assets $ 4,408,157 § 3,093,787
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash flows used in operating activities:
Contribution of land held for development - (61,000)
Contribution from discount on notes payable issued (2,365,079) (1,802,866)
Transfers to homeowners (4,639,709) (3,052,839)
Depreciation and amortization 463,373 401,159
. Bad debt expense i 14,983 17,052
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (680,153) -
Noncash lease expense 18,954 16,663
Mortgage loan discount amortization (1,543,269) (1,447,205)
Amortization of discount on notes payable and issuance costs 944,488 855,749
New Markets Tax Credit investment income allocation (23,192) (23,192)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable : (1,618,645) (381,739)
Sponsor and other receivables (601,734) (37,853)
Construction-in-progress - new homes (2,120,628) 387,963
Land held for development . (2,628,578) (2,403,448)
Inventory - ReStores and other i (314,941) (17,211)
Other assets . (98,047) (36,608)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 925,749 739,946
Deferred revenue (688,593) (697,867)
Escrow accounts (31,386) 993
Net cash flows from operating activities (10,488,250) (4,448,516)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (3,230,727) (929,839)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 898,250 -
Mortgage payments received ‘ 3,215,457 3,462,469
New Markets Tax Credit joint venture investment net distribution 23,192 23,192
Net cash flows from investing activities 906,172 2,555,822
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 9,350,665 4,294,676
Principal payments on lease liabilities (12,359) (9,792)
Repayments on notes payable (2,467,099) (2,5645,823)
Net cash flows from financing activities 6,871,207 1,739,061
Net change in cash, cash equivalents, and NMTC joint venture cash (2,710,871) (153,633)
Cash, cash equivalents, and NMTC joint venture cash, begihning of year 13,170,530 13,324,163
Cash, cash equivalents, and NMTC joint venture cash, end ‘(‘)f year $ 10,459,659 $ 13,170,530
Cash and cash equivalents, including escrow accounts, end of year $ 10422872 $ 13,119,974
New Markets Tax Credit joint venture cash, end of year 36,787 50,556
$ 10459659 $ 13,170,530

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-BA69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 1—Organization and purpose

Habitat for Humanity of Greater Nashville (“Habitat” or “Organization”), a nonprofit corporation, was chartered by
the state of Tennessee on March 26, 1986. Habitat is an affiliate of Habitat for Humanity International, Inc.
(“Habitat International”), a nondenominational Christian nonprofit organization whose purpose is to create decent,
affordable housing for those in need and to make decent shelter a matter of conscience with people everywhere.
Although Habitat International assists with information, resources, training, publications, prayer support, and in
other ways, Habitat is primarily and directly responsible for its own operations.

Note 2—Summary of significant accounting policies

Financial Statement Presentation — The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with standards of accounting and reporting prescribed for not-for-profit
organizations. Under these standards, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based
on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donar-impased stipulations and
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of Habitat. These net assets may be
used at the discrotion of Habitat'e management and the Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors.
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of Habitat or by the
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds
be maintained in perpetuity. Net assets with donor restrictions represent unamortized discount on notes
payable, contributions receivable, and amounts available for programs.

Contributions — Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Habitat that is, in
substance, unconditional. Contributions with donor restrictions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions based on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions
are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. Contributed land and equipment are recorded at estimated
fair value at the date of the donation. Contributions of nonfinancial assets (primarily Restore inventory, construction
materials, and land for development) are recorded based on their estimated value on the date of receipt.

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated labor by unskilled volunteers as no
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a substantial number of volunteers
have donated significant amounts of their time to Habitat's program services.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their net realizable
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present
value of estimated, future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using an interest rate applicable
to the year in which the promise is received. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution revenue.
Conditional promises to give are not included as support until such time as the conditions are substantially met.
Habitat determines an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience, an assessment of economic
conditions, and a review of subsequent collections.

Grants received from governmental agencies are generally recognized as related costs are incurred.

Income Taxes — Habitat is exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC")
and is not a private foundation. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 2—Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Habitat follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
organization’s financial statements. This guidance prescribes a minimum probability threshold that a tax position
must meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum threshold is defined as a tax position
that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution
of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be
recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Habitat has no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2024 or 2023.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP") requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses and
allocation of functional expenses during the reporting perlod Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Habitat considers all highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Liquidity — Assets are presented in the accompanying statements of financial position according to their nearness
of conversion to cash and cash equivalents and liabilities are presented according to their maturing resuiting in
use of cash and cash equivalents.

Home Sales and Mortgage Notes Receivable — Transfers to homeowners are recorded at the gross amount of
payments to be received over the lives of the mortgage notes receivable. These mortgage payments do not
include interest and, accordingly, the mortgages have been discounted at various interest rates based upon
prevailing market rates at the inception of the mortgages. Discounts are amortized over the lives of the mortgages.
The discounted value of mortgages at the time of sale is generally less than the home's fair market value.
Therefore, management believes losses resulting from non-payment of mortgages are not reasonably probable
and, accordingly, no allowance for credit loss for mortgage notes receivable has been recorded. Past due status
is based on contractual terms of the mortgage notes receivable. At 120 days past due, the mortgage notes
receivable become subject to foreclosure. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no foreclosures.

Unearned revenue on mortgage notes receivable represents the discounted value of non-interest bearing second
and third mortgage loans issued on Habitat homes. The homeowner is required to sign one or more additional
mortgages for the difference between the estimated fair market value of the home and the payable mortgage
balances as of the transfer date. Certain of these mortgages are fully forgiven if the homeowner lives in the home
for a certain period of time and complies with all other covenants and restrictions per the deed of trust. In the event
the homeowner does not comply with these restrictions, the mortgage balance will be recognized as income at
the time it is collected. Habitat generally does not foresee collection of the non-payable second and third mortgage
loans except in the event of sale, refinance, or foreclosure of the home.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment is reported at cost at the date of purchase or at fair market
value at the date of gift. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets which range from 3 to 39 years.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 2—Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Land Held for Development — Land held for development consists of land and improvements to be utilized as lots
for future Habitat homeowners. Casts incurred to improve land are capitalized when incurred. Interest incurred on
related debt during the construction period is capitalized as incurred. The total allocated cost of each lot is charged
to construction-in-progress upon commencement of building activities.

Inventory — Inventory consists primarily of donated home furnishings and building and home improvement
materials which are sold in the ReStores. In-kind inventory is recorded at its estimated market value when
received.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue consists of deposits received on conditional promises to give from
sponsors of future home building and totaled $2,207,572 and $2,896,165 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Grant Income — Grant funds are earned and reported as revenue when Habitat has incurred expenses in compliance
with the specific restrictions of the grant agreement. Grant funds that are restricted for use in home construction are
reflected as unrestricted revenue since these funds are generally received and spent during the same year.

Pragram Services — Program services include construction, ReStore operations, homeowner support, and
educational ministries, and the discounts on mortgage originations. The cost of home building is charged to program
services upon transfer to the homeowner. Program services include the cost of new homes transferred, which have
an average cost of $248,815 and $235,933 for the years ended Junc 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Advertising — Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $60,164 and
$42,819 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs — Costs relating to the issuance of notes payable are amortized to interest expense over the
term of the debt, using the straight-line method. The unamortlzed amount is presented as a reduction of long-term
debt on the statements of financial position. |
Functional Allocation of Expenses — The costs of providing program and supporting services have been reported on
a functional basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. While most costs have been directly assigned to a functional
category, certain joint costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services benefited. Such
allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. Expenses that are allocated consist primarily of
salaries and wages expenses which was allocated based on time and effort.

Leases — Habitat follows Flnancial Accountings Standards Board (“FASB") Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU") 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires that Habitat recognize right-of-use ("“ROU") assets and lease
liabilities for operating leases on the statement of financial position. Leased property meeting certain criteria is
capitalized and the present value of the related Iease payments is recorded as a liability. Amortization of
capitalized leased assets is computed using the stralght line method over the term of the lease. The ROU assets
recorded by Habitat were $487,815 and $363,251 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements — In June 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326). This ASU was intended to improve financial reporting by requiring earlier
recognition of credit losses on loans and other financial assets carried at amortized cost, which includes trade
receivables. Habitat adopted this standard effective July 1, 2023, using the modified retrospective approach. Since
Habitat already discounts material receivables subject to Accounting Standards Codification Topic 326, as of
June 30, 2024, adoption of the new standard did not materially impact Habitat's financial statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 2—Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent Events — Habitat evaluated subsequent events through December 9, 2024, when these financial
statements were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any significant events that occurred subsequent
to the statement of financial position date but prior to the filing of this report that would have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Note 3—Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when Habitat transfers the promised goods or services to a customer in an amount that reflects
consideration that is expected to be received for those goods and services.

Performance Obligations and Revenue Recognition — A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer
a distinct good or service to the customer and is the unit of account. The transaction price is allocated to each distinct
performance obligation and recognized as revenue, when, ot as, the performance obligation is satisfied. The contract
obligation for transfers to homeowners and ReStore sales is generally satisfied at the time these services are provided
or when a good is transferred to the customer. !

Home Sales — A portion of the Habitat's revenue is derived from home sales during the year. Due to the nature of
contracts, there is no variable consideration and only one performance obligation. Such revenue is conditioned
upon meeting a certain performance obligation, and amounts received are recognized as revenue once the
requirement has been met. Once construction is complete on a home and closing procedures have been
completed, buyers take possession of the home and the performance obligation is considered to have been met.
Each house sold has a defined purchase price. Contracts are considered to have commercial substance as they
all involve a cash down payment and a signed promissory note, which is paid in accordance with the note terms.
This is shown as transfers to homeowners on the accompanying statements of activities.

ReStore Sales — A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from ReStore sales during the year. Such
revenue is conditioned upon meeting one performance obligation, the sale transaction is completed at a ReStore
location, and amounts received are recognized as revenue once the sale has been made. Once the sale is made,
customers take possession of the goods purchased. These transactions are considered to be contracts with
customers as they have commercial substance through the transaction of cash payment in return for the goods
purchased. Due to the nature of these transactions, there is no variable consideration and only one performance
obligation.

Note 4—Liquidity and availability of resources

Habitat regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments, while also
striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet
general expenditures over a 12-month period, Habitat considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of
bringing people together to build homes, communities, and hope, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to
support those activities to be general expenditures.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9CO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 4—Liquidity and availability of resources (continued)

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of the statements of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30:

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, less escrow accounts
Grants receivabie due in one year
Sponsor and other receivables

Total financial assets, at year-end
Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within
one year, due to:
Net assets with donor restrictions
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year ’

Note 5—Granis receivablie

A summary of grants receivable as of June 30 Is as follows:

Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency
Habitat for Humanity of Tennessee

Habitat for Humanity International

Employee Retention Credit receivable
Foundations and other

Note 6—Sponsor and other receivables

2024 2023
10,168,372 12,832,153
2,911,683 1,293,038
665,364 111,632
13,745,419 14,236,823
(902,460) (358,238)
12,842,959 13,878,585
2024 2023
- 224,345
1,090,296 -
- 132,770
740,021 740,021
1,081,366 195,902
2,911,683 1,293,038

Habitat has included unconditional promises to give in'sponsor and other receivables. Unconditional promises to

give consist of the following at June 30:

Unconditional promises to give
Less allowance for uncollectible contributions

Net unconditional promises to give
Less amounts receivable in less than one year, net

Receivable in one to five years, net

13

2024 2023
800,436 199,633
(85,030) (70,978)
715,406 128,655
(715,406) (128,655)
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9CO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 7—Construction-in-progress — new homes

A summary of new home construction activity for 2024 is as follows:

Number Costs
New homes under construction, June 30, 2023 37 $ 3,950,259
Additional costs incurred on beginning inventory 5,067,415
New homes started in 2024 29 4,766,467
New homes closed in 2024 (31) (7,713,254)
New homes under construction, June 30, 2024 35 $ 6,070,887
Note 8—Property and equipment
A summary of property and equipment as of June 30 is as follows:
2024 2023
Land and land improvements $ 4644203 § 4,644,203
Buildings 10,242,779 5,625,407
Office equipment 783,694 488,517
Leasehold improvements 99,675 57,502
Vehicles and trailers 695,023 624,902
ReStore construction in progress B 2,345,021
Other 309,547 324,334
16,774,921 14,009,886
Less accumulated depreciation (2,663,193) (2,544,118)

$ 14,111,728 $ 11,465,768

Note 9—Land held for development

Land held for development consists of real property and incurred development costs for the purpose of future
home construction. Land held for development consists of the following by area at June 30:

2024 2023
Hamilton Hills $ 1,317,436 $ 1,316,936
Bella Terra 1,700,423 1,631,144
Village by the Creek . - 2,475,381
Wilson County - Hunters Point 350,000 333,892
Dickson County 67,952 96,254
Cheatham County 118,673 62,142
Sherwood Homes at Park Preserve 1,245,084 652,299
Parkwood Collaboration 663,430 935,935
Robertson County 11,453 -
Stoney Brook 4,495,868 -
Wilson County - South Maple 206,523 206,423

$ 10,176,842 $ 7,610,406
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 10—Mortgage notes receivable

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, Habitat holds mortgage notes receivable totaling $66,661,113 and $61,438,774,
respectively, at face value generally with original maturities of 30 years. The notes are non-interest bearing
mortgages, payable in equal monthly installments, and are secured by deeds of trust on the properties. The notes
have been discounted at various interest rates ranging from 4.5% to 9.0% over the lives of the mortgages.
Mortgages are reported net of unamortized discount.

Mortgage notes receivable and the related discount are summarized as follows at June 30:

2024 2023
First mortgages $ 49581190 $ 45915486
Second mortgages 14,283,367 12,983,149
Third mortgages 2,786,556 2,540,139
Fourth mortgages 10,000 -
66,661,113 61,438,774
Less unamortized discount (29,081,359) (26,813,359)

$ 37,579,754 $ 34,625,415

Following is a table which includes an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due mortgage notes
receivable as of June 30: )

2024 2023
31 - 60 days past due $ 866,681 $ 466,965
61 - 90 days past due 430,844 344,315
Greater than 90 days past due ; 240,539 85,164
Total past due 1,538,064 896,444
Current 65,123,049 60,542,330

$ 66661113 § 61,438,774

Principal payments due on mortgage notes receivable are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2025
2026 $ 2,444,812
2027 2,735,949
2028 2,778,666
2029 2,780,722
Thereafter (including non-paying second and 2,767,322
third mortgages of $5,293,013) 53,153,642
Notes receivable at face value 66,661,113
Less unamortized discount (29,081,359)

$ 37,579,754
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Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9CO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 11—New Market Tax Credits intangible assets

Habitat incurred $27,125 in guarantor fees, $13,333 in audit fees, $64,400 in asset management fees, and
$26,250 in consulting fees related to its New Markets Tax Credit ("NMTC"} financing in December 2017, to be
amortized over seven years, the period to which the assets apply. Habitat incurred $13,971 in qualified active low
income community business ("QALICB”) services, $20,000 in audit fees, $53,554 in asset management fees, and
$23,284 in consulting fees related to its NMTC financing in June 2020, to be amortized over seven years, the
period to which the assets apply. The intangible assets represent fees paid to the third party administrator in the
transaction, who is responsible for ensuring Habitat performs and complies with all aspects of the transaction

requirements.

As of June 30, the balances of NMTC intangible assets and accumulated amortization are as follows:

2024 2023

QALICB guarantor fee $ 41,096 $ 41,096
CDE audit fee 33,333 33,333
Asset management fee 117,954 117,954
Consulting fee 49,534 49,534

Total NMTC intangible assets ' 241,917 241,917
Accumulated NMTC amortization (186,384) (151,823)

NMTC intangible assets, net $ 55,533 $ 90,094

In December 2017, Habitat invested, along with five other Habitat affiliates, in a partnership, Harbor Habitat
Leverage Il, LLC ("HHL"), with 16.6667% ownership to take advantage of NMTC financing. Habitat invested a
combination of cash and construction in progress totaling $1,207,410, enabling it to secure a 20-year loan in the
amount of $1,715,000 payable to Harbor Community Fund XlII, LLC ("HCF”), a community development entity.
The loan proceeds are to be used solely for the purpose of constructing and selling qualified housing properties
to low-income residents.

The investment in partnership is accounted for using the equity method and the carrying amount of the investment
is increased for Habitat's proportionate share of the joint venture's earnings and decreased for Habitat's
proportionate share of the joint venture's losses.

The activity of the NMTC joint venture investment during the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2024 2023
Beginning balance $ 1,201,374 $ 1,201,374
Distributions received (12,074) (12,074)
Share of income 12,074 12,074

Ending balance $ 1,201,374  § 1,201,374

In June 2020, Habitat invested, along with three other Habitat affiliates, in a partnership, HHL, with 25% ownership
to take advantage of NMTC financing. Habitat invested a combination of cash and construction in progress totaling
$1,111,837, enabling it to secure a 20-year loan in the amount of $1,521,250 payable to HCF, a community
development entity. The loan proceeds are to be used solely for the purpose of constructing and selling qualified
housing properties to low-income residents.

The investment in partnership is accounted for using the equity method and the carrying amount of the investment
is increased for Habitat's proportionate share of the joint venture's earnings and decreased for Habitat's

proportionate share of the joint venture’s losses.
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Docusign Envelope ID: SA1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 11—New Market Tax Credits intangible assets (continued)

The activity of the NMTC joint venture investment durin:g the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2024 2023
Beginning balance i $ 1,106,278  $ 1,106,278
Distributions received (11,118) (11,118)
Share of income 11,118 11,118
Ending balance $ 1,106,278  § 1,106,278
The major assets of Harbor Habitat Leverage I, LLC and Harbor Habitat Leverage Ill, LLC at June 30 are as
follows:
2024 2023
Harbor Habitat Harbor Habitat Harbor Habitat Harbor Habitat
Leverage Il, LLC Leveragelll, LLC Leveragell, LLC Leveragelll, LLC
Assets: '
Notes receivable $ 7,244,463 $ 4,447,352 $ 7,244,463 3 4,447,352
Total assets $ 7244463 @ $ 4,447,352 $ 7,244,463 $ 4,447,352

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, both Harbor Habitat Leverage I, LLC and Harbor Habitat Leverage Ill, LLC had no
liabilities and minimal activity.

Note 12—Notes payable

2024 2023

Notes payable to Tennessee Housing Development Agency, non-
interest bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totaling
$104,357 (at June 30, 2024) with varying maturities through May 2054,
secured by non-interest bearing first mortgages held by Habitat, with a
discounted value of $14,216,950. The notes have an undiscounted
balance outstanding of $26,181,856 and $23,520,627 at June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively. Discount rates ranging from 4.5% to 5.25%
were applied to arrive at net present value of the notes payable at
issuance. Contribution revenue of $1,863,570 and $1,305,752 has
been recoghized in 2024 and 2023, respectively, to present the
difference between the undiscounted notes payable balances and their
present value at time of issuance. The discount is being amortized to
interest expense over the respective terms of the notes. The
unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and 2024 amounted to
$11,964,906 and $10,810,181, respectively. | $ 14,216,950 $ 12,710,446
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 12—Notes payable (continued)

2024 2023

Notes payable to Habitat International, non-interest bearing, payable in
monthly principal installments ranging from $72 to $2,395 through July
2030. $ 398507 § 329,986

Notes payable to The Housing Fund, Inc. secured by certain real

property, non-interest bearing, payable in 120 to 180-equal monthly

principal installments of $282 to $549, through June 2030. The notes

have been discounted using a rate of 4.5%. Contribution revenue of

$104,819 was recognized in 2018 to present the difference between

the present value of the notes payable and their undiscounted balances

of $428,184 and $538,925, at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The discount is being amortized to interest expense over the respective

terms of the notes. The unamortized discount at June ‘30, 2024 and

2023 amounted to $100,719 and $123,427, respectively. - 327,465 415,498

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal instaliments totaling $7,793,

maturing at various times through March 2057. The notes payable have

been discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an undiscounted

balance outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $1,883,973 and
$1,750,044, respectively. Contribution revenue of $66,093 and $35,112

was recognized in 2024 and 2023, respectively, to present the
difference between the undiscounted notes payable balances and their

present value at time of issuance. The discount is being amortized to

interest expense over the respective terms of the notes. The
unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and 2023 .amounted to
$748,354 and $716,525, respectively. 1,135,619 1,033,519

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totaling $2,440,
maturing at various times through July 2047. The notes have been
discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an. undiscounted

balance outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $638,042 and
$667,327, respectively. Contribution revenue of $440,844 was
recognized in 2018 to present the difference between the undiscounted

notes payable balances and their present value at timé of issuance.

The discount is being amortized to interest expense over the respective

terms of the notes. The unamortized discount at June ‘30, 2024 and

2023 amounted to $278,258 and $291,046, respectively. 359,784 376,281
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 12—Notes payable (continued)

2024 2023

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totaling $1,757,
maturing at various times through June 2047. The notes have been
discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an undiscounted
balance outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $417,453 and
$438,532, respectively. Contribution revenue of $231,484 was
recognized in 2018 to present the difference between the undiscounted
notes payable balances and their present value at time of issuance.
The discount is being amortized to interest expense over the respective
terms of the notes. The unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and
2023 amounted to $174,620 and $183,320, respectively. $ 242,833 $ 255,212

Note payable to bank, secured hy certain real property with a net hoak
value of $4,495,868 at June 30, 2024 and $-0- at June 30, 2023, at an
interest rate of 7.45%, with interest only payments due through maturity
in June 2025. 3,750,000

Note payable to bank, secured by certain real property with a net book
value of $6,700,645 at June 30, 2024, at a variable interest rate of 4%
below prime (4.5% at June 30, 2024), with 82-monthly principal
payments of $26,333 and a balloon payment of the unpaid principal in
July 2030. 2,246,658 2,532,695

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totaling $2,777,
maturing at various times through November 2047. The notes have
been discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an undiscounted
balance outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $719,565 and
$825,713, respectively. Contribution revenue of $417,299 was
recognized in 2019 to present the difference between the undiscounted
notes payable balances and their present value at time of issuance.
The discount is being amortized to interest expense over the respective
terms of the notes. The unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and
2023 amounted to $302,774 and $347,011, respectively. 416,791 478,702
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 12—Notes payable (continued)

2024 2023

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totaling $7,405,
maturing at various times through December 2052. The notes have
been discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an undiscounted
balance outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $2,115,870 and
$1,726,277, respectively. Contribution revenue of $191,860 and
$91,620 was recognized in 2024 and 2023, respectively, to present the
difference between the undiscounted notes payable balances and their
present value at time of issuance. The discount is being amortized to
interest expense over the respective terms of the notes. The
unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and 2023 'amounted to
$888,093 and $729,748, respectively. $ 1,227,777 $ 996,529

N

Note payable to bank, secured by certain real property with a net book
value of $6,634,431 at June 30, 2024, at a variable interest rate of 4%
below prime (4.5% at June 30, 2024), with a 20-year amortization
maturing in May 2029. '- 2,979,960 2,994,059
Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments to:;aling $1,782,
maturing at various times through May 2049. The notes have been
discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an .undiscounted
balance outstanding of $516,325 and $535,925 at June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Contribution revenue of $239,550 was recognized
in 2022 to present the difference between the undiscounted notes
payable balances and their present value at time of issuance. The
discount is being amortized to interest expense over the respective
terms of the notes. The unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and
2023 amounted to $216,432 and $225,381, respectively. 299,893 310,544

Notes payable to bank secured by mortgages receivable, non-interest
bearing, payable in monthly principal installments totallng $12,999,
maturing at various times through September 2052. The notes have
been discounted using a rate of 4.5%. The notes have an undiscounted
balance outstanding of $3,807,426 and $3,336,520 at June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively. Contribution revenue of $243,556 and
$370,382 was recognized in 2024 and 2023, respectively, to present
the difference between the undiscounted notes payable balances and
their present value at time of issuance. The discount is being amortized
to interest expense over the respective terms of the notes. The
unamortized discount at June 30, 2024 and 2023 amounted to
$1,610,137 and $1,426,633, respectively. ‘ 2,197,289 1,909,887

$ 29,799,526 $ 24,343,358

20
Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 12—Notes payable (continued)

Notes payable are presented in the statements of finarcial position as follows at June 30:

2024 2023
Notes payable, secured by mortgages, net of unamortized discount $ 20,424,401 $ 18,486,618
Notes payable, secured by real property 8,976,618 5,526,754
Notes payable, unsecured 398,507 329,986

$ 29,799,526 $ 24,343,358

Future principal maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2025 ' $ 5,923,662
2026 2,159,185
2027 . 2,173,702
2028 2,141,021
2029 5,017,806
Thereafter 28,668,443
Total principal maturities 46,083,819

Amounts representing imputed interest (16,284,293)
$ 29,799,526

Note 13—Line of credit

Habitat has a $3,642,000 line of credit agreement with a bank bearing interest at the bank's index rate plus 1%
(9.50% at June 30, 2024). The line of credit is secured by real estate. The line of credit has a maturity date of
September 2025. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, no borrowings were outstanding under the line of credit agreement.

Note 14—NMTC joint venture note payable

Habitat has a loan payable to HCF, dated December 20, 2017, as part of a NMTC transaction. It is a 20-year loan
bearing interest at 0.70% with semi-annual interest-only payments commencing on June 5, 2018 and continuing
until June 5, 2025. Principal and interest payments are to commence on June 5, 2025, due semi-annually to then
fully amortize the principal balance over a 12-year period, maturing December 20, 2037.

The loan is secured by substantially all the assets acquired by Habitat from the project loan proceeds. The debt is
associated with a put option feature under an option agreement between the partnership’s related parties that is
expected to be exercised in 2025 that will effectively extinguish the liability from Habitat. The balance of the note
payable at June 30, 2024 and 2023 is $1,715,000, net of issuance costs of $35,871 and $38,528, respectively. Debt
issuance costs of $53,253 are being amortized to interest expense over the 20-year term of the loan.

Simuitaneous with these transactions, HHL entered into an option agreement (the “Option Agreement”’) with
USBCDC, who is the sole-member of Twain Investment Fund 296, LLC (the “Twain Fund"), and the upstream
effective owner of HCF. Under the terms of the Option Agreement, USBCDC is expected to put its ownership
interest into the Twain Fund for $1,000, during the six-month put period beginning December 20, 2024.

¥
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 |

Note 14—NMTC joint venture note payable (continued)

Exercise of this option will effectively extinguish Habitat's outstanding debt owed to HCF. Habitat will recognize
income on the forgiveness of debt in an amount approximating the difference in the book value of the investment
and the debt. The investment and debt will then come off Habitat's books. All entities including Habitat Harbor
Leverage Il, LLC, will then be dissolved effectively ending the structured financing deal.

Pursuant to the agreement, Habitat is required to comply with the NMTC requirements as generally set forth in
the IRC Section 45D, including that Habitat maintain a separate part of business such that the separate business
will qualify as a qualified active low-income community business as defined in IRC Section 45D. Only the separate
part of business assets of Habitat was pledged as security under the agreement with HCF.

Habitat has a loan payable to HCF, dated June 4, 2020, as part of a NMTC transaction. It is a 20-year loan bearing
interest at 0.730945% with semi-annual interest-only payments commencing on December 5, 2020 and continuing
until June 5, 2027. Principal and interest payments are to commence on December 5, 2027, due semi-annually
to then fully amortize the principal balance over a 12-year period, maturing June 3, 2040.

The loan is secured by substantially all the assets acquired by Habitat from the project loan proceeds. The debt
is associated with a put option feature under an option agreement between the partnership’s related parties that
is expected to be exercised in 2027 that will effectively extinguish the liability from Habitat. The balance of the
note payable at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,521,250 net of issuance costs of $66,043 and $70,193,
respectively. Debt issuance costs of $82,986 are being amortized to interest expense over the 20-year term of the
loan.

Simultaneous with these transactions, HHL entered into an option agreement (the "Option Agreement”’) with
USBCDC, who is the owner of USBCDC (the “USBCDC Fund"), and the upstream effective owner of HCF. Under
the terms of the Option Agreement, USBCDC Endowment Fund is expected to put its ownership interest in HCF
to HHL for $1,000, during the six-month put period beginning June 4, 2027.

Exercise of this option will effectively extinguish Habitat's outstanding debt owed to HCF. Habitat will recognize
income on the forgiveness of debt in an amount approximating the difference in the book value of the investment
and the debt. The investment and debt will then come off Habitat's books. All entities including Habitat Harbor
Leverage Il, LLC, will then be dissolved effectively ending the structured financing deal.

Pursuant to the agreement, Habitat is required to comply with the NMTC requirements as generally set forth in
the IRC Section 45D, including that Habitat maintain a separate part of business such that the separate business
will qualify as a qualified active low-income community business as defined in IRC Section 45D. Only the separate
part of business assets of Habitat was pledged as security under the agreement with HCF.

Note 15—Employee Retention Credit

Under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Habitat was eligible for a refundable Employee
Retention Credit (“ERC") subject to certain criteria. Habitat claimed an ERC of $-0- and $740,021, recognized as
grant income in the statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The amounts
recognized in the year ended June 30, 2023 are still included in grants receivable on the statement of financial
position at June 30, 2024.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

1]
Note 16—Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist principally of contributions restricted for future programs or
improvements to existing programs. Significant companents inclide the following at June 30:

)

2024 2023
Unamortized discount on notes payable issued $ 16,284,293 $ 14,853,272
Contributions purpose restricted for other projects 402,460 358,238
Unconditional promises to give, net 500,000 -

$ 17,186,753 $ 15211,510

For the year ended June 30, 2024, Habitat released $934,054 related to amortization discount on notes payable
issued and $319,729 for the purpose and time restrictions being fulfilled. The total amount of net assets released
from restrictlons for the year ended June 30, 2024, is $1,253,783, as reported on the statement of activities. For
the year ended June 30, 2023, Habitat released $ 838,065 related to amortization discount on notes payable
issued and $ 175,295 for the purpose and time restrictions being fulfilled. The total amount of net assets released
from restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2023, is $1,1013,360, as reported on the statement of activities.

Note 17—Concentrations

Habitat maintains its cash in bank accounts that at times may exceed federally insured limits. Habitat has not
experienced any losses in such accounts. Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Management believes Habitat is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash balances. Uninsured
balances at June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $119,362 and $82,699, respectively.

Note 18—Leases

Habitat leases certain office space, warehouse space, and equipment. Habitat determines whether a contract
contains a lease at inception by determining if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified
property, plant, or equipment for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Habitat has lease agreements
with lease and non-lease components, which are generally accounted for separately with amounts allocated to
the lease and non-lease components based on the relative stand-alone prices.

The ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of
the future minimum lease payments over the lease term. Renewal and termination clauses that are factored into
the determination of the lease term if it is reasonably certain these options would be exercised by Habitat. Lease
assets are amortized over the lease term unless there.is a transfer of title or purchase option reasonably certain
of exercise, in which case the asset life is used. Certain of our lease agreements include variable payments.
Variable lease payments are not dependent on an index or rate primarily consist of common area maintenance
charges and are not included in the calculation of the ROU asset and lease liability and are expenses as incurred.
In order to determine the present value of lease payments, Habitat uses the risk-free rate based on the information
available at lease commencement to determine the present value of lease payments.

23
Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A89-F9CO9CE17F35

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 18—Leases (continued)

Habitat's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants. Habitat does not have leases where it is involved with the construction or design of an underlying
asset. Habitat has no material obligation for leases signed but not yet commenced as of June 30, 2024. Habitat
does not have any material subleases activities.

Practical Expedients Elected

» Habitat elected the transition practical expedients that permit an entity to (a) not reassess whether expired
or existing contracts contain leases, (b) not reassess lease classification for existing or expired leases,
and (c) not consider whether previously capitalized initial direct costs would be appropriate under the new
standard.

» Habitat has elected the practical expedient not to recognize leases with terms of 12 months or less on the
statement of financial position and instead to recognize the lease payments on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease and variable lease payments in the period in which the obligation for the payments
in incurred. Therefore, Habitat's short-term lease expense for the period does not reflect ongoing
short-term lease commitments. Lease expense for such short-term leases was not material for the year
ended June 30, 2024,

¢ Habitat has elected to utilize the risk-free discount rate to calculate lease assets and liabilities.

Classification of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as of June 30 is as follows:

Leases Balance Sheet Classification 2024 2023
Assets:
Operating right-of-use assets Right-of-use assets $ 457,751 $ 326,809
Finance right-of-use assets Right-of-use assets 30,064 36,442
Total lease assets . $ 487,815 $ 363,251
Liabilities: '
Operating lease liabilities Lease liabilities $ 470,388 $ 333,161
Finance lease liabilities Lease liabilities 30,893 36,961
Total lease liabilities $ 501,281 $ 370,122

Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Maturity Analysis Finance Operating
2025 $ 13,652 $ 138,533
2026 ; 13,652 143,037
2027 4,729 144,409
2028 - 73,620
Total undiscounted cash flows 32,033 499,599
LLess present value discount (1,140) (29,211)
Total lease liabilities . $ 30,893 $ 470,388
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HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER NASHVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 18—Leases (continued)

Required supplemental information relating to our leaseés for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2024 2023
Lease expense:
Finance lease expense:
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 12,825 $ 80,440
Interest on lease liabilities 1,138 1,115
Operating lease expense 136,381 11,213
Total operating and finance lease cost $ 150,344 $ 92,768
Cash flow information:
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases ‘ $ 125,099 $ 68,097
Operating cash flows from finance leases i 1,147 1,115
Financing cash fiows fram finance leases 12,359 9,792
| ease assets nhtainad in exchange far lease liahilities:
Operating leases : 245,662 391,175
Finance leases 6,300 46,663
Lease term (in years) and discount rate:
Woeighted-average remaining lease term in years for finance leases 2.37 3.25
Weighted-average remaining lease term in years for operating leases 3.47 4.37
Weighted-average discount rate for finance leases 3.13% 2.88%
Weighted-average discount rate for operating leases 3.53% 2.91%

Note 19—Commitments and contingencies

In connection with the development of Park Preserve and Village by the Creek subdivisions, Habitat has obtained
letters of credit totaling $3,642,000 and $2,742,000 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, securing the
completion of certain improvements. Habitat had no outstanding borrowings associated with these letters of credit
at June 30, 2024 or 2023. The letters of credit expire through September 2025.

Habitat has multi-year commitments under information technology contracts and other agreements for various
services. A summary of future minimum payments as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2025 $ 73,344
2026 11,031
2027 4,708
2028 54

$ 89,137

From time to time, Habitat is involved in litigation. In the opinion of management, no current or threatened litigation
will have a material effect on Habitat's financial position or activities.
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JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 20—Contributed nonfinancial assets

Contributed nonfinancial assets received by Habitat are recorded based on their estimated value. A summary of
contributed nonfinancial assets is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023
ReStore donations $ 3,877,275 $ 3,431,828
Building supplies and home appliances 179,030 85,687
Mortgage servicing . 101,184 99,516
Contributed land - 61,000
Operating supplies 50,247 10,771

$ 4,207,736 § 3,688,802

Habitat recognized nonfinancial assets within revenue, 'including ReStore donations, building supplies, and
mortgage servicing. Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-imposed

restrictions.

Habitat recognized approximately $-0- and $61,000 of contributed land held for development as contribution
income on the statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Habitat valued
the contribution based upon an independent appraisal of the land.

Various donors contributed products to the ReStore for sale to customers. Habitat valued the contribution based
upon its sales price of the contributed assets.

Various donors contribute building supplies and home appliances that are used in constructing homes transferred
to homeowners. Habitat valued the contribution based upon current costs to purchase.

A financial institution services mortgages on behalf of Habitat. Habitat valued the contribution based upon
estimated costs to pay a third party servicer.

Approximately 5,482 and 4,220 individuals contributed significant amounts of time to Habitat’s activities during the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The financial statements do not reflect the value of these
services because they do not meet the recognition criteria prescribed by U.S. GAAP.

Note 21—Retirement plan

Habitat has a defined contribution retirement plan for its employees, which was established as a Simple IRA. As
described in the plan document, substantially all full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.
Discretionary contributions may be made at the option of the Board of Directors. Habitat recognized retirement
plan expense of $74,557 and $79,836 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 22—Supplemental cash flow information
The following is supplemental cash flow information required by U.S. GAAP.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information: !

{

g 2024 2023
Equipment acquired through issuance of capital lease $ 6,300 $ 46,663
Parkwood collaboration of land for development ; $ - $ 624,885
Interest paid $ 265,038 $ 188,363
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

2024 2023

Issuance of non-interest bearing mortgage loans $ 8,777,640 $ 5,561,950
Discount on non-interest bearing mortgage loans ' (3,823,431) (2,509,111)

Transfers to homeowncrs subject to non intereet

bearing mortgage loans $ 4954209 § 3,052,839

Note 23—Related parties

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, Habitat owed notes payable, net of discounts, totaling approximately $11,340,015
and $7,747,703, respectively, to financial institutions which have executives who serve on Habitat's Board of
Directors.

Habitat receives voluntary contributions, house sponsorship funding, in-kind contributions, and volunteer labor from
various board members and their companies throughout the year. Some professional services are also purchased
from board members and their companies throughout the course of the year. None of these transactions are
considered to be individually significant to Habitat's financial statements.

Habitat annually remits a portion of its unrestricted contributions (excluding in-kind contributions) to Habitat
International. These funds are used to construct homes in economically depressed areas around the world. For
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, Habitat contributed $99,761 and $166,476, respectively, to Habitat
International.

Habitat has received Self-Help Homeownership Opportunity Program funds from Habitat International. Of the
funds received, 75% were in the form of a grant with the remaining 25% repayable under non-interest bearing
four-year notes payable. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, Habitat was granted $709,827 and
$237,770, respectively. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the balances of the loans totaled $398,507 and $329,986,
respectively.
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-LDC
BETWEEN

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,

TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC,

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government
of Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee
hereinafter referred to as "Metro”, and Living Development Concepts, Inc., hereinafter
referred to as the “Recipient,” is for the provisicn of the construction of affordable housing
as further defined in the "SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 3 Barnes
Fund affordable housing units located at 169 Old Hermitage Ave. (A,B,C) hereinafter
referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient's grant budget is incorparated herein by
reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic organization.

A.

AA.

A2

A3.

A4,

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordabllity
requirements to encumber the Property and run with the fand over a 30-year term
("Affordability Period”). The Affardability Period shall commence when the Recipient
obtaing a Use & Occupancy permit for the home. Terms defined in the Declaration
shall have the same meanings when us?d in this Agreement,

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B, Although some variation
in line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change
greater than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the
Metro Housing Director. Howevar, in no'avent will the total amount of the Grant funds
provided to Recipient go abave the Grarit Award amount of $375,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described
herein. Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the
sole responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land
use change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the
Metro Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council's authority to
approve or deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not
be used for such purposes.
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AS.

A.GB.

AT,

Recipient will allow Metra or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct an-site
inspections of the grantee for compliance Barnes program requirements.

Requirements for Homeownership Projects:

a. Recipient shall ensure that initial homeowners are income eligible. Income eligibility
is determined and documented at the time a prospective homebuyer enters into a
program agreement with the Recipient. Income- eligible is defined as households
with incomes at or below 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) based on actual
household size. The AMI is established annually by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, and Recipient shall follow the AML in effect at

the time of purchase.

b. Sales prices should be affordable to households with incomes at 80% AMI adjusted
for household size. Should the project include the creation of a Homeowners
Association (‘HOA”), Recipient shall ensure that the sales prices of the homes and
HOA fees combined are affordable to households with incomes at 80% AMI.

c. In the event the hame is sold during the Affordahility Period, the Recipient must
assist the selter in finding a qualified buyer who meets the income requirements
nrovided herein.

d. At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application. ,

e. Recipient must provide pre- and post-purchase counseling as specified in the
Recipient's grant applications, which is incorporated herein.

f.  Atleast annually during the Affordability Period, Recipient shail remind
homeowners of the resale fimitations placed upon the property.

Property $tandards

a. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact,
as applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

b. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient’s
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

¢. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient’s grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement unti] Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have he obligation for services
rendered by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to

(NG5BS 2
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Metropolitan Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to
complete its obligations under this grant contract within twenty-four months from
execution, Metro is authorized to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously
appropriated funds from the organization.

B.2.  Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90)
days prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each
additional contract term cannot exceed tweive (12) months. Contract extensions
must be approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro
Council.

B.3. Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro
has paid the final invoice.

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:*

C.1.  Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this
Grant Contract exceed THREE HUNDRED SEVETY-FIVE THOUSAND ($375,000)
“Grant Award”. The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of
Attachment B, details the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the
maximum amount to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's
obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget line items inciude, but are not limited to,
all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred
or to be incurred by the Recipient. i

C.2. Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation
for any reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant
Contract and is nat subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract
is amended. \

C.3. Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs
based upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in
Section C.1. Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for
payment, the Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones
as completed based upon the Grant Budgst,

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

s  Recipient shall submit draw'requests in accordance with the Draw
Schedule provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule
shall require an amendment to the Grant Contract.

» Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee uniess otherwise specified
in the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate
completion of the Projsct.

INU283 35BS ¢} 3
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Cc.4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.T.

C.8.

C.9.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process

» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according
to the directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be
supported by appropriate documentation as specified in the
Draw Schedules.

« Allinvoices shall be sent to BFPayments@nashville.qov.

« Said payment shail not exteed the maximum fiability of this Grant Contract.

» Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro
Payment Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant
agreement unless a contract extension has been approved by the
Metro Council. Any invoice not received by the deadline date will not
be processed and all remaining grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final
grant Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the
Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund in
conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report shall bs
in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization.
It should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice
Metro's right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such
payment by Metro shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work
or service provided nor as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for
amounts included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are
determined by Metro, on the basis of:audits or monitoring conducted in accordance
with the terms of this Grant Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall
become due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by
deducting any amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by
the Recipient under this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the
Recipient shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to
the Recipient. Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will
have thirty (30) days to complete, sign, and return the form. Thereatfter, all
payments to the Recipient, under this or any other contract the Recipient has with
Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and
services for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations,
including the Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all

INU26)$85.) 4
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c.10.

c.11.

D.2.

D.3.

DA,

plans and specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will
promptly review, and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with
reasonable grounds all estimates, amendments to scope of work, and alt work
performed by a contractor prior to payment.

Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend
public meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this
Project.

Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at
the applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the
following language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the
Project is partially funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable
Housing of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Barnes Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the
Metropolitan Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor r

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved
by the appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this
Grant.

Modification and Amendment, This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any fallure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default” (1) if such failure is
curable within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days
following written notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature
which cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does
not within such 30- day period commence substantial efforts to cure such fallure or
thereafter does not within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence
and continuity the curing of such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this
Grant Contract or if the Recipient violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro
shall have the right to immediately terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient
shall return to Metro any and all grant monies for services or projects under the
grant not performed as of the termination date. The Recipient shall also return to
Metro any and all funds expended for purposes contrary to the terms of the Grant.
Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of any liability to Metro for damages
sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Suhcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into 8
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without
obtaining the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved
subcontractors, the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be

JNU281584.1) 5
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D.5.

D.86.

D.7.

responsible for all work performed. i

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount
shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages,
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee,
subcontractor, or consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work
contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract,

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person
below may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund
Competitive Grant assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract
or agreement with respect thereto, of the proceeds thereunder, either far
themselves or those whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or
for one year thereafter,

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board
member of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits
through the Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate
family ties include (whether by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent
(including stepparent), child (including a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother,
grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient herehy agrees, warrants, and assures that no
person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or
in the employment practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age,
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or any other classification which is in
violation of applicable laws. The Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of
such nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to alt
employses and applicants, natices of nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or
any designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any
subcontractor of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government
for inspection and copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government.
Furthermore, said documents shall be made available, upon request by the
Metropolitan Government, to any state, federal or other regutatory autharity and any
such authority may review, inspect and copy such records. Said records include, but
are not limited to, all drawings, plans, specifications, submittals, correspondence,
minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos or other writings or things which
document the grant project, its design and its construction. Said records expressly
include those documents reflecting the cost of construction, including all subcontracts
and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant
contract. The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to
funds provided under this grant conttact, shail be maintained for a period of three
(3) full years from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and
documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant
contract, shall be subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable
notice by Metro or its duly appointed representatives. Records shall be maintained

IND2ELSRSA] 6

Exhibit B



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9CO9CE17F35

D.8.

D.9.

D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14,

;
in accordance with the standards outtined in the Metro Grants Manual. The
financial statements shall be prepared in‘accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient's activities conducted and records maintained pursuant
to this Grant Contract shall be subject to manitoring and evaluation by Metro or
Metro's duly appointed representatives during the term of the contract and
throughout the affordability period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting,
or financial records, notes, and other documents pertinent to this grant available for
review by the Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or
Metro's representatives, upon request, during normal working hours.

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later
than July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that
occurred during the previous fiscal year (July 1 —June 30). Said report shall be in a
form provided by Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure
and Narrative Report as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the
activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the

strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this
agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term,
covenant, condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall
be held to be waived, modified, or deletéd except by a written amendment by the

appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other
appropriate forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on

the Recipient's employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant
Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or
intended to create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro
or to create the relationship of principal and agent between or among the
Recipient and Metro. The Recipient shall not hold itself out in @ manner contrary
to the terms of this paragraph. Metro shall not become liable for any
representation, act, or omission of any other party contrary to the terms of this
paragraph, i

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a. Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers,
agents and employees from any cldims, damages, penalties, costs and
attorney fees for injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees
and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, in connection with
the performance of the contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs
and attorney fees arising from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees
and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, to observe
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applicable laws, including, but not limited to, labor laws and minimum wage
laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient
from any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other
document that the Recipient may provide.

c. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s
failure to fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this

Contract.

d. Recipient's duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration
of the grant. '

D.15. Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are
subject to prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be
avoided by the exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God,
riots, wars, strikes, epidemics or any other similar cause.

D.16. State. Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations In the performance of this
Grant Cantract,

D.17. Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant
Contract and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee. The venue for legal action concerning this Grant Contract shall be
in the courts of Davidson County, Tennessee.

D.18. Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary
to take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the
event Metro prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including
Metro’s attorney fees and costs at all stages of the litigation.

D.19. Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire
understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein,
including all the terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Gramt
Contract supersedes any and all prior understandings, representations,
negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating hereta, whether written
or oral.

D.20. Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be
construed as part of this Grant Contract.

D.21. Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be
licensed pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances,
rules, and regulations and shall uponirequest provide proof of all ficenses.
Recipient will obtain all permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant
project. 1
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D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

D.25.

D.26.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any
panty thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy
available to it in the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project andfor
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor
and its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of
the parties hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this
contract, neither this contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient
hersunder shall be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without the prior
written consent of Metro, Any such assignment or transfer shall not release
Recipient from its obligations hersunder, Notice of assignment of any rights to
money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent to the attention of the
Metro Department of Finance.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person
to offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any
employee or former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from
another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any
decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a
program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any
specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing
or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for
ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any proceeding or application, request
for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other particular matter, pertaining
to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or
proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any payment,
gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contracior or higher tier subcontractor or a person
assaciated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.
Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this
contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction
and/or debarment or suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government
contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or
other communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant
Contract shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email,
or by first class mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate
facsimile number or address as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile
number, or address as may be hereafter specified by written notice.
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Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300 :

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient;

Living Development Concepts, Inc
Henry Miller, Executive Director
3250 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212
615-578-6590
hmiller@lde-nashville.com

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf
of the Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
offlcer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with
the awaiding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the
making of any federal loan, and entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or wili be
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with
its instructions. ‘

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents far all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants,
subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)
and that all subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been
signed first by the Recipient and theniby the authorized representatives of the
Metropolitan Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk.
When it has been so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the
date first written above.
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THE METROPOLITAN GOYERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED A$ TO PROGRAM SCOPE:

(LA

ter Westerholm, Chair
etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF
SRS
Suaeuin Kwi/mjw

en Reed, Director
Papartment of Finance

ARERQUED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Awes
A‘é:‘é‘igwm Etropolitan Attorney )

ARPROVED AS TO RISK AND
RAMCE:

Balogun Coll

Birector of Risk Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Metropolitan Clerk

RECIPIENT:

Living Development Concepts, Inc.

By: 73@4@//_@“&/’/ /4 T
Title: éfﬁiﬁ@ Drectop -

Sworn to and subscribed o before me a
Notary Public, this.éﬁ?_’_# Hay of /;L}m

2025,

[Notary Public seal]

“I||||JJJ

$ K
- %
vy BYATE =
& h o _ 3
> 1ENNESSEN 3
ol MATATY =
% PUBLIG =
- -
-

8 ot
------

B

Naotary Public

—

( g }9—@: el La_m_&ﬂl-\ﬁl-uu_

" My Commission expires Mol (g y 2025
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work

Contract Number: 2025-R15-LDC

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Living Development Concepts Inc.
Project Location: 162 Old Hermitage Ave. (A, B, C)
Project Type: Homeownership

Grant Award: $375,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 3

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

S 30% AMI 31.60% AMI 61-80% AMI Total

0 0 3 3

Project Summary: Living Development Concepts Inc. will construct three (3) affordable
homeowner units as a triplex. The target market for this project is low-to moderate-income
families, at or below 80% area median income (AMI), seeking home ownership in Nashville.
This project will be designed to meet and exceed the International Energy Conservation Code
reducing its environmental impact.
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Grant Sources and Uses Template

ATTACHMENT B

Sources of Funds Amount Percentage of Tolal Status (Secured/Pending)

Barnes Housing Trust Fund §376,000. %45 Pending
Developer Equity $ Y%
Private Lender {The Housing Fund) $450,0CC %55 Secuied
Low-Incoma Housing Tax Crediis P i |
{LIHTCYetc, =
Fedaral Homa Loan Bank/stc, $ %
Other Local/State Granls  § W

$825,000 106

Usas of Funde Amount Patcentage of Total
Acquisitian Costs $0.00 %
Construction Costs $550.88) %67
-Sile Work $45,0CO %5
- \vertical Construclion $0.00 %
- Conlingency $68,613 %8
Baft Costs $37,920 Yabi
~Architectura & Engineering $26,325 %3
- Lagal and Permitiing $13,659 %2
- Developer Feeg $20,257 8.5
(Max 20% ¢f Bames)

Reserves y
(Operaling/Replacement) § 12,375 %13
Total Uses $625,000 %100
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ATTACHMENT C

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule

The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.

Draw #

1

2*

3*

4*

5*

% of Grant

12.5%

25%

25%

25%

12.6%

Milestone

Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder’s risk insurance
with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder.

Footing, framing, and foundation complete.

Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in, inspected, and
passed by Metro Codes; rooting complete.

Doors, cabinets, counter tops, drywall, trim installed.

Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes.

Note: Draw requests 2-5 must be inspected by Metro or a !‘h:rd—party inspector contracted
with Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are
paid on a reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Dacuments

The following are required items pursuant to Metropalitan Code 5.04.070:

[

A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

A copy of a lefter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

A statement of the nature and extent of the arganization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
gavernment (Provided in Attachment A);

The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Pravided in Attachment B);

A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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ARTICLES QF INCORPORATION
OF
LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.

The undersigned acting as incorporator(s) of & nonprofit corporation under the Tennessce
Nonprofit Corporation Act adopts the following Atticles of Incorporation:

1. The name of the corporation is Living Development Concepts, Inc.

2. This corporation is a public benefit corporation. This corporation is not a
religious corporation.  This corporation will not have members, This is a
nonstock corporation,

a. The number of directors of the corporation shall be no less than 3, which

may be increased pursuant to the by-laws of the corporation.

b. Living Development Concepts, Inc. will maintain at least one-third of its
governing  board’s membership for residents of low-income
neighborhoods, other low-income community residents, or elected
representatives of low-income neighborhued organizations,

e. If chartered by a State or local government, (1} ithe State or local
government may not annoint more that one-third of the membershin of
the organization’s governing body; (2) the board members appointed by
the State or local government may net, in tarn, appoint the remaining
two-thirds of the board members; and (3) no more than one-third of the
governing board members are public officials [including employees of
the Participating Jurisdiction or State recipients].

3. The complete name of address of the corporation’s initial registered agent in
Tennessee is Henry O, Miller, 2404 Ramblewood Drive, Murfreesboro, TN
37129, Rutherford County.

4. The name and complete address of the incorporator is Living Development
Concepts, Inc., 3230 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212, Nashville, TN 37207,

5. The complete address of the corporation’s principal office is 3250 Dickerson
Pike, Suite 212, Nashville, TN 37207, Davidson County.

6. The corporalion is not {or profit. .

7. The corporation is organized for the purpose of engaging in any lawful business
which shall include, but not be limited to the following:

a. To provide education and training for under privileged juvenile, youths
and adults, this will help them to become productive members of society.
Also provide affordable housing to low-moderate income (80% & below
of the AMI) persons.

b.  To reccive funding from various sources to operate this non-profit
corporation.

8. 1n furthermore and not in limitation of the gencral powers conferred by the laws
of the State of Tennessee and of the objects herein set forth it is expressly
provided that this corporation shall also have as far as are lawful, the following
powers:

a. To enter into, make, perform or carry out contracts of every kind with
any firm, person, corporation or association necessary for the
accomplishment of the objects and purposes herein set forth to do any
acts necessary for carrying on any or all of the objects and purposes of
the corporation not forbidden by law, or by this Charier, or by its by-
laws, or the by-laws of the State of Ternessec.
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b.  No part of the net earning of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of,
or be distributed to its members, ftrustees, directors, officers or other
private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and
empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to
make payments and distributions in furtherance of Section 501 (¢) (3).

¢. To have offices and promote and carry on its objects and purposes,
within and without Tennessee and in the states, territories or colonies of
the United States and in foreign countries,

d. To have all powers that may be conferred upon for non-profit
corporations under the laws of the State of Tennessee as the laws are now
in effect or may at any time hereafter he amended. No director may be
sued by the corporation or its sharcholders for breach of his or her
fiduciary duty to the corporation, provided, however, that this provision
shall not absolve a director from a breach of his or her duty of loyalty, for
acts or omissions not in good faith or which involves intentional
misconduct or a knowing violation of law, or for distributions in violation
of Section 48-18-304,

9. Upon dissolution of this corporation assets shall be distributed for one or more
exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501 (¢) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, i.e. charitable, educational, religious, or scientific, or
corresponding section of any future federal tax code, to relieve any and all
indebtedness and as applicable, shall be distributed to the Federal Government, or
fo state or local government for a public purpose.

{ Dﬂi&lma M& l’z’-‘)hf-Mr'l Jt’r

Incorporator’s Namie (Print)

A4 19, 2004

Sigdlature Date

y A (4
ncorporator' Signature
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ARTICLE I

Living Development Concepts, Inc.

‘The name of the Corporation is Living Development Concepts. Tne. 1038 intended that
the Corporation shall bave the status oi' Corporation which is exempt from federal income
1axation under Section 501 {43 of the Inlemal Reverye Code of 1986, as amended. or any
corresponding provisions of any future federal 1ax laws not for profit. @s an organization
deseribed in Section 301 {¢){3) of the Code.

ARTICLE H

OFFICES

Section 2.1 Corporate Office. The principal office of the Corporation shall be
located at 3250 Dickerson Pike. Suite 212, Naghville. Tennessee. 37207, 1n addition w
its registered and principal offices the corporation miay have other offices and/or facilities
at such other places as the Board of Trustees miay trom (ime 1o time determine and as the
business of the Corporation may require.  The address of the principal office may be
changed by the Board of Trustees by amendment 1o the Corporation’s Uharter,

Section 2.2 Registered Office. The registered office of the Corpovation reguired to
be maintained in the Stae of Tennessed Nonprolit Corporation Act. as amended from
time to thne may, but need not. be identical with the principal office in the State of
Tennessee: and the address of the registered office muy be changed fron: time o ime by
Board of Truswees.
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ARTICLE 111
PURPOSE AND USE OF FUNDS

Section 3.1 Purposes. The purpose of the Corporation ix to provide training and
education to young men and women in the construction industry as well as assist with
finding employment., The Cosporation is to build homes inciuding affordable homes for
low income families. The Corporation is organized exclusively for religious, charitable.
scientific, literary, and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 301 (eX3) of
the Code. including the receipt and acceptance of property, whether real, personal. ot
mixed, by gift or bequest from any person ar entity; the retention, administration and
investment of such property in accordance with the terms of the Corporation’s Charter
and these By-Laws: and the distribution of such property for the Charitabie Purposes as
herein delineated and/or (2) one or more organizations deseribed in Section 501 (¢}(2) of
the Code and either Section 509 {a) (1) or Section 309 (a)(2) of the Code, Contributions
to which are deductible under Section 170 (¢)(2) , Section 2055(a) and Section 2522 (&)
of the Code. or (b) A State, a posscssion of the United States. or any political subdivision
of any of the forgoing, or the United States or the District of Columbia, contribution to
which are deductible under Section 170 ()(1). Section 2055 (a) and Section 2522 (a) gift
or bequest of property be reccived or accepted in such a manner as (o require the
disposition of its income or principal to any person, governmental umt or organization,
other than a Qualified Beneficiary or for other than Charitable Purposes.

Section 3.2 Use of Funds. (n making distribution 1o effectuate the religious.
charitable, scientific, literacy and educational purposes of the Corporation, as delincated
in Section 3.1 above, the Board of Trustees shail have the authornity to make distributions
if both income and principal in such promotions and amounts a8 the Board of Trusiees, in
its discretion, determines advisable, provided that all such disuibutions are consistent
with all applicable federal tax laws and regulations as herein pravide. The Corporation is
not formed for financial or pecuniary gain: and no part of the assets, income, nonprofits
of the Corporation shall be distributable (0. or inure to: the benefit of iis frusiees or
officers or any other private person, except as provided in Section 5,11, Section 6.0 and
Article XI as reimbursement for expenses or reasonable compensation for services
rendered 1o the Corporation, as set forth in the Charler and Section 3.1 above. No
substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shalf be the carrying on of the
propaganda, or be the participation in, or intervention in (including the publishing or
distribution of statement). any political campaign on behalf of {or in oppesition jo) any
candidate for public office.
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By Laws
of
Living Development Concepts, Inc.

Section 3.3 Administration of Funds. In the event the Corporation is a private
foundation within the meaning of Section 509 of the Code for a taxable vear, the
Corporation {a) tax on undistributed its income for each tax vear in such manner so that it
will not become subject to the tax on undistributed income for each tax vear, in such a
manaer so that it will not betome subject to the self-dealing, as defined in Section 4943
{d) of the Code (c) shall not retain any excess business holdings, as defined in Section
4943 (c) of the Code; (d) shail not make any investments in a manner expenditures, as
defined in Section 4945 (d) of the Code. In order to fully effectuate the provisions of
these Sections the Corporation shall adopt such procedures, and shal] otherwise adhere 1a
such administrative requirements as may from time to time be necessary, in order 1 fully
comply with all applicable federal tax laws and regulations.

Section 3.4 Termination of Corporation. The Board of Trustees shall have the
authority to terminate the Carporation at any time that, by 2 unanimous vote, it deems
such termination appropriate or advisable. In such event, after paying, or making
provision for the payment of all liabilities of the Corporation exclusively for Charitable
Purposes, any assets not so distributed shalt be distributed 1© one or more Qualified
Beneficiaries, as the Board of Trustees shail determine. Any assets not so disposed of by
the Board of Trustees shall be disposed of by the court having equity jurisdiction i the
county in which the principal; officc of the Corporation is then located, with the
distribution of assets to be made for such Charitable Purposes, or 10 such Qualificd
Beneficiarics, as such court shall determine.

ARTICLE IV
MEMBERS

Section 4.1 Non-Members. The Corporation shall have members with no veting
rights, no meeting requirements, and no compensations Memberships are given to
donors who contribute between $500.00 and more to the organization. Recognition of
membership will be distribured in publication.
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By Laws
or
Living Development Coneepts, Inc.

ARTICLE V
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 5.1 General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shali be
supervised by its Board of Trustees, which shall excrcise in the name of and behalf of the
Corporation all of the rights and privileged legally exercisable by the Cotporation as a
corpotate entity, except as many otherwise be provided by law, the Charter, or these By-
laws, The Board of Trustees, as the governing body of the corporation, shall have the
authority to receive, administer. iovest azhd distribute property on behalf of the
Corporation in accordance with the provisions set forth in these By-laws. May scrve as
committee members and give advice or make recommendations,

Section 5.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of the members
of the Board of Trustees shall be not less than three (3) not more than nine (9). However,
the number of trustees may be increased or decreased from time to time by the Board of
Trustees by amendment of these By-laws, but no decrease shall have the effect of
shortening the term of an incumbent trustee or reducing the number of trustees below
three (3). The initial members of the Board of Trustees shall be appoimed by the
Incorporate(s) for staggered terms of approximately one, twe and three vears, in order
property to stagger the terms thereafter and permit expiration of terms immediatety
following the annual meeting,

In the event additional members are added o the Board of Trustees, the initial terms of
office of such additional trustees shall be staggered in such a manner to assure that the
terms of office of not more than one-half (1/2) of all of the trustees will expire in any one
year. The initial members of the Boards of Trusiees shall be appointed hy the
Incorporate(s) to serve until after the first annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and
until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified. At its annual meeting, the
Board of Trustees shall elect individuals to serve on the Board of Trustees for a term that
does not exceed a period of five (5) years. Each trustee shall hoid office until his or her
term shall have expired and his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified, or
until his or her earlier resignation, removal from office. or death. A retiring trustee may
succeed himself or herself. Trustees shall be natural persons who have attained the age of
twenty-one (21) years, but need not be residents of the State of Tennessec.

Section 5.3 Advisor Members. The Board of Trustoes may elect advisory
members from time 10 time, who may attend; without vote, ail meetings of the Board of
Trusiees. Advisory members shall serve at the pleasure of Board of Trustees and shall
advise and counsel the Board of Trusiees on appropriate matters.
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By Laws
of
Living Development Concepts, Inc.

Section 5.4 Anpual Meeting, The annual mecting of the Board of Trustees shall be
held within or without the State of Tenngssee on the last business day of the fifth {Sthy
month follosving the close of the Corpuralion's fiscal vear, or at such other time and date
prior thereto and following the close of the Corporation’s fiscal year as shall be
determined by the Board of Trastees. The purpose of the annual meering shall be to eleet
wrustees and officers and transact such other business as may properly be brought before
the meeting. 1f the clection of trustees and officers shall not be held on the duy herein
designated for any annual meeting of the Board of Trustees, or at any adjourmnment
thereof, the Board of Trustees shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of
the Board of Trustees as soon theresfter as may be convenient.

Section 5.5 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be
called by the President, or at the request of any trusiee. The President shall fix the time
and place, either within or without the State of Tennessee. of any special meeting.

Section 5.6 Notices. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least five (5)
business days prior thereto. The auendance of a trustee at a meeting thall constitute a
waiver of notice of such meeting. excepl where a trustee attends a meeting for the express
purpose of objecting to the tansaction of any business because the meeling was nol
Jawfulty called or convened. The business 1o be transacted at, or the purpose of, any
special meeting of the Board ol Trustees musi be specified in ihe notice of such mecting
and no other business shall be transacted at that meeting.

Section 5.7 Quorum. A majority of the total number of Irusiees in office shall
constitute a guorum for the transaction of business at any moeling of the Board of
Trustees. :

Section 5.8 Participation in Meetings. Each lrustee other than an advisory
mermber shall be entitled to one (1) vote upen any mayter properly submiticd for a votw 10
the Board of Trustees. The affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees present at the
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Trustees, except as
may otherwise be specifically provided by law. by the Charter, or by these By-laws.
Members of the Bourd of Trustees absent from any mectings shall be permitted @ voie at
such meeting by written proxies The members of the Board of Trustees or any
committee designated by the Board of Trusices, may participate in a meeting of the
Board of Trustees. or of such committee, by means of conference (eluphone or similar
comumunications equipment by means of which all persens participating in the meeling
can hear one another; and participation in 2 mecting pursuant 10 this provision shait
constitute in person at such meeting. The Trustees shall be promptly furnished a copy of
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees,
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By Laws
Of
Living Development Concepts, Inc.

Section 5.9 Actions Without A Meeting. Any action required or permitied to be
taken at a meeting by the Board of Trusiess, or by any commiitee, as the case may be.
consent in writing to taking such action without a meeting. If all members entitled 1o
vote on the action shall consent in writing to taking such action without a meeting, the
affirmative vote of the number of votes that-would be necessary 1o authorize or take such
action at a meeting shall be the act of the Board of Trustees. The action muss be
evidenced by the one (1) or more counterparts signed by each member entitled 1o vote on
the action indicating each signing member's vote or abstention on the action taken. All
such written consents and actions shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the

Board of Trustees or committee.

A comsent signed under the Section shall have the same force and effeet as a meting vote
of the Board of Trustees, or any committee thereof, and may be described as such in any
document.

Section 5.10 Vacancies. Any vacancy oceurring in the Board of Trustees including

vacancies created by the removal of trustees without cause or for cause may be filled by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining trustees in office, so long as the
requirements of Section 5.2 are satisfied. A Trustee elected 10 fill a vacancy shall serve
for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office, or if there is no predecessor
until the next election of Trustees. 1f a vacancy is not filled within ninety (90) days of the
event which resulted in there being fewer Trustees than required by the Charter of By-
laws, any Trustee may apply to a court having equity jurisdiction in the county in which
the Corporation has it’s principal office to have such court appoint a sufficient number of
Trustees so that the corporation will have the number of Trustees required by its Charter
or By-laws, whichever number is greater. Any trusteeship 1o be filled by reason of an
increase in the number of trustees may be filled by election by the Roard of Trustees for a
term of office continuing only until the next lection of trustees.

Section 5.11 Compensation and Reimbursement of Expenses. Lach trustee
shall be entitled to receive reasonable compensation, as may from time 1o time be set by
the Board of Trustees for services rendered 1o the Corporation. [n addition. each trustee
may be paid his or her reasonable expenses incurred by the trustee directly related 1o the
affairs of the Corporation upon prior approval by the Board of Truswees and proper
substantiation of such expenses. No such payments shall preclude any trusiee from
serving the corporation in any capacity and réceiving compensation therefore.

=16
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By Laws
Of
Living Development Concepts. Ine,

Section 5,12 Presumption of Assent. A trustee of the corporation who is presens
at a meeting of the Board of Trustees at which action on any Corporation maiter is taken
shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless his or her dissent shall be
presumned Lo have assented Lo the action taken, unless his or dissent shall be entered in the
minutes of the meeting, or unless he or shall file his or her writien dissem to such action
with the person acting as the secrelary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or
forward such dissent by registered mail 1o the Secretary of the Corporation immediately
after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply (o a trustee
wha vared in favor of such action.

Section 5.13 Resignation, A trustee may resign his or her membership at any time
by tendering his or her resignation in writing to the Presiden or, in the case of the
resignation of the President, to the Secretary. A resignation shall hecome effective upon
the date specitied in such notice or, 1f no date is specified, upon reeeipt of the resignarion
by the Corporation at fis principal place of business.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

Section 6.1 Number. There shall be a resident and a Secretary of the Corporation,
each of whom shall be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The
Board of Trustees may also elect one (1) of more Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer, and such
other assistant officers, as the Board of Trustees may from time 16 time deem necessary
or appropriate.  Any two or more offices muy be held by the same person. except for the
office of President and Secretary. ‘

Section 6.2 Election and Term of Office. The initial officers of the corperation
shall be elected bye the incorporater(s) for a term of office expiring immediately
following the first annual meeting of the Corporation. The Board ol Trustees at its
annual mecting shall elect the officers of the Corporation annually. 1f the election of the
officers shall not be held at such meeting. such election shall be held, as soon thereafter
as may be convenient. Each officer shall held office for a term of one (1) year expiring
immediately following the annual mecting at which he or she was elected and until his or
her successor shall have been duly elevted and gualified, or until his or her earlier death.
resignation, or removal from office in the manaer herginafter provided. A retiring officer
may not succeed himself or hersel{ in office, but may be eligible for election w another
office or to the Board of Trustees.
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By Laws
Of
Living Development Concepts, Inc.

Section 6.3 President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the
Corporation, He or she shall, when presen:, preside a1 all meaiings of the Board of
Trustees and the Executive Committee, and shall in general perform all of the duties, and
have all of the authority, incidemt o the -office of the chief sxecuiive officer of a
corporation, and such other duties as may from time be prescribed by the Board of
Trustees. The President may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper office thereunto
authorized by the Board of Trustees deeds, mortgages, bonds. comtracts, or other
instruments which the Board of Trustees has authorized to be executed, except in cases
where the signing and execution thereof shall be cxpressly delegated by the Board of
Trustees or these By-Laws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation or shali be
required by law to be otherwise signed or executed.

Section 6.4 Vice-President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or
her death, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more
than one Vice President, the Vice President in the order designated at the time of the
clection) shall perform the duties of the President (peoding election, if necessary, of a
successor pursuant (o Section 6.8 below) and when so acting, shall have all the powers of,
and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the President, Any vice-President shall
perform such duties as may from time (o time be assigned to him or her by the Board of
Trustees.

£

Section 6.5 Secretary. The Secretary will keep the minutes of the proceedings of
the Board of Trustees in one or more books provided for that purpose: see that all notices
are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-laws or as requires by the
law; be custodians of the corporate records and of the seal, if any, of the Corporation and
see that the seal is affixed 1o u¥) documents, the exceution of which address shall be
fumished to the Secretary by each Trustee; and in general perform all dutics incident to
the office of Secretary and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him
or her by the President of the Board of Trustecs.
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By Laws
Of
Living Development Concepts, Inc.

Section 6.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of, and be
responsible for, all funds and securities of all the Corporations: receive and give receipts
for monies due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit
all such monics in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, ar other
depasitories as shall be scleet in accordance with the provisions of Article V111 of these
By-laws; dishurse the funds of the Corporation in accordance with the directives of the
Board of Trustees, taking proper vouchers for such disbursernents, and render to the
Board of Trustees, and accounting for all the transactions of the Treasurer and of the
financial conditons of tre Corporation; and in geveral perform all duties incident (o the
office of Treasurer and such other duties as may from time to ime be assigned to him or
her by the President or other Board of Trustces.

Section 6.7 Removal. Any member of the Board of Trustees removed from office
pursuant to Section S13 shall be automatically removed as an officer. the Board of
Trustces may by a two-thirds (2/3) vote remove any officer when in its judgment. the best
interest of the Corporation will be served thereby. Chairperson serves § years a 2/3 vote
must carry for two consecutive meeting for the removal.

Sectior 6.8 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resigaation.
removal, disqualification, or otherwise. may be filled by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the Board of Trustees for the un-expired portion of the term,

Section 6.9 Resignations. An officer may resign his or her office at any time by
tendering his or her resignation in writing to the President, or in the case of the
resignation of the President, to the Secretary. A resignation shall become effective upon
the date specified in such written notice, or if no date is speeified. upon receipt of the
resignation by the Corporation at its principal place of business.

Section 6.10 Salaries and Expenses. The officers of the Corporation shall be
entitled to reasonable cornpensation, as may be set by the Bosed of Trustees from time 1o
time for services rendered to the Corporation. Reasonable expenses incurred by all of the
officers of the Board of Trustees ia the course of coordination shall be reunbursed by the
Corporation upon proper substantiation. No officer shall be prevented from receiving
reasonable compensation by reason of the fact that be alse is a member of the Board of
Trustees.
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ARTICLE VII
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Section 7.1 Appointment of Executive Committee. The Board of Trustees by
resolution adopted by a majority of its voting members, may designate three (3) or more
of its members to constitute an executive Cotnmittee and shall hold office unti} the next
annual meeting of the Board of Trusiees following his or ber designation and umil his or
her suecessor has been appointed and gualified. The designation of the Executive
Comnmittee and the delegation of authority thereto shall not operate 1o relieve the Board

of Trustees, or anry member thereto, of any responsibility by law.

Section 7.2 Authority of Executive Committee. The Executive Commiltee,
when the Board of Trustees is not in session. shail have and may exercise all the authority
of the Board of Trustees except to the extent, if any that such authority shall be limited by
the resolution appointing to the Executive Committee or by these By-laws, All action
taken by the Executive Committes shall be subject to ratification by the Board of
Trustees. However, the Executive Commitiee shall not have the authority of the Board of
Trustees with respect to fitling any vacancy on the Board of Trustees; amending or
repealing any resolution of the Board of Trusiees which by it express tenms is not so
amendable or repealable; amending or repealing the Charter or the By-laws of the
corporation; adopting & plan of merger or consolidation. selling, leasing. or otherwise
disposing of all or substantially all the property and assets of the corporation other than in
the usual and regular course of its business: or voluntarily dissolving the Corporation or
revoking a voluntary dissolution.

Section 7.3 Meeting of Executive Committee. Regular meeting of the
Executive Committee may be held at such times and places as the Executive Committee
may from lime to time fix by resolution. Special meetings of the Executive Comtmittee
may be called by any member upon concurrence of a majonty of the members of the
Executive Commiltes upon not less than three (3} business days™ motice prior thercto.
The notices provided for in this Section shall siate the place, date, and hour of the
meeting, and the business proposed to be transacted ai the meeting.

Section 7.4 Quorum of Executive Committee. A majority of the voiing
members of the Executive Committec shall constitute a guorum for the transaction of
business at any mecting thereof. Action of the Executive Commitice must be authorized
by the affirmative vote of o majority of all voting members present al a meeting at which

a quorum is present.

-10-
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Section 7.5 Action of Executive Committee. Without o meeting. Any action
required or permitted to be aken by the Executive Committee without a meeting tiay be
taken without a rneeting in sccordance with the revisions of Section 3.9 of these By-laws.

Section 7.6 Executive Commiitee Procedures. The Executive Committe shall
fix its own rules of procedure, provided such rules are not inconsisicnt with these By-
laws. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and teport
its proceedings to the [Board of Truslees for its information at the next meeting of the
Board of Trustecs held afier such proccedings.

Section 7.7 Vacancies, Resipnations and Removal. Any vacancy in the
Exeoutive Committee may be {filled by a resohution adopted by a majavity of the vating
members of the Board of Trustees. Any member of the Executive Commitiee may be
removed at any time with or without cause by resolution adopied by a majority of the
voting members of the Board of Trustees. Any member of the Executive Committee mey
resign from tbe Executive Committce at any lime by giving written notice to the
President or Secretary of the Corporation, and unless otherwise specified therein, the
acceptance of such resignation shall ot be necessary to make it effective.

Section 7.8 Standing Committees. The Board of Trustees may maintain soch
standing commitiees as it may determine from time to (ime 1o be necessary of desirabie
for its proper functioning. Such commitiees shall consist of three (3) or more members,
shall be under the contro} and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees of these By-
faws shall maintain a permanent record’ of actions and proccedings and shall regularly
submit a report of their actions to the Boards of Trustees which shall ratify the actions of
each committee, The President, or his or her designes, shall serve oo each Comritice ag
an ex-officio member, Such standing commitiees shail bave such authority as the Board
of Trustees may stipulate, except that no committee shall have the authority of the Board
of Trustees with respect to those matters delineated in Section 5.2 above,

Section 7.9 Ad Hoc Commiftee. The President. with the approval of the Board of
Trostees as evidenced by resolution, may from time to lime create such ad hoc
committees, as the President belicves necessary or desirable 10 investigate matters or
advise the Board of Trustees, Ad Hoe Conunittees shall [imit their activities 10 the
accomplishment of the tasks for which created and shall have no power 1o act except as
specifically conferred by resolution of the Board of Trusiees. Such committees shall
operaie until their tasks have been accomplished or uniil discharged by the Board of
Trostees.
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ARTICLE VIiII
CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS,
INVESTMENTS

Section 8.1 Contracts and Employment of Agents. The Board ol Trustees
may authorize any trustee, officer or agent to enter into any contract, or execute and
deliver any instrument, in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation. The Board of
Trustees shall be specifically authorized, in its sole discretion, 10 employ ant to pay the
compensation of such agents, accountants, eustodians, experts, consultants, and other
counsel, legal, investment, or otherwise, as the Board of Trustees shall deem advisabie,
and to delegate discretionary powers to, and rely upon information furnished by such
individuals or entities, Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 8.2 Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Cotporation, and no
evidences if indebtedness shall be issued in its names, unless authorized by a resolution
of the Board of Trustces, Such authority may be general or confined to specific
instances.

Section 8.3 Checks. Drafts, and Ete. All checks, drafis, or other orders for Use
payment of money, notes, or other evidences or indebtedness issued in the name of the
Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers. agent or agents of the Corporation
and in such manmner, as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board

of Trustees.

Section 8.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation or otherwise employed shall be
deposited from time to time to the credits of the Corporation with such banks, trust
companies, brokerage accounts, investment managers, or other depositaries as the Board
of Trustees may from time to time select.

Section 8.5 Investment Authority. The Board of Trustees shail be authorized to
retain assets distributed to the Corporation. even though such asscts may constinte an
aver concentration ip one or more similar investments. Further, the Board of Trustees
shall have the authority to make ipvestments in unproductive property, or o held
unproductive property 1o the extent necessary until it can be converted into productive
property at an appropriate time, provided the retention of such property is in the best
interest of the corporation and does not in any way jeopardize the tax-exempt status of
the Corporation.
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ARTICLE IX
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

Section 9.1 Standards of Conduct. A trustee or an office of the Corperation shall
discharge his or her duties as a trustee or as an officer, including dutics as a member of 2
comminee;

a) In good faith;

b) With the care of an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exereise
under similar circurnstances; and

¢) In a manner he or she reasonably belicves to be in the hest interest of the
Corporation,

Section 9.2 Reliance on Third Parties. In discharging his or her duties, a trustee
or officer is entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, or staternents, including
financial swtements and other financial data if prepared or presented by

a) One or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the Trustee or officer
reasonably believes 10 be reliable and competent in the matters presented:

b) Legal counsel, public accountants and other persons as matters the tustees or
officer reasonably believes are -within the persons professional or expen
competence; or

¢} With respect 10 a trustee, a commitiee of the Board or Boards of which the trusiee
is not a member, as top matiers within jts jurisdiction. if the trustee or officer
reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.

Section 9.3 Bad Faith. A trustee or officer is not acting in pood faith if be or she has
knowledge concerning the matter in question that makes reliance otherwise permined by
Section 9.2 unwarranted.

Section 9.4 No Liability. A trustee or officer is not liable for any action taken, or
any failure to take action, as a trustes or oflicer. it he or she performs the duties of his or
her office in compliance with the provisions of this Article. or if he or she is immune
from suit under the provisions of Section 38-58-601 of the Act.  No repeal or
modification of the provisions of this Section 9.4, either directly or by the adoption of a
provision inconsistent with the provisions of this Section shall edversely aficet any right
or protection, as set forth herein, existingiin favor of o particular tndividual at the time
such repeal or mediation. .
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Section 9.5 No Fiduciary. No trustee or officer shall be deemed to be a fiduciary
with respect to the Corporation or with respeet to any property held or administrated by
the Corporation, including, without limitation, property that ay be subject to restrictions
inposed by the donor or transferor of such property.

Section 9.6 Prohibition on Loans. No loans or guaraniees shall be made by the
Corporation lw its trustees or officers,  Any (rustees who assents 10 or participates in the
make of such loan shall be liable to the Corporation for the amount of such loan untit the
repavment thereol.

ARTICLE X

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Section 10.1 General. A conflict of interest transaction is a transaction with the
corporation which a trustee or officer of the Corporation has a direct or indirect interest.
A trustee or officer of the Corporation has an indirect interest in a transaction if, but pot
only if. a party to the transaction is another entity in which the mrustee or officer has a
material interest, or of which the trustee or officer is a general partner, director, officer, or
trustee. A conflict of interest transaction is not voidable, or the basis for imposing
liability on the trustee or officer, if the transaction was fair at the time it was entered into,
or if the transaction is approved as provided in Section 10.2.

Section 10.2 Manner of Approval. A transaction in which a frustee or officer of
the Corporation has a conflict of interest may be approved if:

2) The material facts of the transaction and the interest of the Trustee or Officer were
disclosed or known to the Board of Trustees or to committee consisting entirely of
members of the Board of Trostees, and the Bourd of Trustees or such committee
authorized, approved, or ratified the transaction; or

b} Approval is obtained from the Automey General of the Stare of Tennessec. or
from a court of record having equity jurisdictior in an action in which the
Atterney General is joined as a party.
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Section 10.3 Quoram Reguirements. For purposes of Section 10.2, a conflict of
interest transaction is authorized, approved or ratified if it receives the affirmative vow of
majority of the members of the Board of Trustees, or of a committee consisting entirely
of members of the Board of Trustecs, who have no direet or indirect interest in the
transaction; but a transaction may not be authorized, approved, or ratified under this
Article by a single trustee, A quorumy i3 presest for the purpose of taking action under
this article if a majority of the members of the Board of Trustees who have no direct or
indirect interest in the transaction vote, authorized. approved, or ratity the transaction.
The presence of, or vote cast by, a trustee with a direct or indirect interest in the
transaction does not affect the validity of any action taken under subsection 10.2 () if the
transaction is otherwise approved as provided in Section 10.2.

ARTICLE X]

INDEMNIFICATION AND ADVANCEMENT OF
EXPENSES

Section 11.1 Mandatory Indemnification of Trustees and Officers. To the
maximum extent permitted by the provision of Scction 48-58-501, et. seq., of the act, as
amended from time to time (provided, however, that if an amendment t¢ the Act in any
way limits or restricis the indemnification rights permitted by law as of the date hereof,
such amendment shall apply only to the extent mandated by law and only to aclivities of
persons subject to the indemnification under this section which occur subsequent to the
cflective date of such amendment), the Corporation shall indempify and advance
expenses to any person who is or was a trustee or officer of the Corporation, or to such
person’s heirs, exceutors. administrators and Jegal representatives for the defense of any
threatened, pending. or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal.
administrative, o1 investigative, and whether formal or informal {(any such actiog, suit or
proceeding being hereinafter referred to as the “Proceeding”™), to which such person was,
is or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent which indemnification
and advancement of expenses shall include counsel fees actually incurred as a result of
the proceeding or any appeal thereof reasonadle expenses actually imeurred with respect
o the “Proceeding™, all fines, judgmenis, penalties and amounts paid in setdement
thereof, subject to the foliowing conditions:
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a) The proceeding was instituted by reason of the fact that such person is or
was a trustee of the Corporation; and

b} The trustee or officer conducted himself or herself in good faith. and he or
she reasonably believed (i) in the case of conduct in his or her official
capacity with the Corporation, that his or her conduct was in its best
interest: (i) in all other cases. that his or her conduct was at least not
opposed 1o the best interests of the Corporation; and (i1} in the case of any
criminal proceeding, that be or she bad ao reasonable cause to believe his
or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of a proceeding by
judgment, order, settiement, conviction, or upon a pica of nolo contendere
or its equivalent is not, of itself, determinative that the trustee or officer
did not meet the standard of venduct herein described,

Section 11.2 Permissive Indemnification Of Emplovee and Agents. The Corporation
may, (0 the maximum extent permitted by the provisions of Section 48-58-501. Et seq, of
the Act as amended from time to time {provided however, that if an amendment to the act
in any way limits or restrict the indetnnification rights permitied by law as of the date
bereof, such amendment shall apply only te the extent mandated by law and only to
activities of persons subject to indemnification under this Scction which occur
subsequent to the effective date of such amendment), indemnify and advance expenses in
a Proceeding 1o any person who is or was an employee or agent of the Corporation, or 1o
such person, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, to the same extent
as set forth in Section 11.1 above, pravided that the Proceeding was instituted by reason
of the fact that such person is or was an employee or agent of the Coerporation to the
extent, consistent with public policy, as may be provided by the Charter. by these By-
laws, by contmct, or by general or specific action of the Board of Trustees.

216 -
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Section 11.3 WNon-Exclusive Application. The rights to  indemmification and
advancement of expenses set forth in Sections 1. and 11.2 above are contractual
between the Corporation and the persop being indemnified, and his or her heirs,
executors, administrators and Jepal representatives, and are not exclusive of other simijar
rights of indemmification or advancement of expenses to which such person may be
entitled, whether by contract, by law, by the Charter, by a resolution of the Board of
Trustees, by these By-Laws, by the purchase and maintenance by the (orporation of
insurance on behalf of a trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation, or by an
agreement with the Corpomtion providing such indemnification all of which means of
indemnification and advancement of expenses are hereby specifically authorized.

Section 11.4 Non-Limiting Application. The provision of this Articie Xi shall not limit
the power of the Corporation 10 pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a trustee, ofticer,
employvee, or agent of the Corporation in connection with such person’s appearing as a
witness in a Proceeding at a time when he or she has not been made a named defeadant or
respandent 10 the Proceeding.

Section 11.5 Prohibited Indemnification. Not withstanding any other pravision of this

Article XI. The Corporalion shall not indemnify or advance expenses to or on behalf of
any trustee, officor, cmployee, or agent of the Corporation, or such persor’s hewr,
executors, administrators or legal representatives:

a) If a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to such person establishes his or
her liability for any breach of the duty of lovalty 1o the Corporation for act or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional psisconduct or a knowing
violation of law, or under Section 48-58-304 of the Act; or

b) In connection with a Praceeding by or in the nght of thie Comoration ir which
such person was adjudged hable to the Corporation; or

¢} In connection with any other Proceeding charging improper personal benefit 10
such person, whether or not invelving action in his or her official capacity, 1n
which he or she was adjudged Hable on the basis thal personal beneflit, was
improperly received by him or her,
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odification Not Retroactive. No Repeal or modification of

the provisions of this Article XI, either direetly or by the adoption of a provision
inconsisient with the provisions of this Article. shall adversely affect any right or
prolection, as set forth herein, exi sung in favor or a particular individual at the time of

such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE XTI

NOTICES AND WAVIER OF NOTICE

The notices provided for in thesc By-Laws shall be communicated in person, telegraph,
weletype. or by mail (including e-mail) or private carrier. Written nofice is effective at the
carliest of (a) receipt; (b) five (3) days afer its deposit in the United States mail, if mailed
correctly addressed and with first class postage uflixed hereon; (¢) on the date shown on
the retum receipt. If sent by registered mail, retumn receipt requested. and the receipt
signed by or on behalf of the addressee: or (d) twenty (20) days afier its deposit in the
United States mail, if mail correctly, addressed, and with other than first class, registered,
or commitiee member of the Corporation under the Provisions of the Charter, these By-
laws, or the Act, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled 1o
such notice whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to

the giving of such natice,
ARTICLE Xin

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall cnd on the lasi day of December, or on such other

dates as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Trustees,

ARTICLE XIV

PROCESS FOR LOW-INCOME BENEFICIARIES

Low income beneficiaries, including committee members and most of our applicants will
be involved in the advisement regarding the design, location. development  and
management of our affordable housing renial program.  We will elect a conunitiee for

=

tach planned rental housing project. Fach commiiice member wiil be educated and
informed of the Federal, State and Local govemment regulations to rehabilitating and/or

building housing, Consideration includes:

S i8-
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&) The cost of the rehabilitation andror property

b) The size of the rental housing property

¢} The cost of the affordable housing

d) The possibility of vandalism andfor theft during the process. as well as security
and safety.

Development of projects is discussed during committec moeetings.

All projects will be managed by CIIDO Board Members, as well as the low income
commitice members will he educated ahout:

The process of sbiaining project funding.
Obtaining permits.

Ordering materials.

Contract management and project/iob tracking.

* ® @ «

Our organization will make every attempt to include all potential affordable housing
rental applicants from the beginning of the rehabilitation and/or construction phase to its
completion. !

ARTICLE XV

AMENDMENTS

These By-laws and the Charter may be aftered, amended. or repealed. and a new Charter
or By-laws adopted, upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (273) of the Board of
Trustees at any annual or special meeting, except 10 the extent thal such alteration,
amendment, or repeal is inconsistent with Article XV hereof.
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AxTICLE XVI
EXEMPT 8TAT'7

The Corporation has been organized and wilt be operated exclusivelv for exemor £
federal income tax under Secuon 501 {ay of the Internal Revenue code as an organtzanon
dangnbed in Section 30§ ic) {3

These By-laws are adopted and shall be effective this _ ,f dav of %_,\,gi

2000,

{J‘iufcuui u[s.,,;, )’fj /Ezj_z_éu

Incorporator
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In reply refer to: 0248188044

CINCINNATI OH 45999-0038 Mar. 13, 2017 L7TR 4lé68C 0
62-1855943 000000 00
00021913
BODC: TE

LTVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS INC
% HENRY MILLER

3250 DICKERSON PIKE STE 212
NASHVILLE TN 37207

045273

Employer ID Number: 62~1855943
Form 990 reguired: Yes

Dear Taxpayer:

This is 1in response to vour reguest dated Mar, 02, 2017, regarding
vour tax-exempt status.

We dissued vou a determination letter in May 2002, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)
(3).

Qur records also indicate you're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509(a) because vou're described in IRC Sections
509(a)(l) and 170C(bYC1YCAY(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to you as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests;
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether vou must file an

annual information return. If a return is required, vou must file Forn
990, 9906-EZ2, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 15th day of the fifth manth after
the end of your annual accounting periocd. IRC Section 6033(Jj) provides
that, if vou don't file a regquired annual information return or notice
for three consecutive vears, yvour exempt status will be automatically
revoked on the filing due date of the third reguired return aer notice.

For tax foerms, instructions, and publications, visit www.,irs.,gov or
calli 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If vou have qguestions,; call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m«. and 5 p.m.,

local time, Monday through Friday ‘(Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Timel .
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0248188044
Mar. 13, 2017 LTR 4168C 0

62~1855943 800000 00
00021914

LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS INC
% HENRY MILLER

3250 DICKERSON PIKE STE 212
NASHVILLE TN 37207

Sincerelyv vours,

R obllp

Kim A, Billups, Operations Manager
Acepunts Management Operations 1
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CONCERTS. INe
“FOCUSING ON THE COMMUNITY”

3250 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212
Nashville, TN 37207
(615) 823-1931

Living Development Concepts (LDC) is a nonprofit organization committed to increasing
access to affordable housing for low-to-moderate-income individuals and families in
Davidson County, Tennessee. For over two decades, LDC has delivered essential housing
services to residents of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County
by developing quality, affordable single-family homes.

Our core service is the construction of affordable housing on vacant lots, many of which
are donated by the Metropolitan Government. These homes are then sold to income-
qualified buyers with incomes at or below 80% of the Area’s Median Income (AMI).
Through this process, we create sustainable homeownership opportunities for working
families who may otherwise be priced out of the housing market.

LDC’s target population includes first-time homebuyers, single-parent households, and
individuals and families from historically underserved communities who meet income
eligibility requirements. In addition to building homes, we provide guidance on financial
literacy and homeownership preparedness to help ensure long-term stability for our
clients.

Geographically, our program exclusively serves Metro Nashville and the greater
Davidson County area. We are proud to partner with local agencies, businesses, and the
Metropolitan Government to revitalize neighborhoods, promote equitable development,
and support residents in building stronger futures through affordable homeownership.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Board of Directors of
Living Development Concepts, Inc,
3250 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212
Nashville, TN 37207

We have audited the financial statements of Living Development Concepts, Inc., which comprise
the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and the
related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Living Development Concepts, Inc. as of December 31, 2024 and December
31,2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required 1o be independent of Living Development Concepts, Inc, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethlcal requirements relating to our audit, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting prineiples generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Living

SPD CPA Firm, 4121 Clarksvilie Pike, Nashville, TN 37218
Bus (615) 891-3012. Fax (615) 678-5454
"A Socially Respensible, Professionally Driven CPA Firm”
www spiepafirm.com
1 —
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Development Concepts, Inc.” ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the financial statements arg available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are tree from material misstatement, whether due to traud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if, individually on in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decision of users made on the basis of these financial
statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk.

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Living Development Concepts, Inc.” internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion 1s expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overalf
presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are condilions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Living Development Concepts, Inc.” ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and {iming of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
controls related matters that we identified during the audit.

BP9 Cof Air

SPD CPA Firm
Nashville, TN
March 20, 2025
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

2024 2023
Assets Restated
Current assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,239,875 $ 710,572
Investment Property 725,308 978,386
Total current assets 1,965,183 | ,688,958
Fixed Assets
Right of Use Asset . 13,934 23491
Property 178,770 178,770
Fumiture and Equipment 8.850 8,850
Accumulated Depreciation (86.298) (79,362)
Total fixed assets 115,256 131,749
Total assets $ 2,080,439 $ 1,820,707
Liabilities and net asscts
Current liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 193,428 $ -
Lease Liability- Current Portion 7.887 7.657
Rental Security Deposits 1,660 1,660
Note Payable 87,279 -
Total current liabilities 200,254 9317
Long-term liabilities
Lease Liability-LT Portion 6,047 15.834
Total liabilities § 296,301 $ 25,151
Net Agsets
Without Donor Restrictions 1,208,448 1.596,485
With Donor Restriction 575,690 199,071
Total net assets 1,784,138 [.795.556
Total liabilities and net assets § . 2,080,439 $  1.820,707

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Without Donor With Donor Total Net
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Gross tenant rent potential $ 22,800 $ - $ 22,800

Less: Vacancy . - -
Net tenant rent potential 22,800 - 22,800
Grant Revenue 62.555 426,563 489,118
Contributions 525,747 - 525,747
Other Income 3.409 - 3,409
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 49,944 (49,944) .
Total Operating Revenue 664,455 376,619 1,041,074
Expenses
Affordable Housing 1,006,173 - 1.006.173
General and Administrative 46,319 - 46,319
Total Expenses 1,052,492 - 1,052,492
Change in Net Assefs (388.037) 376,619 (11.418)
Net Assets, Beginnting of Year 1,596,485 199,071 1,795,556
Net Assets, End of Year $ 1,208,448 $ _ 575,690 $ 1,784,138

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi jal stal j .
panying g p ese financial statements Exhibit B
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Gross tenant rent potential
Less: Vacancy
Net tenant rent potential

Property Donation

Grant Revenue

Developer Fees

Contributiong

Other Income

Net Assets Released From Restrictions
Total Operating Revenue

Expenses

Affordable Housing
General and Administrative
Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year
Net Assets, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Without Donor With Danor Total Net
Restrictions Restrictions Assets
$ 20,005 - § 20005
20,008 - 20,005
424,000 - 424,000
60,000 34.375 94,375
27,078 - 27,078
718,586 - 718,586
22,?69 - 22,769
14,074 (14,074) >
1,286,512 20,301 1.306.813
763.216 - 763,216
27.508 - 27,598
790,814 790.814
495,698 20,301 515,999
1,100,787 178,770 1,279,557
5 1,596,485 199,071 3 1,795,556

5
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC,
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

2024 2023
Cash flows frem operating activities restated
{Decrease) Increase in net assets § (11.418) 5 515999
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities: '
Depreciation 6,936 6,936
Increase in accounts payable 103 428 -
Decrease (Increase) in right of use asset 0.557 (23,491)
Net cash provided by operating activities 198,503 499,444
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment property - (44%.811)
Sale of investment property 253,078 -
Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivities | 253,078 (448,811
Cash flows from tinancing activitics
Lease Liability (9.557) 23.49]
Issuance of Housing Fund Note 262,500 -
Draws on Housing Fund Note 234,477 .
Payments on Housing Fund Note (409,698) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 71,722 23,491
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 529,303 74,124
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 710,572 636,448
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,239,875 $ 710,572

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Affordable  General and
Housing  Administrative Total
Bank Service Charges $ - $ 242§ 242
Advertising and Promotions - 681 681
Automobile Expense - 90 90
Business License and Permits ! 40 40
Charitable Contributions - 5,251 5,251
Computer and Internet Expenses - 2,435 2,435
Contract Labor 470,000 - 470,000
Insurance Expense 6,448 2,011 8,459
Interest Expense 6,869 - 6,869
Miscellaneous Expense 10,793 - 10,793
Office Supplies - 552 552
Payroll Expenses 103,477 . 103,477
Professional Fees 230,299 18,466 248,765
Amortization of Right of Use Asset - 9,557 9,557
Rent Expense - 1,930 1,930
Repairs and Maintenance 75 - 73
Settlement Charges 69,285 - 69,285
Taxes - Property 8,759 - 8,759
Depreciation 6,936 - 6,936
Dues and Subscriptions - 1.595 1,595
Payroll Processing Fee - 1,988 1,988
Volunteer Reimbursements 24,875 - 24.875
Application Fee 2,750 . 2,750
Merchant Card Processing Fee - 1,481 1,481
Loss on Sale of Investment 65,607 65,607
Total Expenses $ 1,006,173 § 46319 § 1,052,492
The accomipanying notes are an integral‘pan of these financial statements Exhibit B
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUN CTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Affordable  General and
Housing  Administrative Total
Bank Seivice Charges - 5 175 8 175
Advertising and Promations - 2,195 2,195
Automobile Expense - 155 155
Computer and Internet Expenses - 2,230 2,230
Contract Labor 456,500 - 456,500
Insurance Expense 7.060 1.201 8,261
Miscellaneous Expense 8,241 - 8,241
Office Supplies - 1,134 1,134
Payroll Expenses 45,036 - 45,036
Professional Fees 224,281 10,208 234,489
Rent Expense - 6.396 6,396
Repairs and Maintenance 1,455 - }.455
Depreciation 6,936 - 6,936
Dues and Subscriptions - 849 849
Payroll Processing Fee - 1.040 1,040
Volunteer Reimbursements 12,957 - 12,957
Application Fee 750 - 750
Merchant Card Processing Fee - 2,015 2,018
Total Expenses 763216 § 27,598 § 790,814

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of these financial statements

8
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER'31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE |---NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization

Living Development Concepts, Inc. (The Qrganization), is a Tennessee Not-For- Profit
corporation. The Organization is a Community Housing Development Organization
established to transform communitics by innovative partnership and initiatives that
revitalizes neighborhoods by creating affordable housing for eligible populations.

Programs

ABC's of Home Ownership Program- Education:

The Organization develops housing solutions for qualified first-time buyers earning low-to-
maderate incomes. The Organization provides free workshops and one-on-one sessions to
help individuals understand what is required and to navigate through the home buying process.

Affordable Housing Program:

The Organization's mission is to promote home ownership through education and
development. We build, renovate, sell. and rent affordable housing for veterans, seniors,
families and individuals that are at or below eighty percent of the area medium income,

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the aceryal basis of accounting and accordingly
revenue is recognized when earned. support and promises to give are recognized when received
and expenses are recorded when incurred.

The financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting
Standard Board's Accounting Standard Cadification (FASB ASC 958), Financial Statements of
Not-far-Profit Organizations. Under FASB ASC 958, The Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Financial position and activities are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
restrictions as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not restricted by purpose or
time either temporarily or permanently by explicit donor stipulations or by law. Board
designation does not constitute a donor restriction.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions -~ Net assets that are restricted by purpose or time
cither temporarily or permanently by explicit donor stipulations or by law,

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, The Organization had $575,690 and $199,071,
respectively in assets with donor restrictions. See Note 4.
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

Revenue, Support, and Expenses
The Organization receives contributions from corporailons and individual donors and recognizes
revenue when cash or a firm promise to give is obtained.

Contributions received are measured at their Tair value and are reporled as an increase in net assets.
The Organization reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support
for future periods. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting
period are reported as unrestricted support,

Expenses are recorded when incurred in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

a1 ~
period. Actua! results could differ from thosc estimates.

Functional Expenses

Management allocates expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and support
services, Expenses and supporl services that can be identified with a specific program are allocated
directly to their natural expenditures classification. Other expenses that are cominon to several
programs are allocated based on various relationships.

In-Kind Donations

The Organization follows the recommendations of' the Financial Accounting Standard Board’s
Accounting Standard Codification (FASB ASC 958), Financial Statements of Not-for-profit
Organizations regarding contributions received and contributions made. These standards require
recording the value of donated goods or services that create or enhance non-financial assects require
specialized skills. Subject matter experts lend, their time and talents at no charge to spare the
organization the cash outlay for such goods and services rendered. All in-kind donations are
captured and reported appropriately in the Organization’s financial records.

The Organization records donated goods at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows; The Organization considers all highly liquid
investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
eyui valents.

Income Taxes
The Organization is a tax-cxempt entity under Section 501 (¢) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Accordingly, no provision for income tax is considered necessary.
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

Fixed Assets

Disbursements for property and equipment are capitalized and reflected in the statement of financial
position at cost. Expenditures for additions and major improvements are capitalized while those for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred. Depreciation, which is reflected as an
expense in the statement of activities, is computed on the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Fumniture and equipment 3—10
Buildings 20—39

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, The Organization has $1,239,875 and
£710,572, respectively of financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial
position date to meet cash needs for general expenditures. The balance at December 31, 2024
includes money market funds totaling $25,778.

NOTE 3—INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Organization periodically receives undeveloped property from the Metropolitan Government
of Nashville and Davidson County to develop and sell the property for affordable housing. As of
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, The Organization had $725,308 and $978,386,
respectively, in investment properties consisting of the following properties:

December 31, 2024;
1. Lot at 908 28" Ave $ 69.699
2. Lot at 160] Wheless St 138,203
3. Lot at O Dabbs Ave 42.315
4. Lot at 8 Cannon St 95,050
5. Lotat 0 Ezell Rd 40,450
6. Lot at 169 Old Henmnitage 59,550
7. Lotat91943™ Ave N 51,350
8. Lot at 2909 Booker St 58,750
9. Lot at 229 Center Ct 169,941
TOTAL 725,308
December 3 )23
10. Lot at 908 28" Ave $ 67.500
11, Lot at 160! Wheless St 135,000
12, Lot at Dabbs Ave 33,800
13. Lot at 8 Cannon St 91,200
14, Lot at Ezell R4 38,700
15. Lot at 169 Old Henmitage 57,800
16, Lot at 3210 Torbett St 96,831
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

17, Lot at 2737 Old Matthew Rd 57,718

18, Lot at 919 439 Ave N 47,500
19. Lot at 229 Center (1 51,450
20. Lot at 2909 Booker St 57.500
21, Lot at 1004 Arthur Ave 243,387
TOTAL § 978,386

The Arthur Avenue, Torbett St. and Old Matthew Rd, properties were sold in 2024,
NOTE 4—ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, was
$575,690 and $199,071 respectively based on the following agreements:

The Organization entered into agreements with Metropolitan Government of’ Nashville and
Davidson County to receive grant funds to develop propertics located at 8 Cannon St, 0 Ezell Rd,
(0 Dabbs Rd, 3210 Tolbert St and 2737 Old Matthews Rd o create affurdable housing on these
properties for persons of low income. The Affordability Period will commence upon the signing
of the declaration and continuing tor a period, of thirty (30) years thereafter. The intent is to
preserve these properties for persons ot low-income citizens of Davidson County.

As of December 31, 2024 the Organization received $426,563 of those grant funds, Of those funds,
$49.944 was expended to make capital improvements to the propesties,

1. 3210 Torbett Drive S 106,250
2, 1604 Arthur Ave 109,375
3. 229 Center Street 85,038
4. 2737 Old Matthews Rd _ 125,000

Total $ 426,563

As of December 31, 2023 the Organization received $34.375 of those grant funds. Of those funds,
$14,074 was expended to make capital improvements to the properties.

5. 3210 Torbett Drive $ 15,625
6. 2737 Old Matthews Rd 18,750 .
Total $ 34375

The Organization entered into an agreement with the Metropolitan Development and Housing
Agency (MDHA) in accordance with the Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 (NSP2):

7. 1611 21% Avenue North $ 100,000

8. 1102 Clay Street 78,770
Total $.178,770
12
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

In consideration for the funds received, the following restrictions are placed on the property:

}. For the entire Affordability Period, the property shall be occupied only by households
whose incomes meet 1he requirements described below.

2. The property must be set aside for households that that qualify as middle-income
households, which select households must have annual incomes that do not exceed 50 to
120 percent of the area median income, as determined by HUD and in accordance with the
NSP2 Requirements, as may be amended from time to time,
The foregoing income and rent restrictions (the Affordability Restrictions) shall begin at
Praject Completion, which is defined as the date on which all necessary title transfer
requirements and construction work have been performed, and MDHA has entered the
project completion information into the disbursement and information system established
by HUD. The Affordability Restrictions shall continue for a period of 20 years beginning
on the date of Project Completion (the Affordability Period). The Property must remain
affordable for the entire Affordability Period,

4. The Affordability Restrictions may be released in writing by MDHA in its sole discretion,
prior to the end of the Affordability Period. A sale by foreclosure or transfer in licu of
foreclosure under a deed of trust encumbering the Property that has priority shall terminate
the Affordability Period and the Affordability Restrictions, to the extent permitted by
HUD.

L2

NOTE 5—NOTE PAYABLE

In September, 2024, L.DC received a loan commitment in the amount of $291450 from the
Housing Fund for the development of an affordable housing unit.

In November 2024, §145,691 was repaid to The Housing Fund with the sale of affordable housing
unit.

The remaining loan commitment, with a floating interest rate based on the floating rate for the
period of the loan, has a maturity date of September 17, 2025. The balance of the loan as of
December 31, 2024 was $87,279,

NOTE 6—OFFICE RENT

The Organization leases office space in the building known as The Ellwood, located at 3250
Dickerson Pike under a non-cancelable operating lease. The term of the lease is 36 maonths and
commenced on October I, 2023, At January 1, 2024, the monthly rental expense was $633
monthly until October 1, 2024 when it increased to $652. At January 1, 2024, additional monthly
operational cost was $85 and increased to $328 in June 2024. Total rental expense as of December
31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $11.487 and $6,396, respectively. The Organization
received a reconciliation credit in 2023 which reduced the total rental expense for 2023,
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LIVING DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS, INC.
: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023

Future minimum lease payments under the operating lease recorded as Right of Use (ROU) asset
and lease liability are as follows

2025 | 7887
| 2026 6.017

NOTE 7--CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject The Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash deposits. Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™) up to $250,000. At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
The Organization had $964,097 and $460,572, respectively, in excess of the FDIC insured limit.

NOTE 8~-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There were no subsequent events requiring disclosure as of March 20, 2025 the date management

evaluated such events. March 20. 2025 is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued. '
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GRANT CONTRACT 2026-R15-TH
BETWEEN

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENTOF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,

TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
TUCKER'S'HOUSE

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal carporation of the State of Tennessee
hereinafter referred to as "Metro”, and Tucker's House, hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of preserving affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be rehabilitating 4 Barnes Fund affordable housing
units located at various address located throughout Davidson County, hereinafter
referred to as the "Project’. The Recipient’s grant budget is incorporated herein by reference.

The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic organization.

A

A1,

A2

A3.

A4.

A5,

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a
forgivable lien in accordance with A.6.b, below.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein. :

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined ir Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation
in line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change
greater than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the
Metro Housing Director, However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds
provided to Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $100,000.

This Grant Contract by and throaugh the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described
herein. Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the
sole responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land
use change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the
Metro Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to
approve or deny zohing or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not
be used for such purposes.

Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and Project for compliance Barnes program.

-, {N02B1585 1} 1
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A8,

AT.

Requirements for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Projects:

a. Recipient shall ensure that initial homeowners are income-eligible at the time of
application. Income-eligible is defined as hauseholds with incomes in the targeted
income range provided in Attachment but in no circumstance exceeding below 80%
of the Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted by household size. The AMI is
established annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
and Recipient shall follow the AMI in effect at the time of each homeowner's
application.

b. Recipient shall record a lien and enter into a cost recapture agreement with the
homeowner according Lo Lhe fullowing schedule. The lien term shall commence on

the date all work on the home is completed.

I $1o:ooo $50T006 $3o:ooo $4o;ooo $5olooo $60:000 e
Investment | ¢, o0q STheEE $39,999 $49,999 $59,999 $69,999
Lien 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 6 years 7years | Byears

c. Ata minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application.

Froperty Standards

a. Work undertaken with the Grant Award must have a 1-year warranty. This warranty
guarantees that the rehabilitation work will be free form defects in materials and

workmanship for at least one year from the completion date.

b. Recipient shall correct all Code is?ues identified within the scope of work.

c. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact,

as applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

d. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient’s

grant application, which are incorporated herein.

e. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are

incorporated herein,

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant

agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services
rendered by the Recipient which are not performed within this term, Pursuant to
Metropolitan Code of Laws § 2.148.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete

{ND281585 1}
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its obligations under this grant contract WIthm twenty-four months from execution,
Metro is authorized to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated
funds from the organization.

B.2. Contract Extensions. Recipient must nopfy Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

B.3. Contract Completion. The Contract Completlon date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice.

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS: -

C.1. Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000) “Grant Award”,
The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B, details
the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount to be
provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient’s obligations hereunder. The
Grant Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees,
overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the
Recipient.

C.2. Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

C.3. Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section
C.1. Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed
based upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

e Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw
Schedule provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall
require an amendment to the Grant Contract.

+ Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The mspectlon must confirm appropriate completion
of the Project.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process

» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported by

appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.
¥

i
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C.4.

C.5.

C8.

C7.

C.8.

c.s.

C.10.

« Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.gov.

« Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

« Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan
Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of
project completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award.
Said report shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared
by a Certified Public Accounting Firm. or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient
Organization, It should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant
Contract.

Payment of Invoice, The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided
nor as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro,
on the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this
Grant Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metra requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro’s form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days
to complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient,

under this or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made
electronically. :

Procurement, Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and
services for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations,
including the Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all
plans and specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will
promptly review, and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable
grounds all estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a
contractor prior to payment. .
Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

(N0Z81585 1) 4
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C.11.

D.2,

D.3.

D.4.

D.5.

Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Bames Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the
Metropolitan Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor &

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidsen County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by
the appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this
Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any'failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall conistitute a "Default" (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following
written notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which
cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within
such 30- day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter
does not within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and
continuity the curing of such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant
Contract or if the Recipient violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have
the right to immediately terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to
Metro any and all grant monies for services or projects under the grant not performed
as of the termination date. The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds
expended for purposes contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not
relieve the Recipient of any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any
breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without
obtaining the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved
subcontractors, the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be
responsible for all work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount
shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages,
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee,
subcontractor, or consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work
contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract.

{N028158% 1} 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below
may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive
Grant assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement
with respect thereto, or the proceeds'thereunder, either for themselves or those whom
they have family or husiness ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,
Covered Persons include immediate'family members of any employee aor board
member of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through
the Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties
include (whether by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including
stepparent), child (including a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent,
grandchild, and in-laws of a Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no
person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the
employment practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of
applicable laws. The Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such
nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all employees
and ;mnlgr-anfc. notices of nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any
subcontractor of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Gavernment for
inspection and copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government.
Furthermore, said documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan
Government, to any state, federal or. other regulatory authority and any such authority
may review, inspect and copy such records Said records include, but are not limited to,
all drawings, plans, specifications, sybmittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda,
tape recordings, videos or other writings or things which document the grant project, its
design and its construction. Said records expressly include those documents reflecting
the cost of construction, including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentatlon for all funds provided under this grant
contract. The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to
funds provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3)
full years from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of
Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be
subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its
duly appointed representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the
standards outlined in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to
this Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro’s
duly appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the
affordability period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial
records, notes, and other documents pertment to this grant available for review by the
Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro's
representatives, upon request, during normal working hours.

{ND2B138S.1) 6
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D.9.

D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14,

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred
during the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form
provided by Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and
Narrative Report as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the
activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this
agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term,
covenant, condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be
held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the
appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance, The Recipient shall maintain'adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract,

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other
party contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a. Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents
and employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the
contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising
from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not
limited to, labor laws and minimum wage laws,

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient
from any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other
document that the Recipient may provide.

c. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient's failure
to fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d. Recipient’s duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

{N0281585,1) 7
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D.15.

D.186.

D.A17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause,

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this
Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or maodifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event
Metro prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s
altorney fees and cosls at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contractis complete and contains the entire
understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein,
including all the terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract
supersedes any and all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and
agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be
construed as part of this Grant Contract,

Licensurg. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain
all permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision df this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision qr to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or services
provided for herein, without any charge by members of the Grantor and its
representatives. \

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the
parties hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract,
neither this contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall
be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of
Metro. Any such assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its
obligations hereunder. Notice of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient
under this Contract must be sent to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

{N028) 585 1} 8
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D.25.

D.26.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement
standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity
in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
controversy in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
controversy or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a
contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach
of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or
on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier
subcontractor or a person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a
subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a
breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or
criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from participation in Metropolitan
Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund Planning
Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

Tucker's House

Graham Honeycutt, Executive Director
PO Box 682086, Franklin, TN 37068
615-310-5224
graham.honeycutt@tuckershouse.org

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behaif of
the Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member:of Congress in connection with the awarding
of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal
loan, and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal confract, grant,
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loan, or cooperative agreement. .

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants,
subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)
and that all subconlractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall hot be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan

Govemment and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

{N0281585 1 10
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF RECIPIENT:
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Tucker's House -
APPROVED ASTO P RAM SCOPE: X/ 2
I AL A e

Pgter Westerholm, Chair Title: fX@« oTHe Plrecthr
etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

' Swornto and subscribed th before me a Notary
APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF Public, this zA\{day of luj Wéx{” 2025,
FUNDS: '

Slgned by:

Jwineen Kerd fmpw
BiiT&d’Reed, Directnr ' [Notary Public seal]
Department of Finance

AR&B@Q}{:ED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:
E’% flmes
aaistant Metropolitan Attorney

APPRQOVED A8 TO RISK AND INSURANCE:

Docusigned by:

Belogun Cotl Natary Public

irector of Risk Management Services C?{)T N ,«ﬁl;’i_/' O@Mﬁm

SN >
APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN My Commission expires <Yty | (2026
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND !
DAVIDSON COUNTY: '

Metropolitan Clerk

{N02B1385.1)
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work

Contract Number: 2025-R15-TH

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Tucker's House

Project Location; Various addresses TBD within Davidson County
Project Type: Homeowner Rehab

Grant Award: $100,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units: 4

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

< 30% AMI < 50% AMI 51-80% AMI Total

2 2 4

Deeply Affordable Housing: Recipient commits to assisting 2 homeowners with incomes at or
below 50% AMI.

Project Summary: This project supports the rehabilitation of owner-occupied homes for
low-income families in Davidson County who 'are raising children with disabilities. The
program is designed to create safer, more accessible, and supportive living
environments that alleviate both physical and emotional strain for children and their
caregivers. Each rehabilitation project is tailored to the specific needs of the child and
family, addressing critical accessibility challenges and improving overall quality of life.
Through these individualized modifications the program empowers families to remain
safely and sustainably housed in their own homes while fostering long-term stability and
well-being.
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ATTACHMENT C

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule

The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.

Draw #

1*
2*
3*

4*

% of Grant

25%
25%
25%
25%

Milestone
Construction expenses at completion of Phase 1 homes.
Construction expenses at completion of Phase 2 homes.
Construction expenses at completion of Phase 3 homes.

Construction expenses at completion of Phase 4 homes.

*If a project requires a permit, the work must pass inspection by Metro Codes.

Note: Recipient must provide the number of homes to be included in each draw phase prior to the
first draw. All draw requests must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted
with Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid
on a reimbursable basis. '
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution, bylaws, or
instruments of organization;

2. A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact that the
organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended,

W

A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's

=2 U= A R ] 1GLuI S Rt &/ oAl

residents of the metropolitan government,

4. The proposed use of the funds to be pravided by the metropolitan government
(Provided in Attachment A);

5.  The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds and a line-
item identification of the proposed expendnture of metropolitan government funds
(Provided in Attachment B),

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial documentation
described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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Tuckers House

.30 avary child faels st home.

BYLAWS
OF
TUCKER’S HOUSE

ARTICGLE |
NAME AND PURPOSE

SECTION 1. Name. The name of the organization is TUCKER'S HOUSE. It is a nonprofit
organization incorporated under the laws of the state of Tennessee.

SECTION 2. Purpose. The Corporation is organized for exclusively religious, charitable,
educational and/or scientific purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or the corresponding provision of any future
United States Internal Revenue Law, including, for such purposes, the making of
distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under said
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as well as any lawful
purpose, as authorized by state law. Specifically, the corporation provides home
modifications for families who have children or young adults with disabilities.

ARTICLE Il
OFFICES

The principal office of the Corporation in the, State of Tennessee, is located in Williamson
County, TN, USA. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the
State of Tennessee, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the
Corporation may require from time to time.

ARITICLE Il
MEMBERSHIP

This corporation shall have no members.

ARTICLE IV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by
its Board of Directors.
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SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

SECTION 5.

SECTION 6.

SECTION 7.

SECTION 8.

Size and Terms. The number of directors of the Corporation shall be not less than
hine (9). Each director shall hold office for three years unless duly removed as
prescribed in Article IV. A nominating committee of three (3) current Directors
shall review and present nominations of new Directors to the Board for approval
as well as recommendations for Directors to serve 2™ terms or continue their
terms due to officer term. Each director must be reelected at the regular annual
meeting by a vote of the majority of the existing Directors. Directors may not
serve more than two consecutive terms without at least a one (1) year break.

Regular Meetings. A regular meeting ot the Board ot Directors shall be held at
least five (5) times a year and shall be called by the Board Chair. The Board of
Directors may provide the time and place for the holding of additional regular
meetings with notice as described in Section 5.

Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or
at the request of the Board Chair ar any two directors. The person or persons
authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the place for
holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by them.

Notice. Notice of any meeting shall be given at least five (5) days previous
thereto by written notice delivered personally, mailed to each director at his
business address, or by electronic mail. Any directors may waive notice of any
meeting. The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the
express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the
meeting is not lawfully called or.convened.

Quorum. A majority of the number of directors fixed by Section 2 of this Article
IV shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the
Board of Directors. A quorum shall not be established if more than 50 percent of
such quorom is related by blood or marriage or otherwise have joint financial
interests, such as business partnerships, etc. If less than a majority is present at a
meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time
to time without further notice. :

Manner of Acting. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

Action Without a Meeting. Any action that may be taken by the Board of
Directors at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if consent in writing,
setting forth the action so to be taken, shall be signed before such action by all of
the directors.
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SECTION 9.

SECTION 10.

SECTION 11.

SECTION 1.

SECTION 2.

Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors though less than a
quorum of the Board of Directors, unless otherwise provided by law. A director
elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the remaining term of his
predecessor in office. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the
humber of directors may be filled by election by the Board of Directors for a term
of office continuing only until the next election of directors by the Directors.

Compensation. No Director or Officer shall for reason of his/her office be entitled
to receive any salary or compensation, but nothing herein shall be construed to
prevent an officer or director ffom receiving any compensation from the
organization for duties other than as a director or officer.

Presumption of Assent. A director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting
of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall
be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be
entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to
such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before the
adjournment thereof, or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the
Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting.
Such right to dissent shall not apply to director who voted in favor of such action.

1

ARTICLE V
OFFICERS

Number. The required officers of the Corporation shall be a Board Chair,
Treasurer, and a Secretary, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors.
Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be
elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. In its discretion, the Board of
Directors may leave unfilled for any such period as it may determine any office
except those of Board Chair and Secretary. Any two or more offices may be held
by the same person, except for the offices of Board Chair and Secretary, which
may not be held by the same person.

Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation to be elected by the
Board of Directors shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the
October, November, or December meeting of the Board of Directors. If the
election of officers shall not be he|d at such meeting, such election shall be held
as soon thereafter as conveniently. may be. Each officer shall hold office for two
(2) years until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified,
or until his death, or until he shall resign or shall have been removed in the
manner hereinafter provided.
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SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

SECTION 5.

SECTION 6.

SECTION 7.

Removal. Any officer, agent, or director may be removed by a unanimous vote of
the remaining Board of Directors whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of
the Corporation will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without
prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or
appointment of an officer, agent, or director shall not of itself create contract
rights, and such appointment shall be terminable at will.

Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,
disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the
unexpired portion of the term.

Board Chair. The Board Chair shall be the principal executive officer of the
Corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general
supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation. They
shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. They may
sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Corporation thereunto
authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or
other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed,
except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shail be expressiy
delegated by the Board of Diregtors or by these Bylaws to some other officer or
agent of the Corporation, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or
executed; and in general shall: perform all duties incident to the office of the
Board Chair and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors
from time to time. f

Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) Keep the minutes of the proceedings of the
Board of Directors in one or more minute books provided for that purpose; (b)
See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these
Bylaws or as required by law; (c) Be custodian of the corporate records and of the
seal of the Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is affixed to all
documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Corporation under its seal is
duly authorized; (d) Keep a register of the post office address of each Director
which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Director; and (e) In general
perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and such other duties as
from time to time may be assigned by the Board Chair or by the Board of
Directors. !

Treasurer. The Treasurer is an, optional position. If there is a Treasurer, the
Treasurer shall have custody of:ithe Corporation funds and securities, shall keep
full and accurate account of receipts and disbursements in the appropriate
Corporation books, and shall require the deposit of all monies and other valuable
assets in the name of and to the credit of the Corporation in such financial
institutions as may be desighated by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall
require disbursement of the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the
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Board of Directors, and shall render to the Board Chair and the Board of
Directors, at any time they may require, an account of his or her transactions as
Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall
also report on the activities and financial condition of the Corporation at all
annual meetings of the members. *

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNITY

The Corporation shall indemnify its directors, officers and employees as follows: (a) Every
director, officer, or employee of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation
against all expenses and liabilities, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed
upon him in connection with any proceeding to'which he may be made a party, or in which he
may become involved, by reason of his being or having been a director, officer, employee or
agent of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or enterprise,
or any settlement thereof, whether or not he is a director, officer, employee or agent at the
time such expenses are incurred, except in isuch cases wherein the director, officer, or
employee is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of his
duties; provided that in the event of a settlement the indemnification herein shall apply only
when the Board of Directors approves such settlement and reimbursement as being for the
best interests of the Corporation. (b) The Corporation shall provide to any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee, or agent of'the Corporation or is or was serving at the
request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or enterprise, the indemnity against expenses of suit,
litigation or other proceedings which is specifically permissible under applicable law. (c) The
Board of Directors may, in its discretion, direct the purchase of liability insurance by way of
implementing the provisions of this Article VI.

ARTICLE VI
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
SECTION 1. Purpose. The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this
tax-exempt Organization’s interest when it is contemplating entering into a
transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer
or director of the Organization or might result in a possible excess benefit
transaction. This policy is intended-to supplement but not replace any applicable
state and federal laws governing canflict of interest application to nonprofit and
charitable organizations.
t
SECTION 2. Definitions. i
2.1 Interested Person. Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with
governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest,
as defined below, is an interested person.
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2.2

SECTION 3.
31

3.2

3.3

Financial Interest. A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or
indirectly, through business, *investment, or family: (a) An ownership or
investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has a transaction or
arrangement, (b) A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any
entity or individual with which the Organization has a transaction or
arrangement, or (c) A potential ownership or investment interest in, or
compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the
Organization is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors
that are not insubstantial. A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of
interest. Under Section 3.2, a person who has a financial interest may have a
conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides
that a conflict of interest exists.

Procedures.

Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an
interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and bhe
given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members
of committees with governing board delegated powers considering the proposed
transaction or arrangement.

Determining Whether a Conflictiof Interest Exists. After disclosure of the financial
interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested
person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the
determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The
remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest
exists.

Procedures for Addressing the Gonflict of Interest.

a) An interested person méy make a presentation at the governing board or
committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the
meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or
arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.

b) The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

c) After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall
determine whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity
that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably
possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the
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3.4

SECTION 4.

governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the
disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the
Organization’s best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and
reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its
decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.

a) If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a
member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it
shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the
member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.

b) If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further
investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or
committee determines the ' member has failed to disclose an actual or
possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and
corrective action. :

Records of the Proceedings. The minutes of the governing board and all
committees with board delegated powers shall contain: (a) The names of the
persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in
connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the
financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest is
present, and the governing board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a
conflict of interest in fact exists. (b) The names of the persons who were present
for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content
of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or
arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the
proceedings. !

SECTION 5. Compensation.

5.1

5.2

53

A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the Organization is precluded from voting on matters pertaining
to that member’s compensation.

A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation
matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the
Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that
member’s compensation,

No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction
includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the Organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited
from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.
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5.4

5.5

SECTION 6.

SECTION 7.

SECTION 8.

SECTION 1.

E3
The majority of our Board of Directors will be non-salaried and will not be related
to salaried personnel or tq parties providing services. In addition, all

compensation decisions will be made by the Board of Directors.

Further, all compensation paid will be reasonable and will be based on the
following factors: (a) the type and amount of compensation received by others in
similar positions, (b) the compensation levels paid in our particular geographic
community, (c) the amount of time the individual spends in their position, (d) the
expertise and other pertinent, background of the individual, (e) the size and
complexity of our organization, and (f) the need of our organization for the
services of the particular individual.

Annual Statements. Each director, principal officer and member of a committee
with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which
affirms such person: (a) has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy, (b)
has read and understands the policy, (c) has agreed to comply with the policy,
and (d) understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its
tederal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one
or mare nf its tax-exempt purposes.

Periodic Reviews. To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent
with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize
its tax-exempt status, period reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews
shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: (a) Whether compensation
arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey
information, and the result of arm’s length bargaining; and (b) Whether
partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations
conform to the Organization’s, written policies, are properly recorded, reflect
reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable
purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an
excess benefit transaction.

Use of Outside Experts. When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in
Section 7, the Organization may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside
experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its
responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

ARTJICLE VIII
CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or
agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the
name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or
confined to specific instances.
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SECTION 2. Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no
evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its hame unless authorized by a
resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined
to specific instances. ' :

SECTION 3. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money,
notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation,
shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and
in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the
Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be
deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust
companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

ARTICLE IX
FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end on the last
day of December each year. z

ARTICLE X
WAIVER OF NOTICE

Unless otherwise provided by law, whenever any notice is required to be given to any director
of the Corporation under the provisions of these Bylaws or under the provisions of the Articles
of Incorporation or under the provisions of the applicable Business Corporation Act, a waiver
thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or
after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws adopted when necessary
by a two-thirds majority of the Board of Directors.

The above Bylaws were approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation
on the 13th day of November , 2020.

Luke Bottorff
Secretary
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IRS Departraent of the Treasury
Intornal Revenue Service

5

018942

P.0. Box 2508 : In reply refer to: 0248230137
Cincinnati 0H 45201 Oct. 07, 2020 LTR 4168C Q
27-0896877 pooooo 0O
00014988
BODC: TE

TUCKERS HOUSE
PO BOX 682086
FRANKLIN TN 37068

Emplover ID number: 27-0896877
Form 990 required: Yes

Dear Taxpayver:

We're responding to vour request dated Sep. 29, 2020, about vour
tax~-exempt status.

We issued vou a determination letter in October 2010, recognizing
vou as tax-axeampt under Internal Revenue Code (TRC) Section 501(c)
(3.

We also show vou're not a private foundation as defined under IRC
Section 509(a) because you're described in IRC Sections 509(a)(l) and
178C(h) (1) CAY(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to you as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or  gifts under IRC Sections 205%, 2106,
and 2522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether vou must file an
annual information return., If vou're required to file a return, vou
must file one of the following by the 15th day of the Bth month after
the end of vour annual accounting period:

- Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

~ Form 990EZ, Short Form Return of Organization Exempt From Income
Tax ;

- Form 99%90-N, Electronic Notice (e-Postcard) for Tax-Exempt
Organizations Not Required to File Form 990 or Form 990-EZ

- Form 990-PF, Return of Private Foundation or Section 4947(a)(l)
Trust Treated as Private Foundation

According to IRC Section é033(j), if vou don't file a required annual
information return or notice for 3 consecutive vears, we'!ll revoke
vour tax-exempt status on the due date of the 3rd required return or
notice.

You can get IRS forms or publications vou need from our website at
www.lirs.gov/forms-pubs or by calling BD0-TAX-FORM (800-829-3676).

If vou have questions, call B77~é29—5500 between 8 a.m. and B p.m.,
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0248230137
Oct. 07, 2020 LTR 4168C 0
27-0896877 000000 00
00014989

TUCKERS HOUSE
PO BOX 682086
FRANKLIN TN 37068

local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
time).

Thank vou for your cooperation.

Sincerely vours,

Wanam. LRunlrs

Warren R. Burton, Operations Mgr
Accounts Management Operations 1
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Tucker’s House
Mission Statement

Our mission is to provide home modifications for families who have children or young
adults with disabilities.

Statement of Service

The Assessment & Inclusive Modification (“AIM”) is our flagship program that serves
famllles of children with disabllities In Mlddle Tennessee to alleviate emotional and
physical trauma by providing a safer and more accessible home environment. These
necessary and needed Owner Occupied Rehab projects ensure that residents are able to
live safely and in affordable housing.
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Tucker’'s House

Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO9CE17F35

Tuckel;\"s House
FinanciaIUStatements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Contents

Independent Auditor’'s Report 1

Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Activities

Statement of Functional Expenses

o2 TN ¥ 2 BN - N ¥

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements 7-11

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: SA1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-FOCO09CE17F35

—

BLANKENSHIP

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Tucker's House

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tucker's House (the Organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2023, the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Organization as of December 31, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion ~

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We dre required to be independent of the Organization and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Brenfwood . Goqdle’rfsyille . Murfreesbo!’o TN www . bepas.com
Nashville « Mt. Juliet ¢ Dickson « Columbia
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts, and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

‘.} .‘.'-.
P ftnbny) (A7 (Ficeyy [ Ld—

Blankenship CPA Group, PLLC
Columbia, Tennessee
September 18, 2024

-~

BLANKENSHIP 2
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Tucker's House
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2023

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 246,931
Contributions receivable 32,917
Prepaid expenses 3,606
Equipment inventory 6,110
Total current assets 289,564

Fixed assets

Furniture and equipment 10,238
Less: accumulated depreciation (8,033)
Fixed assets, net 2,205
Total assets $ 291,769

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 2,589
Net assets
Without donor restrictions 289,180
Total liabilities and net assets $ 291,769
See notes to financial statements 3
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Tucker's House
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Without donor With donor

restrictions restrictions Total
Public Support and Revenues
Contributions of cash and other financial assets $ 552,676 $ - $ 552,676
Contributions of nonfinancial assets 8,514 - 8,514
Grant revenue 31,100 = 31,100
Program service fees 7,182 - 7,182
Special event revenue, net amount of direct
benefil Lo donors of $4,778 54,324 - 54,324
Miscellaneous income 10,842 - 10,842
Gain on sale of asset 5,066 - 5,066
Interest income 262 - 262
Net assets released from restrictions 8,902 (8,902) -
Total public support and revenues 678,868 (8,902) 669,966
Expenses
Program services 577,190 - 577,190
Management and general 50,969 50,969
Fundraising 113,116 - 113,116
Total expenses 741,275 - 741,275
Change in net assets (62,407) (8,902) (71,309)
Net assets, beginning of year 351,587 8,902 360,489
Net assets, end of year $ 289,180 $ - $ 289,180

See notes to financial statements
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Tucker's House
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Program Management
services and general Fundraising Total

Salaries and related expenses
Salaries $ 216,188 $ 25,943 $ 46,120 $ 288,251
Benefits 9,088 1,091 1,939 12,118
Payroll taxes 16,376 1,965 3,493 21,834
Total salary and related expenses 241,652 28,999 51,552 322,203
Accounting and auditing 14,059 14,058 14,058 42,175
Automobile expenses 378 - - 378
Bank and credit card fees 365 - 3,283 3,648
Contract services 3,656 - 14,623 18,279
Depreciation 3,431 412 732 4,575
Dues and subscriptions 8,662 1,039 1,848 11,549
Insurance 2,794 335 596 3,725
Miscellaneous 14,287 1,715 3,048 19,050
Occupancy expenses 22,245 2,669 4,746 29,660
Office supplies 9,650 1,158 2,059 12,867
Program costs 251,140 - - 251,140
Special events B - 15,532 15,532
Telephone 576 69 123 768
Travel and meetings 4,295 515 916 5.726

$ 577,190 $ 50,969 $ 113,116 $ 741,275

See notes to financial statements
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Tuckeij's House
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year $ 239,351

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets (71,309)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 4,575
Gain on sale of asset ' (5,066)
Change in;

Contributions receivable (25,167)
Other receivable 10,000
Prepaid expenses (2,653)
Equipment inventory 83,175
Deposits 500
Accounts payable 1,629
Credit cards payable , (3,405)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (7,721)

3

Cash flows from financing activities

PMroceeds from sale of fixed assets 17,000

Cash paid for the purchase of fixed assets (1,699)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 15,301

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 7,580
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 246,931

See notes to financial statements
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Tucker’'s House
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Note 1. Nature of Activities

General

Tucker's House, (the Organization) is a Tennessee not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose of partnering with
the families of children with disabilities by providing the home renovation and retrofitting services and resources
necessary to make their homes safe and more accessible. The Organization is financed primarily through
contributions from the public, as well as local grants. A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently
applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP). Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations
of accounting and financial reporting standards prescribed for not-for-profit organizations. Accordingly, net assets
of the Organization, and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to or are no longer subject to donor-
imposed stipulations. ’

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed time and/or purpose
restrictions.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains
and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without
donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of donor
restrictions on the net assets (i.e,, the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period
has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. The Organization has
adopted a policy to classify donor restricted contributions as without donor restrictions to the extent that donor
restrictions were met in the year the contribution was received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ’

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted and highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Contributions and Contributions Receivable
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in substance,

unconditional.

In the absence of donor restrictions to the contrary, restrictions on contributions of property or equipment or on
assets restricted to acquiring property or equipment expire when the property or equipment is placed in service.
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Tucker’'s House
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Equipment Inventory

Equipment inventory consists of equipment purchased by the Organization or donated by the community for the
use of placement in the home renovations and retrofitting services of the Organization’s clients. Donated inventory
is recorded at the fair market value at the date of donation. Inventory cost is determined based on the first-in, first-

out (FIFO) method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost or estimated fair market value, if contributed. The Organization capitalizes property
and equipment whose cost (fair value if donated) equals or exceeds $1,000. Improvements that increase the value
or the estimated useful life of the asset are similarly capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis
over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows:

Land improvements 10 =15 years
Buildings and improvements 15— 40 years
Equipment 5-15years
Furniture and equipment 5—7 years
Vehicles . 5 years

Depreciation for the year ended amounted to $4,575.

Leases

The Organization determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date on which the
terms of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and obligations. A contract is or
contains a lease when (i) explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been deployed in the contract and (i) the
customer obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of that underlying asset and directs how
and for what purpose the asset is used during the term of the contract. The Organization also considers whether its
service arrangements include the right to control the use of an asset.

The Organization recognizes most leases on its statement of financial position as a right-of-use (ROU) asset
representing the right to use an underlying asset and a lease liability representing the obligation to make lease
payments over the lease term, measured on a discounted basis. Leases are classified as either finance leases or
operating leases based on certain criteria. Classification of the lease affects the pattern of expense recognition in
the statement of activities.

The Organization made an accounting policy election available not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for
leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all other leases, ROU assets and lease liabilities are measured based on
the present value of future lease payments over the lease term at the commencement date of the lease (or January
1, 2022, for existing leases upon the adoption of ASC Topic 842, Leases). The ROU assets also include any initial
direct costs incuired and lease payments made at or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease
incentives received. To determine the present value of lease payments, the Organization made an accounting policy
election available to non-public companies to utilize a risk-free borrowing rate, which is aligned with the lease term

at the lease commencement date (or remaining term for leases existing upon the adoption of Topic 842).
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Tucker’'s House
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Leases

Future lease payments may include fixed-rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index (such as the
consumer price index), which is initially measured using the index or rate at lease commencement. Subsequent
changes of an index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base rent are recorded in variable lease expense
in the period incurred. Residual value guarantees or payments for terminating the lease are included in the lease
payments only when it is probable they will be incurred.

The Organization has made an accounting policy election to account for lease and nonlease components in its
contracts as a single lease component for its real estate, vehicle and equipment asset classes. The nonlease
components typically represent additional services transferred to the Organization, such as common area
maintenance for real estate, which are variable in nature and recorded in variable lease expense in the period
incurred.

Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets

Donated supplies are reflected as contributions at their estimated fair value on the date of receipt. The contribution
of services is recognized if the services received (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized
skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation.

Volunteer services neither create nor enhance nonfinancial assets nor do they require specialized skills, and thus are
not recognized as support in the accompanying statement of activities.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a
charitable organization. Accordingly, no provision for income tax has been made. US GAAP requires the
Organization management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Organization and recognize a tax liability (or asset)
if the Organization has taken an uncertain position that' more likely than not would not be sustained upon
examination by the Internal Revenue Service. The Organization’s management has analyzed the tax positions taken
by the Organization and has concluded that as of year-end, no uncertain positions have been taken or are expected
to be taken that would require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the financial statements. The
Organization could be subject to routine audits by taxingjuriédictions for the period of 2020 to the present; however,
there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress.
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Tucker’'s House
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Allocation of Functional Expenses

The cost of providing program services and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities and functional expenses. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program or support
service are charged directly to that program or support service.

Costs common to multiple functions have been allocated among the related functions using a reasonable allocaticn
method that is consistently applied, as follows:

e Payroll and payroll taxes are allocated based on approximate time spent in activities related to the program
and various support services based on responsibilities assigned to personnel.

¢ Occupancy, accounting, and other expenses that cannot be directly identified are allocated pro-rata amaong
the benefitting program and support services based on estimated usage.

Management and general expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiahle with any specific program,
but which provide for the overall support and direction of the organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in contributions received in future years.
The Organization generally does not conduct its fundraising activities in conjunction with its other activities. In the
few cases in which it does, such as when the website is updated with request for contributions, joint costs have been
allocated between fundraising and management and general expenses in accordance with standards for accounting
for costs of activities that include fundraising.

Compensated Absences
The Organization has not accrued a liability for compensated absences since amounts cannot be reasonably
eslimaled, and any amounts would be considered innmaterial.

Note 2. Liquidity and Availability

The Organization's primary sources of support are revenues generated through contributions and grants. The
Organization has a policy to manage its liquidity and reserves following three guiding principles: operating within a
prudent range of financial stability, maintaining adequate liguidity to fund near-term operations, and maintaining
sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term obligations will be discharged.

The following table reflects the Organization’s financial assets:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 246,931
Contributions receivable 32,917
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 279,848
10
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Tucker’s House
Notes to Financigl Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Note 3. Net Assets

The Organization's board has designated a portion of its net assets for the following:

Operating reserve : $ 45,000
Capacity expansion 10,000
Total board-designated net assets $ 55,000

Note 4. Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets

The following represents contributed nonfinancial assets:
Office supplies $ 8,514

Unless otherwise noted, the Organization did not recognize any contributions of nonfinancial assets with donor-
imposed restrictions.

Contributed supplies were utilized for program services. The Organization estimated the fair value based on what it
would cost the Organization to purchase the items from a retailer.

Note 5. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents
and contributions receivable. The Organization maintains cash accounts at financial institutions that are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash balances may exceed FDIC limits. At year-end,
balances did not exceed federally insured limits. Contributions receivable consist of corporate and individual pledges
for the annual campaign, which are widely dispersed to mitigate credit risk.

Note 6. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through geptember 18, 2024, the date on which the financial
statements were available for issuance.

11
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-WHC
BETWEEN
THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENTOF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,
TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, 2 municipal caorporation of the State of Tennessee
hereinafter referred to as "Metro”, and Westminster Home Connection, hereinafter referred to
as the “Recipient,” is for the provision of preserving affordable housing as further defined in
the "SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be rehabilitating a minimum of 100 Barnes Fund
affordable homes located at various address located throughout Davidson County,
hereinafter referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient’s grant budget is incorporated herein by
reference,

The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or clvic organization.

—

A.  SCOPE

OF PROGRAM:

A1, Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a
forgivable lien in accordance with A.6.b. befow.

A.2. The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Wark, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein,

A.3. The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation
in line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change
greater than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the
Metro Housing Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds
provided to Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $483,000.

A.4.  This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described
herein. Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be praperly zoned, and it is the
sole responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land
use change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the
Metro Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to
approve or deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not
be used for such purposes.

A5,  Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-épproved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and Project for compliance Barnes program.

{Noz81585.1} 1
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A.B.

AT7.

Requirements for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Projects:

a. Recipient shall ensure that initial homeowners are income-eligible at the time of
application. Income-eligible is defined as households with incomes in the targeted
income range provided in Attachment but in no circumstance exceeding below 80%
of the Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted by househald size. The AMI is
established annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
and Recipient shall follow the AMI in effect at the time of each homeowner's
application. 3

b. Recipient shall record a lien and enter into a cost recapture agreement with the
homeowner according to the following schedule. The lien term shall commence on
the date all wark on the home is completed.

Barnes $1 0:000 $20000 f?OLOOO $40:000 $50:000 $60:000 £§70.000
Investment - X !
$19,999 $29,999 §39,999 $49,999 $50,999 $69,999
Lien 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 6 years 7 years 8 years

c. Ataminimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application.

Property Standards

x

a. Work undertaken with the Grant Award must have a 1-year warranty. This warranty
guarantees that the rehabilitation work will be free form defects in materials and
workmanship for at least one year from the completion date.

b. Recipient shall correct all Code issues identified within the scope of work.

¢. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards

(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact,
as applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

d. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient's
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

e. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient’s grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM: f

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro:shall have no obligation for services
rendered by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to

Metropolitan Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete

{028/ 585 1 2
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its obligations under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution,
Metro is authorized to rescind the cantract and to reclaim previously appropriated
funds from the organization.

B.2. Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

B.3, Contract Completion. The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice. ‘

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

C.1.  Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed Four Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand Dollars ($483,000) “Grant
Award”, The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B,
details the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount
to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's obligations
hereunder. The Grant Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable
taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred
by the Recipient.

C.2. Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason, The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

C.3. Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section
C.1. Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed
hased upon the Grant Budget.

a, Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule
¢ Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw

Schedule provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall
require an amendment to the Grant Contract.

» Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion
of the Project.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process
« Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the

directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported by
appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

{NO281385.1) 3
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C4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

c.8.

C.9.

C.10.

+ Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.aov.

» Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

« Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan
Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of
project completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award.
Said report shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared
by a Certified Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient
Organization. It should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant
Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided
nor as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro,
on the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this
Grant Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract. ;

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days
to complete, sign, and return the farm. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient,
under this or any other contract the Rec:|p|ent has with Metro, must be made
electronically. )

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and
services for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations,
including the Metropolitan Procurement Code or other acceptable purchasing and
procurement standard operating procedures. Recipient has provided Metro with all
plans and specifications needed for these procurement purposes which are deemed
acceptable. Recipient will promptly review, and either approve or disapprove, in good
faith and with reasonable grounds all estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all
work performed by a contractor prior to payment,

Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public

{N0281585.1) 4
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C.11.

)
X%

D.4.

D.5.

3

meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall inciude the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Barnes Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the
Metropolitan Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by
the appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this
Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved In accordance with all Metru procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default" (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following
written notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which
cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within
such 30- day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter
does not within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and
continuity the curing of such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant
Contract or if the Recipient violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have
the right to immediately terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to
Metro any and all grant monies for services or projects under the grant not performed
as of the termination date. The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds
expended for purposes contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not
relieve the Recipient of any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtus of any
breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without
obtaining the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved
subcontractors, the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be
responsible for all work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount
shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages,
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee,
subcontractor, or consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work
contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract.

{NO281385 1} 5
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D.6.

D7.

D.8.

|

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below
may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive
Grant assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement
with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom
they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.
Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board
member of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through
the Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties
include (whether by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including
stepparent), child (including a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent,
grandchild, and in-laws of a Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no
person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the
employment practices of the Recipient oh the grounds of disability, age, race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of
applicable laws. The Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such
nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all employees
and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which aré in the possession of Recipient, or any
subcontractor of Recipient shall be madé available to the Metropolitan Government for
inspection and copying upon written: request by the Metropolitan Government.
Furthermore, said documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan
Government, to any state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority
may review, inspect and copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to,
all drawings, plans, specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda,
tape recordings, videos or other writings or things which document the grant project, its
design and its construction. Said records expressly include those documents reflecting
the cost of construction, including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant
contract. The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to
funds provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3)
full years from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of
Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be
subject to audit at any reasonhable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its
duly appointed representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the
standards outlined in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be
prepared in accordance with generally aécepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to
this Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's
duly appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the
affordability period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial
records, notes, and other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the
Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro's
representatives, upon request, during normal working hours.

{N0281585 1} 6
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D.9.

D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14.

Reporting. Recipient will be required.to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred
during the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form
provided by Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and
Narrative Report as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the
activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this
agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term,
covenant, condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be
held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the
appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other gppropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no I{iébility except as specifically provided in this Grant

Contract
wontract,

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in 8 manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other
party contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless. ;|

a.  Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents
and employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractars, in connection with the performance of the
contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising
from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not
limited to, labor laws and minimum wage laws.,

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient
from any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other
document that the Recipient may provide.

c. . Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure
to fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d. Recipient’s duties under this sectlon shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

(N0281585 1) 7
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D.15.

D.16.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all

applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this
Grant Contract. ‘

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennegsee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event
Metro prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s
attorney fees and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire
understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein,
including all the terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract
supersedes any and all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and
agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be
construed as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain
all permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or services
provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and its
representatives, :

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the
parties hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract,
neither this contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall
be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of
Metro. Any such assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its
obligations hereunder. Notice of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient
under this Contract must be sent to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

{N0281585.1} 8
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D.25.

D.27.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in:connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the coptent of any specification or procurement
standard, rendering of advice, investjgation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity
in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
contraversy in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
controversy or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a
contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach
of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or
on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier
subcontractor or a person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a
subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a
breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in civil or
criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from participation in Metropolitan
Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts, All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Reciplent required or contemplated by thls Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be

hereafter specified by written notice. -

Metro:

Metropaolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund Planning
Department — Housing Division 3
PO Box 196300 .
Nashville, TN 37219 4
BarnesFund@nashville.gov :

Recipient:

Waestminster Home Connection
Keith Branson, Executive Director
3900 West End Ave.

Nashville, TN 37205
615-693-2153
BF@westminsterhomeconnection.org

S
b

Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. 'No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
the Recipient, to any person for influencing or attemptirig to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding
of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal
loan, and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,

{ND281585 1) 9
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continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-
'LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants,
subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)
and that all subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan

Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk, When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

| {N028I5BS 1) 10

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9CO9CE17F35

(THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)

{NO281585.1)

11
Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: 9A1A73F5-816A-4941-8A69-F9C09CE17F 35

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO PROGRAM SCOPE:

YA AT

eter Westerholm, Chair
Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF

LINDS:
[Mjwmum Kbbifwgw

Jenneen Reed, Director
Department of Finance

ARBROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:
Awos

Assistant Metropolitan Attorney

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND INSURANCE:

DocuSigned by:
Birector of Risk Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

RECIPIENT:
Westminster Home.Connection
— 9
By: “;Eﬂ'-”{::-z-f—’"“""‘” et Dians, o
-

:fi;cle: Exepu bive Dice oto~

Sworn to and subscribed ﬁfefor me a Notary
Public, thi& )& day of 9o , 2025,

[Notary Public seal]
/l _\;“. I_.'. =. ‘ :
AP e
- 7 ..t N
PR (A \ "
PO Y \
USRI ) N
SR AT RTINS S
rf.},).-\ !,.\\;!:.f}-l Lan iy /"_."’ ). f
“Frs

SO

Notary Public

QUBJ\ rBfo"%

Meftropolitan Clerk

{
My Commission expires }!/q/ } _1

402815851} 12
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work

Contract Number: 2025-R15-WHC

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Westminster Home Connection

Project Location: Various addresses TBD within Davidson County
Project Type: Homeowner Rehab

Grant Award: $483,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units: A minimum of 100

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

'30% AMI < 50% AMI ~ 151-80% AMI Total

Minimum of 50 Minimum of 100 Minimum of 100

Deeply Affordable Housing: Recipient commits to assisting at least half (50%/minimum of 50)
of all homeowners with incomes at or below 50% AMI.

Project Summary: Project will provide critical'home repairs and mobility modifications in at
least 100 homes. The project will preserve affordable housing and promote aging in place for
low-income older adults and people with disabilities. The scope of work will be tailored to each
home, focusing on safety, structural, and accessibility needs. Repairs will include roofing,
flooring, plumbing, electrical work, HVAC, bathroom modifications, wheelchair ramps, and other
mobility enhancements,
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Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget

ces an Se
dtemen

Amount Percentage of Status (Secured/Pending)
Sources of Funds Total

Barmes Housing Trust Fund |3 483,000 0% Pending
Developer Equity $ %
Private Lender $ %
Low-Income Housing Tax N
Credits § %
(LIHTCYetc.
Federal Home Loan Bank/ete. |$ %
Other Local/State Grants ] %

Matching Funds are $ 217,000 30% Secured

avallable from National

Chiristlan Foundation

n

Foundatlon and

Intemnal Funds
Total Sources $ 700,000 100%

Uses of Funds Amount Percentage of
Total
Acquisition Costs $ %
Construction Costs $ 640,000 91.5%
- Site Work 3 Yo
= Vertical Construction 5 %
- Contingency 3 %
Soft Costs $ %
- Architetture & Engineering $ %
- Legal and Pemmitting $ %
- Developer Fea 3 % (Max 20% of -
Bamas)
Barnes Fund $ 42,000 8%
Matching Funds % 18,000 2,5%

Reserves 5
{Operating/Replacement) $ %
Total Uses $ 700,000 100%

ATTACHMENT B
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule,
The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.
Draw # % of Grant " Milestone
1* 25% Construction expenses at completion of Phase 1 homes.
2" 25% Construction expenses at completion of Phase 2 homes.
i 25% Construction expenses at completion of Phase 3 homes.
4* 25% Construction expenses at completion of Phase 4 homes.

*If a project requires a permit, the work must pass inspection by Metro Codes.

Note: Recipient must provide the number of homes to be included in each draw phase prior to the
first draw. All draw requests must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted
with Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid

on a reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution, bylaws, or
instruments of organization,

2. A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact that the
organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended;

3. A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that serves the
residents of the metropolitan government;

4.  The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan government
(Provided in Attachment A);

5. The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds and a line-
item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan government funds
(Provided in Attachment B);

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial documentation
described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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CHARTER Page 4 of 2
- NONPROFIT CORPORATION j55.2418)

Diwision of Business Services For Qffice Use Only

Tre Hargett, Secretary of State

Siate of Tennessee Conlrak # 00706192
312 Rasa L. Parks AVE, fell FL SUB""SS‘“N EENGING
Nashvilie, TN 372431 132
(615} TAE-2280
Filing Fee; 100 Amount Due; §500,00

lease: file asfore 0211402013

The undersigned, asting as Incorporator{s) of a nonprofit corporation under the provisions of the
Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, adopt the foliowing Articles of Incorporation.

1. The name of the corporation is: Westrninster Home Gonnection

2. Name Congent: {Written Consent for Use of Indistinguishable Name)
[C1This entity name already exists in Tennessee and has received rame cansent frarm the existing entity.

3. This company has the additional designation of:

4. The name and complete address of its initial registered agent and office [ocated in the State of Tennessee is!
TERRY RAPPUHN ! DAVIDEON COUNTY
3500 W END AVE :

NASHVILLE, TN 37205-1301

5. Fiscal Year Close Maonth:  Decermnber Period of Duration:  Perpetual

6. if the document is not to be effective upen filing by the Secretary of State, the delayed affective date and ime is:
{none (Mot 10 excesd 30 days)

7. The corporation is not for profit,

8. Please complete all of the following ssntences by checking one of the twa boxes in gach sentence:
This carporation is & [Z]public benefit corporation /  _]mutal benefit carporation.
This corperation is a  [Z)religious carporation / [Jnot a religious corporation,
This corporation will  [Jhave members /  [Z]not have members,

9. The complete address of its principal exscutive office is:
3900 W END AVE DAVIDSON COUNTY
NASHVILLE, TN 37205-1801

~ (Note: Pursvant to T.C.A. §10-7-503 &l infarmation on this form is public record.)

$54413 (Rev. 113 ' FD 1678
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T ES N,
oy l..

STATE OF TENNESSEE
N Tre Hargett, Secretary of State
HElE : Division of Business Services
= William R. Snodgrass Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th FL
Nashville, TN 37243-1102

Westminster Home Connection February 1, 2013
3000 W END AVE
NASHVILLE, TN 37205-1801

Filing Acknowledgment

Please review the filing information below and nofify our office immediately of any discrepancies.

SOS Control # : 706192 Formation Locale:  TENNESSEE
Filing Type: Gorporation Non-Profit - Domasiic Date Farmed: 02/05/2013
Filing Date: 02/1/2013 1018 AM Fiscal Year Close; 12

Status: Antive : Annual Report Due. 04/01/2014
Duration Term; Perpetual Religious Corp: Yes
Public/Mutual Benefit: Public Image # : 7139-2787
Business County: DAVIDSON COUNTY

R "~ Document Receipt _
Receipt # . 838607 Filing Fee: $100.00
Payment-Check/MO - WESTMINSTER PRESYTERIAN CHURCH, NASHVILLE, TN $100.00
Registered Agent Address: : Principal Address:

TERRY RAPPUHN 3900 W END AVE

3900 W END AVE NASHVILLE, TN 37205-1801

NASHVILLE, TN 372(5-1801

Congratulations on the successfuf filing of your Charter for Westminster Home Connection in the State of
Tennessee which is effective on the date shown above. You must also file this document in the office of the Register
of Deeds in the county where the entity has its principal office if such principal office is in Tennessee. Visit the TN
Depariment af Revernse website {apps.tn.govibizreg) to determine your onling tax registration requirements.

Yous must file an Annual Report with this office on or before the Annual Report Due Date noted above and maintain a
Reqistered Office and Registered Agent. Failure to do so will subject the business to Administrative

Dissolution/Revocation.
Tre Hargett rf'

Secretary of State
Processed By: Cheryl Donnell

Phone (615) 741-2286 * Fax (615) 741-7310 * Wibsite: hitp:ittnbear.in.gov/
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CHARTER Pate 2 of 2
- NONPROFIT CORPORATION 560418

; fice Use Onl
Divisien of Huginess Services For Office. Lise Oy

Tre Hargett, Secretary ol State Control # 000705187

State of Tennessce e ‘
413 Roca L. Pagks AVE, GUh ¥l SUBMISSION PENDING
Nasivilie, TN $7233-E 102
(@35 1912356

Filing Fee: $100 Amount Due: $100.00
Pleaze fite befare 021472013

The name of the corporation is:  Westminster Home Cornection

10, The complete mailing address of the entity {if different from the principal office) is:
3900 W END AVE
NASHYILLE, TH 27205-15801

11. List the name and complete address of cach incorporator:
Titte Namea Business Address City, State, Z’i‘g_

Incarparator Joralhan E Maley " 1254 17TH AVENUE SOUTH NASHVILLE, TN 57212

12. School Orgamization: {required if the additional o’esignatioh of "Schosl Drganization - Exempt" i entared in section 3.)
[ § cersfy that puesyant to T.G.A. §49-2-611, this nonprofit eorporation is exempl from the $100 filing fee required
by F.C.A, §4B-51-303(a){1).
[ This nenprofit corporation is a “school supporl ozganizafion” as defined in T.C.A, §49-2-603{2)(A).
[T} This narprofit corparaticn Is an educalional institution as defined in T.C.4. §48-101-502(b).

14, Insert here the provislons regarding the distribution of assets upon dissolution:
In the event of gissolution of the Cerporation, all agseis will ke districuted to another nonprofit organizalion with a sitnilar

pUrpoSe,

14. Other Provisions: Statement of addilicnal provisions are attached hereio and specifically incorporated herein.

{Note: Pursuant to T.G.A, §10-7-303 all information on this form is public record.)
.l .—’—rf

Jan 45, 2013 4:22PM VM\

Signaluez Dale ﬁmm“}ignah;re —
Jonathan E hMolley

Incaroorator's Name (printed o typed)

E5-4418 (Rav. 1113) RDA 1678
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Supplemental Provisions To Westminster Home Connection Charter
Control No. 00766192

14(a). Westminster Home Connection is organized cxclusively for charitable, religious,
educational. and/or scientific purposes under section 501{c}3) of the Internal Revenue
Code,

J4{b) No part of the net carnings of Westminster Home Connection shall ensure fo the
benefit of or be distributable to its members, trustees, directors, or other privaie persons,
except that the organization shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable
compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in
furtherance of the exempt purposes (charitable, educational, religious andfor scientific).
No substantial part of the activitics of the organization shall be the carrying on af
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the organization shall
not participate in or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of statements)
any political campaign on behalf of or in oppesition to any candidate for public office.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, Westminster Home Connéction
shall not carry on any other activities not permiticd to be carried on (a) by an organization
exempt under section 301(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section
of any future tax code, or (b) by an organization, contributions to which are deductibic
under section 170{c)2 of the Internal Revenue Code or the corresponding section of any
future tax code.

14{c} Upon the dissolution of Westminster Home Connection, the organization's assets
shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section
501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future federal tax
code or shall be distributed to the federal government or to a state or local government for
# public purpose.

\ £

Jonathan Motley
rporator
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ACTION TAKEN ON WRITTEN CONSENT
OF THE INCORPORATOR OF
WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

ln Heu of the organizational mecting of the Incorporator of Westminster Home
Connection {the *Compeny”), a Tennessee not for profit corporalion, the Incorporator. in
accordance with the provisions of Section 48-52-105 of the Tennessee Business Corporation Act,
hereby unanimousty consents to Leking action without a meeting, by written consent, and hereby
takes the following actions:

8 Approval of Charter of the Company.

RESOLVED: That the Charter of the Company tiled with the Seeretary of State of Tennessee on
February 1, 2013, be, and it is hereby, accepted by the Incorperator as the Charter of the
Company. i

2 Election of Trustee Directors.

RESOLVED: That the following individuals be, and are hereby, clected to serve as the initial
$fn Fiast 1 padbrey yw o

Trustee Directors of the Company unitl the first annual mesting o
duly eleeted and qualified:

Reed Campbell
3900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205

Danovan Drake
3960 West End Avenue
Nasghville, TN 37203

Claire Harris
1900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205

Terry Rappuhn
3900 West Fnd Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Execution Page Follows.]

John Van Mol
3900 West End Avenue
Nashyille, TN 37205

Derek Bryant
3900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37203

Joe Gaines
3600 West End Avenue
Nashvifle, TN 37205

Scatt Portis
3900 West End Avenue
Nashyille, TN 37203

L2003 Wriken Cansent - [rearporitng WIHCL G

Steve Sullivan
3900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205

Stephanie Hardeastle
3900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37203

Jim Hartman
3900 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205
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The undersigned, being the sole Tncorporator of the Company, by signing this consent,
waives all notice of the date, time, and place of the organizational meeting of the Incorporator
and consents to the transaction of the business of said meeting by written cansent of the said sole
Incorporator in lieu of such meeting. This written consent of the Incorporator of the Company

shall be included in the minute book of the Company.

Date: February 1, 2013
APPROVED,AND CONSENTED TO:
A A

~R,
agthan £. Motley
Saole Incorporator of the Company

3012013 Weitten Consent - Incocporator WIHE LIOK
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—~ BYLAWS OF WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

Original: February 1, 2013

Revised: September 8, 2016

. Revised: January 8, 2020
' Revised: December 1, 2022

Article I. Name
The name of this organization shall be Westminster Home Connection.
Article II. Purposes

The mission of Westminster Home Connection, which is organized exclusively for
charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code, shall be to
engage in the following ministry:

To be an instrument of God’s grace to those residents of middle Tennessee who have home
repair, home modification or home maintenance needs and who are substantially limited in their
ability to address those needs due (o their age, economic situation, health, mobility or other issues.

No part of the net earnings of Westminster Home Connection shall inure to the benefit of or
be distributable to its members, trustees, directors, or other private persons, except that the
-~ organization shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services
rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the exempt purposes (charitable,
educational, religious and/or scientific). No substantial part of the activities of the organization
shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the
— organization shall not participate in or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of
‘ statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of these afticles, Westminster Home Connection shall not
carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by an organization exempt under
section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future tax code,
or (b) by an organization, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)2 of the

Internal Revenue Code or the corresponding section of any future tax code.

Article 1Il. Relationship to Westminster Presbyterian Church in Nashville, Tennessee of the
Presbyterian Church (USA), referred to herein as “WPC”

The Session acknowledges that Westminster Home Connection is a validated mission of
Westminster Presbyterian Church, Nashville, Tennessee. Westminster Home Connection relates
and reports to Westminster Presbyterian Church, Nashville Tennessee, through its Session, which
will provide oversight for Westminster Home Connection, its programs and its financial integrity.
The day-to-day management of Westminster Home Conncction shall be the responsibility of the
Board.
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Article IV. Trustees

Section 1.  Administration. The minisiry and business of this organization shall be
governed by a voluntary Board of Trustees, referred to herein as the “Board.” As Trustees, their
role is to further the organization’s purposes described in Article I1.

Section 2. Membership. There shall be at least seven (7) Trustees. All of the Trustees shall
be approved by WPC through WPC’s Session. At least two thirds (2/3) of the members of the
Board shall be made up of persons who are WPC members, or ordained or non-ordained staff of
WPC. Any paid employee (as opposed to unpaid volunteer) of Westminster Home Connection
shall be ineligible to serve on the Board. However, nothing shall prohibit the Board from inviting
employees of Westminster Home Connection from participating in Board or committee meetings in
a non-voting advisory function. Employees of WPC, including ordained and non-ordained staff,
are eligible to serve on the Board. '

Section 3. Nominations. Each new Trustee or class of Trustees will be nominated by the
Westminster Home Connection Board, in consultation and coordination with the WPC Nominating
Committee. The Trustees shall be approved by the WPC Session.

Section 4. Terms of Service. The term of service for Trustees will be three years. Terms of
service shall begin and end on the dates determined by the Board, in consultation with the WPC
Session, coincident with the WPC Session’s annual approval cycle for ministries of WPC. Trustees
may serve more than one term. Trustces may serve no more than six consecutive years. After
serving six consecutive years, trustees may not serve again for at least one year. Trustees shall
serve without compensation, but shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred by them in
performance of their duties.

Section 5. Responsibilities.

Board of Trustees (Collectively):

Lk Planning and Policy Decisions:
. Mission: Strategic plan, personnel, program goals, volunteer training, and
management
2. Supervise and manage the position of Director
3. Financial Development
. Manage the organization, setting the annual and capital budget
. Fundraising: Churches, foundations, individuals and other

4, Accountability

. Annual review of program
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P

. Training and orientation of new Board members

Board Member (Individually):

il Understand mission, goals and program of the ministry
o Regular attendance of Board meetings
o Communicate ministry to congregations, governing bodies and local

interested entities
2. Be a contributing member of the ministry
Article V. Officers

Section 1. Designated Positions. The officers of the organization shall be a Chairperson, a
Secretary, a Treasurer, a Director, and a Vice-Chairperson.

The Chairperson office also carries the title, duties and responsibilities of President for
purposes of Tennessee nonprofit corporation laws and regulations. The Chairperson and Treasurer
offices may be held by a single Trustee, and the Secretary and Treasurer offices may be held by a
single Trustee. The offices of Chairperson and Secretary may not be held by the same person.

Section 2. Eligibility. An individual must be a Trustee and have been active in the ministry
to be eligible to be elected as Chairperson.

Section 3. Election of Officers. The Board elects the officers of Westminster Home
Connection and reports the election to the Session of WPC.

Section 4. Director. The Director reports to the Board. The Board is responsible for hiring
ot retaining, supervising, and terninating (he employment of or relationship with the Director. The
Director may be a paid or a volunteer position, and even if a volunteer, shall be considered as an
employee of Westminster Home Connection for purposes of these bylaws.

Duties of Director:

a. To guide and direct the activities of Westminster Home Connection
on a day-to-day basis subject to the oversight of the Board.

b. To carry out the policies of the Board.
(o To perform such other duties that normally pertain to the office.
Section 5. The Chairperson.
Duties of the Chairperson:

a. To meet regularly with the Director to provide direction, insight and
feedback on Westminster Home Connection activities.
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—~ b. To ensure that the Session is regularly informed of the activities of
Westminster Home Connection.

c. To perform other dutiés as may be delegated by the Board.
g Section 6. The Secretary.
Duties of the Secretary:

a. To keep the minutes of proceedings of the Board,

b. To give notice of meetings as required by the bylaws or as required
by law, '

c. To maintain a record of the name and address of each member of the
Board, and

d. To keep any other official records of the Westminster Home
Connection as may be required from time to time.

Section 7. The Treasurer.
Duties of the Treasurer:
o a. To keep or oversee the financial records of Westminster Home
Connection. This includes the following:
o Preparation of the annual budget under the direction of the
S Board,
o Providing regular financial reports to the Board,
o To ensure that Westminster Home Connection has designed a
system of internal controls over financial matters.
Section 8. The Vice-Chairperson.
Duties of the Vice-Chairperson:

a. To meet regularly with the Director and Chairperson to provide
direction, insight and feedback on Westminster Home Connection
activities.

b. To assist the Chairperson in his or her duties.

c. To perform other duties as may be delegated by the Board.

N Section 9. Removal.
-~ 4
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Upon the alfirmative vote of the majority of the members of the Board, at a regular or

special meeting of the Board, any officer or agent elected, appointed, or emp[éyed may be removed
at any time and within the period, if any, for which such person was elected, appointed, or
employed whenever in the Board’s judgment it is in the best inferests of Westminster Home
Connection. If the office of any officers becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall be filled

by the Board.
Article VI. Committees

Section 1. Establishment. The Board will establish Committees of t;he Board as deemed
necessary.

Section 2. Membership. The Board will appoint members to any Board Committees.
Committee members may be Trustees but are not required to be Trustees. ‘

Section 3. Duties. The Board will specify the duties of any Board Committee at the time
the Committee is established. The Board will revise the duties of Committees as necessary.

Article VII. Meetings

Section 1. Time of Regula

meetings of the Board during eac
Board.

»
i

e ]
[
calendar year on dates determined from tim

Section 2. Special Meelings Convened. Special meetings of the Board;must be preceded by
no less than two days notice to each Trustee, either by phone, e-mail or maﬂ Special meetings
may be called only if requested by three or more Trustees.

Section 3. Notice. Notice of all meetings of the Board shall be in writing or other form of
acceptable communication and shall state the place, date and hour of the meetings. The notice
shall indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the persons calling the meeting, unless
the meeting was set at a previous Board meeting. Notice of all special meetmgs of members shall
state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called.

Section 4. Majority Vote. Except as specifically set forth herein, proposals shall be put
forth at meetings and will be decided upon by a majority vote of those present, If the number of
Trustees present or otherwise voting shall be even, half of such number shall be deemed to be a
majority.

Section 5. Quorum. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorumé.

Section 6. Minutes. The minutes of meetings of the Board shall be presented in writing to
the Board at the next regular meeting.

Section 7. Informal Action in Lieu of Meeting. Any action that may liae taken at a meeting
of the Board may be taken without a meeting, if a majority of the Trustees shall provide their
written consent (which may be by email or other electronic means) referencing or setting forth the
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- action so taken. All sitting Trustees shall be provided a copy of the proposed action as well as
notification as to whether or not the proposed action was approved.

Section 8. Virtual Meeting Policy. The Chairperson may convene a “virtual” meeting of
the Board for any regular or special meeting. A “virtual” meeting may be undertaken by any
method that allows all participants in the meetingito speak and to be heard, and may include
telephone conference call, video or online calling, or other method acceptable to the Board and
deemed by the Chairperson to be reasonably available to all participants. !

Article VIII. Resignations
|
Section 1. Written Resignation. Resignations of Trustees, officers and‘ committee members
shall be in writing to the Session of WPC with a copy to the Board and shall take effect upon
receipt by the Session. In addition, upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Board, at a
regulai or prCI‘ll meeting, any Trustee may be removed for just cause as determmed by the Board
in its exercise of discretion. :

Article IX. Conflict of Interest Policy

{
These bylaws incorporate by reference the Westminster Home Connection Conflict of
Interest Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Article X. Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of Westminster Home Connection, the orgamzatlon s assets shall be
distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)3 of the Internal
Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future federal tax code or shall be distributed to the
federal government or to a state or local government for a public purpose.

Article XI. Indemnification

Each person who is or was a trustee/director, officer, or employee of Westminster Home
Connection (including the heirs, executors, administrators, or estates of such person) shall be
indemnified by Westminster Home Connection to the full extent permitted by the Tennessee
Nonprofit Corporation Law (as set forth at Tenn. Code Ann, Secs. 48-58-501 er seq.) against any
1ab111ty, cost, or related expense incurred in the capacity as trustee/director, officer, or employee,
or arising out of the status as a trustee/director, officer, or cmployee The determination of whether
indemnification is permitted pursuant to the Law shall be made in accordance with Tenn. Code
Ann. Sec. 48-58-506 by ecither: i) a majority vote of a quorum consisting of the disinterested
trustees; ii) by a majority vote of a committee duly designated by the Board of Trustees; or iii) by
independent special counsel.

Article XII. Amendments

These bylaws may be altered or amended as follows: The Westminster Home Connection
Board proposes bylaw amendments. Westminster lome Connection bylaw amendment proposals
"\ require the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Trustees present at any meeting of the Board where
there is quorum, provided that notice of the proposed amendments be contained in the notice for the
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= meeting. Any proposed amendment(s) will be presented in writing to the Sess?ion of WPC for final
approval. The proposed amendment(s) will take effect upon action by the Session of WPC.
!
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~ THESE BYLAWS HAVE BEEN ADOPTED BY WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES, effective as of the 1% day of February, 2013.

N
Derek Bryant, Chair
December 1, 2022 Revision
.-—-\\
./"\\
=N 8
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YAAN L AN Internal Revenue Service

013053

In reply refer to: 0248222119

CINCINNATI O0OH 45999-0038 July 21, 2017 LTR 4168C 0
46-1795939 000000 00
- 00023921

BODC: TE

WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION
% TERRY RAPPUHN

3900 W END AVE

NASHVILLE TN 37205

Employer ID Number: 46~1795939
Form 990 required: Yes

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to yvour request dated July 12, 2017, regarding
vour tax-exempt status.

We issued you a determination letter in June, 2017, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Saction BQ1
(3).

{~)
A0

Our records also indicate vou're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509(a) because vou're described in IRC Sections
509(al) (1) and 170Cb) (1) CA)Y(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 25%22.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether vou must file an

annual information return. If a return is required, vou must file Form
990, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 15th dav of the fifth month after
the end of your annual accounting period. IRC Section 6033(j) provides
that, if vou don't file a required annual information return or notice
for three consecutive vears, vour exempt status will be automatically
revoked on the filing due date of the third required return or notice.

For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or
call 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If vou have questions, call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,

local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Time) .
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0248222119
July 21, 2617 LTR 4168C 0
46-1795939 0060000 00

00023922

WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION
% TERRY RAPPUHN

3900 W END AVE

NASHVILLE TN 37205

Sincerely vours,

e # tarrpe

Doris Kenwright, Operation Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations 1
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Westminster Home Connection
Mission Statement

Westminster Home Connection repairs, modifies, and preserves the homes of older adults
and people with disabilities to age in place safely and with dignity, while encouraging and
enabling others to do the same,

Statement of Services

Westminster Home Connection provides cri"gical home repairs and mobility modifications
for low-income older adults and people with disabilities in Davidson County, serving at
least 100 homes through this project. As a licensed Home Improvement contractor,
Westminster addresses repair and accessibility needs, such as roofing, plumbing, HVAC,
accessibility ramps, and ADA toilets, to preserve affordable housing and support aging in
place. :
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WESTMINSTER HOME
CONNECTION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2024 and 2023
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

Independent Auditor's RBPOTM ... oo ., 1-2

Financial Statements as of and for the
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023;

Statements of Financial POBIION ...l 3
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets ................. T Ty 4-5
Statements of Cash FIOWS ...........ccvvirieiccinn, 6
Statements of Functional Expenses ... .. AV R M e SRS A PSS A T 7-8
Notes to Financial StatemMeNts ... ettt 9-16
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MULLINS  CLEMMONS & MAYES, pLLe

CERTIFIAY PURESE AL 0O

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Westminster Home Connection:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Westminster Home Connection (a
nonprofit corporation) (“Home Connection"), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Westminster Home Connection as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Aqditor's

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Westminster
Home Connection's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Finéncial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions,’ are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Westminster Home Connection's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions aor events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Westminster Home Connection's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Information Included in Home Connection's Annual Report

Management is respansible for the other information included in the Organization’s annual report.
The other information comprises the Financial Highlights included in the annual report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance on it. in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our repor.

;E Muﬂfﬂ CAtmmors » /‘/{%4‘1 ,f puec

‘Brentwood, Tennessee
March 6, 2025
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,145,294 $ 918,355
Certificates of deposit, including accrued interest 358,076 350,279
Promises to give, net 268,420 437,308
Grants receivable 142,394 92,778
Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,225 1,855
Property and equipment, net 60,916 80,503
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,980,325 $ 1,881,078
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable 28,010 22,479
Accrued payroll 53,160 32,970
Accrued compensated absences 5,141 3,856
Other accrued expenses - 16,897
Total liabilities 86,311 76,202
NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions

Undesignated 118,533 142,453

Designated by the Board for operating reserve 750,000 650,000
Total net assets without donor restrictions 868,533 792,453
With donor restrictions 1,025,481 1,012,423
Total net assets 1,894,014 1,804,876
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,880,325 $ 1,881,078
The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE, SUPPORT AND GAINS:

Contributions 5 612,496 §$ 622,433 § 1,234,929
State and local contracts and grants 121,692 - 121,692
Investment income 51,189 - 51,189
Total 785 377 622,433 1,407,810
Net assets released due to i

satisfaction of restrictions 609,375 (609,375) -

Total revenue, support and gains 1,394,752 13,058 1,407,810
EXPENSES:

Program services 1,060,640 1,060,640
Fundraising 16,225 - 16,225
Management and general 241,807 - 241,807
Totai expensas 1,318,672 1,318,672
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 76,080 13,058 89,138
NET ASSETS:

Beginning 792,453 1,012,423 1,804,876
Ending 3 868533 § 1,026,481 § 1,894,014
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-4 -
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

REVENUE, SUPPORT AND GAINS:

Contributions

State and local contracts and grants

Investment income

Totai

Net assets released due to
satisfaction of restrictions

Total revenue, support and gains

EXPENSES:

Program services
Fundraising

Management and general
Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS:
Beginning

Ending

Without Donor

With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 743896 % 738843 $ 1,482,745
88,790 - 88,790
21,505 - 21,505
854,181 738,849 1,593,040
201,299 (201,299) -
1,055,490 537,550 1,593,040
825,148 825,148
15,879 15,879
169,943 - 169,843
1,010,970 s 1,010,970
44 520 537,550 582,070
747,933 474,873 1,222,806
$ 792453 % 1,012,423 % 1,804,876

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statements,

-5.
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 89138 $ 582,070
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 19,587 9,207
Noncash donation of fixed asset - (8,500)
Accrued Interest on certificates of deposit (13,287) (16,458)
Net changes in other operating assets and liabilities:
Promises to give ‘ 168,888 (57,979)
Grants receivable (49,616) 70,070
Prepaid expenses and other assets (3,370) (701)
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (11,366) 13,393
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 21,475 __(239)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 2449 580,863
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Redemption of certificates of deposit 353,490 387,799
Purchases of certificates of deposit (348,000) (540,000)
Purchases of property and equipment - (71,184)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 5,490 (223,385)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 226,939 367,478
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 918,355 550,877
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ 1,145,294 $ 918,355
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
-6-
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Management
Program and Total
Services Fundraising General Expenses

Client home expenses $ 764931 § - $ . $ 764,931
Salaries and employee benefits 151,692 5,942 78,011 235,645
Occupancy 6,622 45 1,332 7,999
Case manager 34,248 - - 34,248
Office and legal expenses 4 851 . 32,955 37,806
Other professional services 8,000 - 56,875 64,875
Communications consultant - - 29,705 29,705
Development and fundraising - 10,238 - 10,238
Information technotlogy - - 19,118 19,118
Minor tools/construction supplies 10,286 - - 10,286
Food 690 - 2,594 3,284
Transportation 39,009 - 1,640 40,649
Insurance 19,384 - 8,004 27,388
Miscellaneous 2,273 - 10,639 12,912
Total expenses before

depreciation expense 1,041,986 16,225 240,873 1,299,084
Depreciation expense 18,654 - 934 19,588
Total expenses $1060640 $ 16225 $ 241807 § 1,318,672
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-7-
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Management
Program and Total
Services ' Fundraising General Expenses

Client home expenses $ 573837 5 - $ - $ 573,637
Salaries and employee benefits 134,018 4,630 47,318 185,966
Qccupancy 6,824 . 66 1,110 8,000
Case manager 28,628 . - 28,628
Office and legal expenses 3,029 - 22,441 25,470
Other professional services 8,000 - 50,989 58,989
Communications consultant - - 13,000 13,000
Development and fundraising - 11,183 - 11,183
Information technology - - 17,662 17,662
Minor tools/construction supplies 4703 - - 4,703
Food 51 - 1,629 1,680
Transportation 32,238 - 1,440 33,678
Ingurance 20,820 - 4,703 25,823
Miscellaneous 4,667 - 8,977 13,644
Total expenses before

depreciation expense 816,615 15,879 169,269 1,001,763
Depreciation expense 8,533 - 674 9,207
Total expenses $ 825148 § 15879 § 169,943 $ 1,010,970

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

-8-
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - THE ENTITY

Westminster Home Connection ("Home Connection”) was established for the purpose of making
critical home repairs and mobility modifications for older adults and people with disabilities. Home
Connection is chartered as a Tennessee nonprofit corporation and is a validated mission of
Westminster Presbyterian Church (“WPC"). Home Connection's Board of Trustees (‘Board”) is
approved by WPC through WPC's Session. At least two thirds of the members of the Board are
required to be members or staff of WPC. Home Connection has exemption under section 501{c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code as a stand-alone tax-exempt entity for federal income tax purposes.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Periods

All references to 2024 and 2023 in these financial statements refer to the years ended December
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, unless otherwise noted.

Basis of Accounting

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Home
Connection uses the accrual basis of accounting; therefore, revenue is recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Financial Statement Presentation

Home Connection is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the folloawing net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions — This class includes net assets that are not subject to any
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of Home Connection. These net assets may be used at the discretion of Home
Connection's management and Board.

Net assets with donor restrictions — This class includes net assets whose use by Home
Connection is subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be fulfiled by actions of Home Connection pursuant to those
restrictions or by the passage of time. Home Connection has no donor restrictions that are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated those resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Danor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if
the restrictions expire in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized.
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are
reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in
bank accounts and money market funds that invest in U.S. government securities, which are neither
held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes. Though the money market funds invest in
U.S. government securities, the funds themselves are not federally insured. Home Connection may,
at times, maintain bank account balances more than federally insured limits. However, Home
Connection has not experienced any losses in such accounts, and believes it is not exposed to any
significant credit risk reiated to cash and cash equivaienis.

Contributions and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to
give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the rastrictions expire in the
calendar year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are
reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Promises to give are recorded at fair value. The fair value of promises to give, which are payable
within one year, is generally considered to be the same as the net realizable value of the promises.
The fair value of promises to give, which are payable over a period greater than one year, is
estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the federal prime rate. At December 31, 2024
and 2023, this discount rate used was 7.5% and 8.5%, respectively. The discount is amortized on
the straight-line basis over the promise period, with the discount amortization being recorded as a
component of contributions.

Home Connection uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible unconditional promises to
give. The allowance is based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and
management’s analysis of specific promises made. Promises to give are written. off when deemed
uncollectible. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, management deemed all promlises to give to be
fully collectible, and, therefore, no allowance has been recorded.

See Note 4 for further details.

.10 -
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Grant Revenue and Receivables

Grant revenue is recognized when eligible expenses are incurred under the terms of the grant.
Grant funds received prior to the incurrence of eligible expenses are recorded as deferred grant
revenue in the statement of financial position until such expenses are incurred.

Home Connection uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible grants receivable. The
allowance is based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and
management's analysis of specific grants receivable. Grants receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectible. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, management deemed all grants receivable
to be fully collectible, and, therefore, no allowance has been recorded.

Property and Equipment

Expenditures for additions, major renewals and betterment of property and equipment with a cost
more than $750 are capitalized. The fair value of donated property and equipment is similarly
capilalized. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the
respective assets are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed by using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets. When assets are soid
or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the statement of activities.

See Note 6 for further details.

Donated Facilities and Services

Donated facilities are recognized at fair value on the date contributed. Donated services are
recognized, at fair value, if they create or enhance nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills
and would be purchased by Home Connectian if rot contributed. Donated services are recognized
as contributions and expensed at their estimated fair values at date of receipt.

Home Connection received a substantial amount of donated services from unpaid volunteers which
did not meet the criteria for recognition under generally accepted accounting principles.

See Notes 5 and 8 for further details.

Income Taxes

As mentioned in Note 1, Home Connection is a Tennessee nonprofit corporation, and a tax-exempt
organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Home Connection is not

¢lassified as a private foundation.

Home Connection is required to file an annual Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
(Form 980) with the Internal Revenue Service.
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes (Continued)

In addition, certain nonprofit corporations are subject ta income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined
that Home Connection is not subject to unrelated business income tax. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of pragram and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. See Note 10 for further details.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally acceéted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported

amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material,

Events Occurring after Reporting Date

Home Connection has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between December 31,
2024 and March 6, 2025, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued, for possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts for consistency with the current
year presentation. Thaese reclassifications had no effect on the reported change in net assets.
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 3 - LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of December 31, 2024 and
2023, consist of the following:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,145,294 $ 918355
Certificates of deposit, maturing within 12 months 358,076 350,279
Promises to give 268,420 437,308
Grants receivable 142 394 92,778

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures $ 1,914,184 $ 1,798,720

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Promises to give to be received in one to five years (89,700) (233,000)
Financial assets not avaiiable to be used within one year (89,700) (233,000)
Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

within one year i $ 1,824 484 $ 1,565,720

As part of Home Connection’s liquidity plan, excess cash is held in bank accounts and money
market funds.
NOTE 4 - PROMISES TO GIVE

Unconditional promises to give consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Within one year $ 178,720 $ 204,308
in one to five years 100,000 265,000
Gross promises to give 278,720 469,308
Less unamortized discount on promises to give ) (10,300) (32,000)
Promises to give. net $ 268,420 $ 437,308

NOTE 5 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Home Connection has an arrangement with WPC for dedicated office. stora_gef and parking spaces
located on the grounds of WPC. Home Connection uses copiers and similar office tools. The

estimated fair value of faciiities in the amount of $8,000 has been reported in the accompanying
Statements of Activities for both 2024 and 2023. °
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 6 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Vehicles, tools and equipment - $ 145911 $ 145,911
Less accumulated depreciation (84,995) (86,408)
Property and equipment, net $ 60916 $ 80,503

NOTE 7 - LINE OF CREDIT

Home Connection had a revolving line of credit agreement with a financial institution with a
maximum availability of $50,000. Interest was payable monthly at the bank’s index rate. The line of
credit agreement expired on September 21, 2023.

2

NOTE 8 - DONATED SERVICES

The estimated fair value of donated services, consisting of management, accounting and grant
services, totaling $47,000 and $53,000 for 2024 and 2023, respectively, has been reported in the
accompanying Statements of Activities.

NOTE 9 — NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions have been restricted for the following purposes at December 31,

2024 and 2023:
2024 2023
Subject to expenditure for a specified purpose:
Critical home repairs and mobility modifications $ 627,281 $ 626,423
Expanded capacity to repair and modify additional homes 222,000 160,000
Purchase of truck 20,000 -
For the operations of subsequent years 156,200 226,000
Total net assets with donor restrictions : $1,025,481 $1,012 423
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Net assets with donor restrictions were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying
the restrictions during 2024 and 2023 as follows:

2024 2023
Critical home repairs and mobility modifications $ 419,875 $ 141,003
Expanded capacity to repair and modify additional homes 98,000 .
Operations 91,500 57,000
Tornado disaster recovery - 3,296
Total net assets released from restrictions $ 608,375 $ 201,299

NOTE 10 — FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to mare than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. Such expenses are allocated using three overall methods. Salaries and
employee benefits are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort; office and legal,
development and fundraising, information technology, food, transportation and insurance are
aliocated based on review of individual cost items, with any costs that were not specifically
identifiable allocated based on estimates of time and effort; occupancy is allocated on the basis of
percentage of accumulated other costs.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Home Connection has a Simple IRA plan (the “Plan”) for its employees. Home Connection matches
3% of eligible employees’ compensation. Home Connection matched $14,471 and $10,273 during
2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 12 ~ CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject Home Connection to concentrations of credit risk
principally consist of promises to give. Promises to give represent concentrations of credit risk to
the extent they are receivable from concentrated sources. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there
were two promises to give representing 89% and 84%, respectively, of the net promises ta give.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCiES

Grant expenditures are subject to review and audit by the grantors in the normal course of
operations. Any reviews and audits could result in disallowance of expenditures, and therefore, a
return of grant funds to the grantor. Management believes that unallowable expenditures have not

been incurred under any of its grants. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any potential
return of funds to any of its grantors.
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WESTMINSTER HOME CONNECTION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 14 - REVENUE DETAILS

Revenue, support and gains without donor restrictions is further detailed as follows:

2024 2023
Revenues, support and gains without donor restrictions:

Contributions:

Foundations and corporations $ 355,987 $ 325775

Individuals " 810,884 558,420
Government-Locai ‘ 121,692 88,790
Investment income 51,189 21,505
Revenue In-Kind 56,000 61,000

Total revenues, support and gains without donor restrictions $1,384,752 $1,055,490
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